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owned and operated.

514

Satellite Access
Stations strategically
located worldwide.

=]

Additional satellites
to be delivered into
space by 2024,

Directors' repo

Financial statements
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A global, mobile, high,gangwidth!
satellite network. .8

GX is the world’s firsi{globallyjavailable

high bandwidth mmﬂm::m network®

With five satellitesi(lnmarsatz5)
already in orbit, ow isidelivering

highly reliable, Sccﬂmﬁ_%

broadband connectivitygomartimey

aviation, governmentjand|landzusers]

throughout the;worlaXGx{isThow;the]

‘gold mﬁm:am&‘“g whichlallfother]
networks willbelmeasured!
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capabilities m:a nmnmn_@ Qw&wﬂ .,m

unparalleled portfolio of services.
Thisincludes a further seven GX
payloads into space by 2024, each

of which will deliver greater capacity
than the existing GX network
combined, focused on regions of
greatest demand.

The European
Aviation Network (EAN)
A unique asset.

The integrated S-band satellite and
air-to-ground network, EAN, is a
compelling and unique proposition

for commercial aviation customers in
Europe, compared to other satellite
only offerings. The network delivers
higher capacity, wider coverage,
superior cost per bit, faster speeds and
lower latency, with smaller and lighter
equipment which can be installed
quickly, more cost effectively and with
less fuel drag.

narsat Gr sLid Annual Repert 2020

[tolmillions,worldwideland;supports
[globallsafetyservicesiatisealinithe]
mﬁ.mﬂm@gggg

(L-band and Ka-band) mmﬁm:
scheduled to enter service in mo
As new connected technologies
accelerate our response to the
world's evolving needs and challenges,
Inmarsat's reinvigorated L-band
network is future-ready - and ever
more capable to take advantage of
new growth opportunities uniquely
addressable by a cutting edge
global network.
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Directors' report Financial statements

BUSINESS MODEL

Our purpose isto enable the connected world by placing
_-=-0ur customers at the center of everything we do.

—> Gaining competitive advantége

through our corporate responsibility

and our people

Our competitive advantage comes from our
networks, our innovative technology, the expertise
of our people and the strength and breadth of -
our partnership ecosystem.

Market leading networks

L-band ' A

Our resilient L-band networks, based on our
Inmarsat-3 and Inmarsat-4 satellite constellations,
will continue to support the evolving mobile

_communications requirements in our key customer

segments. Our new Inmarsat-6 satellites will support
our growth ambitions.

Dual payload

The Inmarsat-6 satellites comprise two dual payload
(L-band and Ka-band) satellites due to enter
commercial service in 2022. This will ensure the

" reorientation of our L-band capabilities towards new

growth opportunities, as well as providing additional
capacity to the existing GX network.

Ka-band

Global Xpress (‘GX"), based on our 5 Inmarsat-5
satellites currently in orbit, is the world's first global,
mobile, high bandwidth network, designed to
support our customers’ high bandwidth
connectivity requirements.

S-band

The integrated S-band satellite and air-to-ground
network, the EAN, is-a compelling and unigue
proposition for commercial aviation customers
in Europe. '

Supported by:

Our technology

We continue to invest in innovation to deliver
market-winning solutions to our customers and
differentiate our propositions.

Best-in-class partner ecosystem

Our relationships with our partners, from suppliers to
distributors, help us to strengthen our service
offering.

Highly skilled workforce

Our people have the skills, competencies and
experience to deliver our business objectives

and create value. Our culture and values are focused
on innovation and performance excellence.

Our financial resources

We use our balance sheet to support the organic
and inorganic investment needed to deliver our
strategic imperatives.

8 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020
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Qurvalue chain

By operating global satellite networks and fully
_optimised ground infrastructure networks,
supported by market-leading distribution
partnerships, we provide our customers with
- .global coverage to any device.

Our products, services and solutions enable our
customers to operate safely, securely and sfficiently
“and Lo deliver innuvalive communications services
to their users across our customer-focused
business segments. .

Qur husiness model dalivers systainahla value for
all our stakeholders.

Technology

"Our revenue streams

" Our business units, Maritime, Government,
Aviation and Enterprise, are our interfaces with
our customers and drive the Group's revenue.

'Dvel»ivering value for

our stakeholders

We are committed to creating and delivering
sustained value for all our stakeholders.

‘Shéreholders and lenders

We aim to drive profitable growth to help deliver

value for our shareholders and lenders.

Customers and partners
We focus on the key drivers of value for our partners

.and customers such as security, reliability and

seaAmless delivery with global coverage and mobility.

Employees

We have a strong culture, underpinned by our values
and our commitment to diversity, and we are focused
on our employees’ career development, making

.internal promotions where possible.

Communities

We are proud of our public service ethos and the
part we play in providing safety services, particularly
to mariners and the aviation industry and our
long-term support of the charity Télécoms Sans

.Frontiéres.

Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 9
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OUR STRATEGY

Financial statements

Our strategy remains focused around our purpose of ‘enabling the
connected world’ by meeting the remote and mobile connectivity
requirements of our customers, reliably, securely and globally.

Our strategy is founded on our continued drive to
pioneer innovation in mobile satellite communications
services. Our seamless global coverage and market-
leading consistency in network reliability remains

" attractive to commercial and government users,
whose operations require mission and business critical
communications support.

Looking ahead, inherent in our purpose is an ambition

to develop from being a mobile satellite communications
operator to becoming a powerful, proactive digital enabler
operating diversified networks and platforms across which
we deliver highly-integrated, value-added digital solutions
and services to our target markets and customers.

" Byfocusing on becoming an 'enabler for the connected
world’ we will be at the forefront of supporting our
customers, as their requirements for higher levels of
secure and reliable bandwidth, on a global basis, continue
in the future.

Measuring our progress

We measure progress towards our strategic vision

using both financial and non-financial key performance
indicators and robust risk management. Our key
.performance indicators can be found on pages 18 and 19.
These measures help us maintain a regular check against
major milestones within each of our strategic priorities
allowing us to flex and adjust as required to improve
delivery and execution.

- 10 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020

Covid-19 Strategy

During Covid-19, we managed the challenge for our business
well and continued to meet our customers’ operational
needs. Whilst our core Company strategy remains unchanged,
we implemented a three stage approach to manage the initial
crisis and to look at a future state of the business and how it
could impact all our stakeholders. The stages are:

— Survive - implement fast and effective response to the crisis.

— Reset - assimilate, analyse, re-plan and act decisively to
create the conditions for a successful out-turn and
long-term growth.

— Thrive - succeed through the out-turn and beyond to
drive strategy and results.

A fast and effective response to the crisis (‘survive') was
required to protect our employees, support our customers
and maintain what is essential for our future. This robust
'Covid Defence Plan’ was implemented at pace with focus
on liquidity and business continuity. The ‘survive’ element
to our response strategy has been fully implemented.

As we progressed into the second phase of our response
strategy, we moved our focus to growth and on implementing
changes that enable us better to deliver that growth.

These make us more resilient and agile, simplifying and
aligning our business activities, and focusing on the actions
that create lasting value for all our stakeholders. The third
stage is made up of three elements - a strategic review
tooking at our market positioning, an investment review
looking at potential growth and acquisition opportunities,
and our Organisational Development Review (ODR) looking

at our operating model. These plans all support us with the
capabilities to transform our business and set us up to capture
the strong growth potential.
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Our strategic vision

1

Capture the
maximum number
of broadband
platforms

5 Our Purpose 2
Transform Repaosition

our operating —\\ ) L-band services

environment for new growth

Enabling
the connected
world

4 3

Create a high Establish

performance our Digital

organisation Platform and
Business

Ouyr Strategic pﬂor'\t'\e‘3 )

We achieve our strategic priorities by:

Defining Defining the Solving our Becoming
connectivity connected customers’ hardest the leading IoT
" atsea aircraft - connectivity connectivity
challenges partner

"Inmarsat today is focused
on looking after our
people and our partners,
delivering mission critical
servicesto our customers,
and-investing in organic
growth and innovation.”
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ENGAGING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS: S172 STATEMENT

Our purpose and business model succeeds
onthe strength of our stakeholder relationships.

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors

to take into consideration the interests of stakeholders in their

decision making. The Directors have regard to the interests of
our Company employees and other stakeholders, including
our impact in the community, the environment and our

Stakeholder Why we engage

reputation, when making their decisions. The Directors
consider what is likely to promote the success of the Company
for our members in the long-term in all their decision making.
This statement should be read in conjunction with the
stakeholder statement on pages 50 and 51.

How we engage

We rely on the knowhow, creativity and

Employees
' entrepreneurial spirit of all our people.

New and existing talent is attracted and

retained by organisations that share
* insight and provide development -

-opportunities within an inclusive culture.

- We revéogn'ise we need the bes'tAt'ear.ns to
be engaged and to collaborate if we are

to achieve our purpose together.

Werecognise that want to have a culture

that fosters strong values and an
environment of support for them as

individuals and where we encourage our

employees to bring their 'whole
self to work'.

The Board engages with employees, through our Glabal
Workforce Advisory Panel (GWAP) - a body set up in line
with requirements outlined in the updated Financial
Reporting Council's UK Corporate Governance Code.

.~ The GWAP is made up of 15 employee representatives from

across our gltobal footprint, supported by additional ‘Voice
Champions' in smaller offices. The primary purpose of the
group is to promote an effective two-way communications
mechanism between the workforce and the management
team, by capturing the views of employees on proposals
and issues which affect our people, recognising barriers
and enablers and helping to address them.

In December 2020 we hosted a ‘Voice Week’, with a focus
on seeking feedback on our proposed new ways

of working. This serves to promote the profile of the
GWAP and encourages employees to raise views through
the appropriate channels.

The GWAP promotes a culture of collaboration and high
performance, and consults on and provides advice, support
and feedback during the implementation of programmes
and policies. We have formally consulted employee bodies
who are regularly engaged on consultative requirements.

In terms of wider employee engagement programmes our
CEO has oversight and has delegated responsibility for all
other activity through the Chief People Officer, who through
the People Strategy, oversees a proactive communications
and engagement programme, supporting open and honest
dialogue with the global workforce and other formal global
staff bodies. Regular Board papers concerning employee
engagement were prepared for the Board, and more
frequently during the pandemic period.

The CEO through the Chief People Officer made our people
afocus in 2020, which is ongoing in 2021, to ensure a global
‘programme of wellbeing and IT support, to enable the
efficient working from home, was available for them
throughout the Covid-19 period.

12 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020
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Stakeholder Why we engage

How we engage

Employees (cont.)

By working collaboratively with our
customers, we develop innovative
solutions to meet consumer needs.

Customers

By sharing market insight with customers,
we identify further opportunities together
to increase revenues.

We recognise that our service is mission
- critical to our customers and the reliability
of our service is essential for them.

Our employee engagement scores have increased over 2019
and employee feedback on specific questions relating to
their wellbeing was very positive.

An outcome of our employee engagement is that we are
reviewing flexible working arrangements for our employees
globally. We hope to offer our employees the choice to work
from home or the office permanently or an option to select
from a range of hybrid solutions. Employee feedback also
noted employees were suffering ‘meeting fatigue' due to the
high volume of meetings attended during the day as a result.
of home working. We recently trialled 'no meeting Friday's'
during the month of February and have implemented meeting
archetypes to change meeting culture to work more
successfully from home.

The Board engages with customers through the CEQ

and the Executive Management team and receives regular
information about customers in Board reports and other
business reports. All significant or material contracts that are
classed as Principal Decisions are approved at Board level.

We seek customer feedback on a range of issues such as
customer service, new products and pricing. This is done
through various methods such as surveys and focus groups.

We launched the first of our annual market wide customer
feedback surveys in 2019 to initiate what we expected to be a
productive and ongoing dialogue. Our latest survey in 2020
saw an increase of over 300% in the responses received and
provided even more insightful observations which added great
value to the customer experience feedback we gain from our
regular customer interactions. We saw an increase in both the
Net Promotor Score and Customer Satisfaction scares which
form an underpinning part of our customer experience
measurement framework. Customers told us that they
appreciate and value our global network coverage and
reliability. They also said there are ways we could do more

to simplify how we do business, such as increasing the
self-service capability in the systems that they interface with.
All the feedback received is helping us drive further
improvements through our customer experience programme.
The ongoing dialogue is increasing our understanding of what
matters most to those who rely on our services.

Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 13
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Engaging with our stakeholders: s172 statement

(continued)

Stakeholder Why we engage How we engage
Partners We recognise that a collaborative The Board engages with our partners through the CEO and
approach to innovation and the use and  receives regular information about partners in Board reports
capabilities of our technology can often  and other business reports.
accelerate time to market, reduce costs o
and create differentiation. We engage with our partners through our regional and global
partner conferences. We recently held our first virtual session
We recognise that our service is mission - with partners and will be hosting these regularly going
critical to our partners and the reliability ~ forwards. The live broadcasts are designed to keep
of our service is essential for them - our partners updated on our exciting plans for 2021.
and their customers. . }
We are also launching a new partner portal in 2021through
which partners will have access to news articles and blogs.
Shareholders We have a clear responsibility to engage ~ We keep our shareholders regularly informed through

ond Lenders:
(our Investors)

Suppliers

with sharcholders and lenders to our
business and our shareholders' views’
are an important element of our strategy.

Supply chain integrity is a critical part of
ourbusiness as we rely on our suppliers
to help meet our customers' needs.

During Covid-19 times, ensuring the
logistic channels remained open was
essential for us and our suppliers.

our Governance frameworks while lenders receive quarterly
updates and a presentation on the performance of

the organisation from the CFO. There is an opportunity for
lenders to ask questions on the financial performance of the
business at the end of each presentation. Lender consensus
is fed back directly to the Board as part of the routine
financial update agenda item.

We engage with our suppliers via our procurement teams

as well as through other functions such as legal, compliance
and health and safety. Material suppliers are engaged regularly
through our Supplier Relationship Management programme
where we hold quarterly business reviews and annual reviews
with senior management looking backwards at performance
and forwards at future business opportunities. The Board
receives information through Board reports and reviews

our strategy and performance in following the requirements

. of the Modern Slavery Act each year.

The Board reviews the payment practices of the Group as part
of routine financial updates. For the full year 2020, 87% of
suppliers were paid on time (2019: 49%). This significant
improvement is a result of focus on improving supplier
relationships for the long-term.

14 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020
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Why we engage

How we engage

Local Communities

Communities rightly expect local
employers to operate safely, effectively
and sustainably and to give back

to society.

Our education activities support
local schools, give our people
new skills, help us recruit new
talent in the future and create

a positive societal impact.

We engage with local communities through our local offices
and sites. The Board, through the CEO, who delegates oversight
to the Chief People Officer, receives regular information in the
CEO's Board reports and in other Board reports.

The Chief People Officer oversees a comprehensive global
outreach programme of promoting STEM careers to women

and girls and tackling social mobility through partnerships

with schools and targeted organisations. 2020 has challenged
the execution of this programme, however our STEM outreach
remains very important to us, and during 2020 we refreshed our
STEM educational engagement programme, redesigning for the
current context and environment. This global offering
comprising a range of activities across the early years' spectrum
will be delivered virtually and will extend our reach and
participation. We are also partnering with the Maiden outreach
programme (www.themaidenfactor.org) and supporting them to
help drive awareness and understanding of STEM subjects with
the communities they work with.

We made a strong start to 2020 engaging with local
communities as part of our STEM outreach programmes. We
welcomed 150 Cadets to the London Headquarters to participate
inan interactive STEM Insight day. We hosted High School
Insights Days to connect the work Inmarsat does to the STEM
curriculum. We partnered with a London primary school to
deliver our first Whole School STEM Takeover day with Inmarsat
volunteers running all lessons for all classes. We partnered with
the Maritime Business Unit and Nekton/Encounter EDU to
connect schools in our network with 'exploring the deep sea'.

We hoped to exceed our targets and the impact made in 2019
and feedback, particularly on the Cadet day and School Takeover,
was overwhelmingly positive. In April 2020 all educational
engagement activity was suspended due to Covid-19. Whilst we
continued to liaise with schools we were unable to offer work
experience placements or STEM initiatives.

Whilst we were not weren't able to have the impact we had
planned in 2020, Covid-19 provided us with the opportunity to
rethink how we engage with young people and we developed
arange of offerings to enable greater geographical reach and a
broader range of initiatives that can be delivered virtually as well
as in person when appropriate. The impact of this will mean our
programmes are more inclusive (more access to young people
from across the globe, particularly benefiting those from
disadvantaged backgrounds) with stronger links to the STEM
national curriculum.

Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 15
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2020 PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue, excluding Ligado of $33.3m (2019: $0.2m) and
RigNet settlement of $nil (2019: $50.8m), decreased by
$106.3m to $1,238.8m compared to $1,3451m for the
corresponding period in 2019. These results reflect the impact
of Covid-19, particularly on our Aviation business. Outside
Aviation, our business units performed well, demonstrating
the resilience and diversity of our business model.

Maritime

Revenue declined by 3.4% as customers continued to
transition from FleetBroadband (FB) to Very Small
Aperture Terminals (VSAT) services offered by both
Inmarsat and our competitors. Despite Covid-19, which
impacted the pace of new installations during the first
half of 2020, Inmarsat has continued to be the leading
provider of VSAT services to mainstream merchant marine
vessels. Reflecting success in this market segment and
price changes to certain legacy products in Q3, the rate of
decline in Maritime slowed in 2020 (2019: 8%).

16 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020

Government

Revenue incieased by 5.8% with revenue in US
Government increasing by 10.1% driven by new businéss
wins and expanded mandates across GlobalXpress (GX),
L-band and other satellite services. Outside the US,
revenue declined by 3.0%, reflecting lower hardware
sales and reduced usage of L-Band services which was
partially offset by continued growth in GX revenue and
new projects and services.

"Revenue, excluding

Ligado of $33.3m (2019:
$0.2m) and RigNet
settlement of $nil (2019:
$50.8m), decreased by
$106.3mto $1,238.8m
comparedto $1,3451m
forthe corresponding
periodin 2019."




Strategic report Directors' report Financial statements

EBITDA

EBITDA, excluding Ligado of $33.3m (2019: $nil), RigNet
settlement of $nil (2019: $47.3m), and costs associated with
the acquisition of $2m (2019: $75.8m), decreased by $32.8m to
$662.8m compared to $695.6m for the corresponding period in
2019. This reflects the lower revenues together with a material
reduction in both direct and indirect costs as quick action was
taken to mitigate the impact of the pandemic.

Aviation

Revenue declined by 39.4% mainly attributable to Covid-19
and the massive impact this has had on the aviation
industry. In Flight Connectivity (IFC) revenue declined by
611% ($72.9m) driven by a reduction in both low margin
hardware sales and airtime revenue. Core revenue
comprising SwiftBroadband and JetConneX for Business
Aviation (BGA), Classic Aero and SwiftBroadband-Safety for
SOS and legacy products, decreased by 21.9% ($371m)
similarly driven by reduced customer activity.

Profit after tax

Profit for the full year, excluding Ligado of $33.3m (2019: nil),
RigNet settlement of $nil (2019: $47.3m), and costs
associated with the acquisition of $2m (2019: $75.8m),
increased by $253.6m ta $57.9m compared to a loss of
$195.7m for the corresponding period in 2019. This is driven by
lower EBITDA, and increased tax due to the revaluation

of UK deferred tax to 19%.

Cash capex

Cash capital expenditure decreased by $145.4m to $2879m
compared to $433.3m for the corresponding period in 2019.
This was mainly driven by the timing of contractual payments
on major infrastructure investments, slower customer
installations in Aviation and a reduction in capital expenditure
generally as we responded to the impact of Covid-19.

Enterprise

Revenue increased by 1.0%, as a result of increased
usage, lease upgrades and equipment sales offset by
on-going market pressure on the legacy product base.

Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 17



Strategic report Directors' report

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial statements

Measuring success against our key strategic priorities.

Financial KPlIs

Revenue
Total Group revenue generated from operations,
including Ligado Netwaorks.

Why it is important

Revenue growth validates our business model,

by demonstrating our ability to develop our customer base
and increase ARPU across our product portfolio.

EBITDA

EBITDA is total Group profit before net financing costs,
taxation, depreciation and amortisation, gains/losses on
disposals of assets, impairment losses and share of profit
of associates.

Why it is important

EBITDA is a commonly used industry term to help

our shareholders understand contributions made

by our solutions and services. It reflects how the effect
of growing revenues and cost management deliver
value to our shareholders.

Cash capex

Cash capital expenditure is the cash flow relating to tangible
and intangible asset additions; it includes capitalised labour
costs and excludes capitalised interest.

Why it is important

Cash capex indicates our continued investment in growth
and development of our network and infrastructure, as well
as our investment in the future technologies of the business.

18 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020

2020

2019

2018

2020

2019

2018

2020

2019

2018

1,272 1m

$1.2721m
$1,3961m

$1,465.2m

Link to strategy:
1&5

Link to risks and remuneration

The achievement of this KPI depends on the successful
execution of all our strategic priorities and careful
management of our risks. Incentive plans include
revenue as one of the financial performance metrics, so it
will be measured as a basis for incentive plan payments.

5694 1

$6943m

$6671m

$7701m

Link to strategy:
1.2,3&5

Link to risks and remuneration

The achievement of this KPI depends on successful
execution of all our strategic priorities and careful
management of our risks. Incentive plans include financial
metrics and Group results as performance metrics, so this
KPI will contribute to determining incentive plan payments.

52879

$2879m

$433.3m

$590.7m

Link to strategy:

1,2,3&5

Link to risks and remuneration

The achievement of this KPI depends on the successful
execution of all our strategic priorities and careful
management of our risks. Incentive plans include financial
metrics and Group results as performance metrics, so this
KPI will contribute to determining incentive plan payments.
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Strategic priorities

1 2 3
Capture the maximum Reposition L-band
number of broadband platforms services for new growth

Establish our digital -
platform and business

4 5
Create a high Transform our operating
performance organisation environment

Non-financial KPls

Network availability

Ongoing investment in our space and ground infrastructure
ensures that customers are supported by an overall 999%
availability in each of our GX and L-band networks. We meet
the maritime safety requirements set by the Internationat
Maritime Organization for safety services.

Why it is important

Ensuring our network is available and reliable is essential
in providing the required quality of service to our customers.
This reliability is critical for safety at sea and aviation
cockpit services.

Emissions

We track our emissions to check they are in line with the Paris
Agreement on Climate Change and to prevent the worst effects
of catastrophic climate change by limiting average global
temperature increases to well below two degrees Celsius.

In 2020 we carried out a Scope 3 screening exercise

with the aim of setting a Science Based Target in line

with climate science.

Why it is important

Unless urgent action is taken to limit global temperatures
to 1.5° above pre-industrial levels, climate change presents
significant and systemic risks.

Employee engagement

Employee engagement describes an employee's level of
commitment and enthusiasm to their work and their company.
We measure employee engagement through our Peakon survey
which help us identify areas where we are performing well and
those that need to be improved.

Why it is important
It is important as higher levels of employee engagement have
been proven to positively impact business performance.

2020

2019

2018

2020

2019

2018

2020

2019

2018

99.9%

999%

999%

9959%

Link to strategy:
12&5

Link to risks and remuneration

The risks for this KPI are set out in risks 1,5 and 9 of the
principal risks section of this report. This KPI is included
within bonus objectives for relevant staff.

232104 +c0,e

232104 1C0,e .

306,642tC0,e

376,692tC0,e

Link to strategy:
485

Link to risks and remuneration

The achievement of this KPI is linked to our corporate
responsibility to reduce global greenhouse gas emissions
and avoid the worst effects of climate change. This KPI

is included within bonus objectives for relevant staff.

8.1/10

81

6

Link to strategy:

E-

Link to risks and remuneration

The achievement of high levels of employee engagement
will contribute to our drive for a high-performance
organisation and therefore underpins the delivery of all
our strategic priorities. Many of our risks are affected if
we do not have engaged staff.
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Multraship, part of the Muller Maritime
Group, has been sailing the world's
oceans for over 230 years, priding itself
on delivering the highest standards of
quality and safety across its fleet of
seagoing tugboats and salvage crafts.

While it operates internationally,
Multraship’s salvage and offshore
services are particularly popularin
remote locations, such as the
Norwegian archipelago of Svalbard,
located between mainland Norway and
the North Pole. These areas are known
to be plagued by unreliable network
coverage with vessels experiencing
regular outages in satellite connectivity.
Multraship recognised it was critical to
bridge this gap in communication to
maintain its high standards of service
and safety.

With Inmarsat’s Fleet Xpress service,
Multraship saw a direct connection
between their needs today and for the
future, and began a fleet-wide adoption
of the industry-leading service. Fleet
Xpress gave Multraship the perfect
solution - ultra-high-speed
connectivity, required to sustain a data
hungry operating environment, with
guaranteed 99.9% availability anywhere
in the world. Fixed monthly subscription

"With Inmarsat's Fleet
Xpress service, Multraship
saw a direct connection
betweentheirneeds
today and forthe future,
and began a fleet-wide
adoption ofthe industry-
leading service."

plans provided complete visibility
and control over the vessels' costs,
removing the time-consuming
headache of managing data bundles
or fluctuating costs.

Multraship place a strong focus on crew
welfare. Fleet Xpress supported its
ongoing wellbeing initiatives, keeping
crew connected to life back home with
fast and reliable access to the internet
and voice calls.

Due to previous damage caused to their
vessels by large heavy weight antennas,
size and weight was an important factor
for Multraship in the search for a new
solution. With a range of hardware
options available, the company chose
the 60cm dual antenna solution and
compact below-deck unit to fit in the
limited available space.

For added peace of mind to protect
their investment, Multraship enrolled

in Inmarsat’s Fleet Care annual
maintenance, repair and support
programme. This allows Inmarsat's
global service network and team of
professionally certified engineers to
detect and resolve equipment problems
quickly and efficiently, so vessels are
not left without connectivity.
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SOLUTIONS AND SERVICES
GLOBAL GOVERNMENT CASE STUDY

The Lockheed C-130 Hercules is a
military troop, medevac and cargo
transport aircraft that has served
over 60 nations since it first entered
service in 1956.

Historically, crew and passengers
onboard a Hercules had been limited
to using high frequency (HF) radio for
long-range communication while in
flight. However, in 2015 the Royal
Australian Air Force (RAAF) began

a fleet-wide upgrade, equipping its
C-130J Hercules’ with Inmarsat’s
L-band services so those onboard
could benefit from global voice

and data connectivity.

In 2017, as part of their ongoing mission
to develop new ways for air mobility
aircraft to support embarked forces,
the RAAF completed a trial of
Inmarsat's Global Xpress (GX) service.
The six-month trial saw the installation
of a Honeywell JetWaveTM GX

satellite system on board a C-130J,

and included secure live video
streaming and encrypted file transfer;
two applications the RAAF were

keen to deploy.

"Following this successful
trial, the GX system was
foundto bethe perfect
mission enablerforthis

tactical workhorse aircraft."

Following this successful trial, the GX
system was found to be the perfect
mission enabler for this tactical workhorse
aircraft. Deploying a Hercules might
require a flight of up to 10 hours and,

in that time, the operating environment
for both the crew and passengers could
vary significantly. When deploying for
missions such as disaster relief, locations
can be remote and the communications
infrastructure is often damaged or
non-existent, therefore the global,
high-speed coverage provided by

GXis essential.

Two aircraft have subsequently been
equipped with the GX service with a third
installation expected to be completed

in 2021. The success of this trial and the
capability and reliability of the GX system
has been reinforced by the New Zealand
Air Force, which has committed to five
GX enabled C-130s in 2022.

For operators across the world, the C-130
is the most prominent, flexible military
transport aircraft. The opportunities for
mission success that are enabled by the
successful adoption of the Inmarsat

GX communication system are endless.
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The GX solution provides the U.S. Requirements for broadband
DoD's aircraft with global, seamless, connectivity to the U.S. Department

) ] } of Defence's (DoD) C-17 fleet are
high data-rate communications. challenging: unwavering support

for mission-critical operations with
- ‘ coverage, capacity and security from
T anywhere in the world. The C-17
Globemaster Il provides global airlift
capability to deliver troops and cargo
to globally distributed bases in
virtually any environment. Seamless
coverage and high-data rates are
essential for performing these
missions, even in high-traffic areas.
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To meet these critical needs,

the U.S. Air Force evaluated a

range of commercial satellite
communications options before
choosing Inmarsat's Global Xpress (GX)
network with Honeywell's JetWave
Ka-band hardware.

This solution provides the U.S. DoD’s
aircraft with global, seamless, high
data-rate communications. The
system’s interoperability and real-time
connectivity enables the DoD aircraft to
remain in continuous communication
as they deploy to locations.

With various end-users assigned to
aircraft on short notice, there is a
need for immediate access to an
always-on service no matter what
their location, and GX delivers the
most extensive global coverage for a
reliable command-and-control link,
including over water, non-traditional
flight paths and hostile locations.

GX provides real-time weather,

video conferencing, large file transfer,
encryption capabilities, in-flight
briefings, intelligence surveillance

reconnaissance video and secure
communications. It has true
broadband-class connectivity,
comparable with typical speeds in
the home or office, and can support
multiple users communicating and
sharing data, while linking with
command elements and forces
anywhere in the world. The result
is improved situational awareness
and the ability to assess and adjust
to the battlefield environment,

en route and in real time.
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Inmarsat is uniquely positioned to act
as a1 atalyst forthe safe and rapid
growih of the commercial Unmanned
Artial Vehicles (WAVS) inclustry.
thanks to its state«of-therart glahal
satellita notwarks, military grade
cyber security and fully-funded
technology roadmap.

Inmarsat's vast experience in aviation
communication, navigation and
surveillance (CNS) over the past

30 years is another fundamental
advantage. Trusted by over 200
airlines today, our services are
onboard more than 13,000 aircraft
throughout the world, including 90%
of the world's transoceanic aircraft,
ensuring they fly at safe distances
from each other. This unique
expertise lends itself perfectly to
seamlessly integrate commercial
UAVs - also known as drones -

EINancia [ aEments S

into cantrolled airspace and ensure
they are not only visible to other air
traffic., but also kept at a safe distance,

This is achirver thraugh the use of
Unmanned Traffic Managemont (UTM),
akin to Air Traffic Management (ATM) for
aircraft. Last year, Inmarsat joined
forces with leading UTM technology
provider Altitude Angel to develop a
ground-breaking Pop-Up UTM platform
that delivers advanced Beyond Visual
Line of Sight (BVLOS) flight tracking for
UAVs. Manths later, the two partners
concluded demonstration flights for
the platform using an A-TechSYN UAV.
The fully autonomous flights were
initiated and monitored by a pilot 60km
from the take-off and landing area in
Turkey, and were tracked, monitored
and managed using the Pop-Up UTM
platform by a team at Altitude Angel's
HQ inthe UK.

The results were excellent, with

the platform offering full situational
awareness to the operator team and
preventing any potential conflicts with
rommercial aircraft, Adding momentum
to the succescstul demonstration, the
Pop-Up UTM also triumphed at the Air
Traffic Management (ATM) Magazine
Awards 2020, which recognises pioneering
technologies that advance air safety.

These recent achievements in the
commercial UAV market builds on
Inmarsat’s experience with civil and
military government UAV operations.
Forecasts suggest the next decade will
see exponential growth in commercial
drones and, subsequently, the entire
ecosystem that ensures airspace safety
for manned and unmanned vehicles.
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SOLUTIONS AND SERVICES
ENTERPRISE CASE STUDY

PERFUR

OnixSat and Inmarsat help Cemig improve performance
in controlling its distribution reclosers remotely.
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With around 83 power stations, Cemig
is the largest integrated electric power
company in Brazil, operating in 22 states
and accounting for 12% of Brazil's
electricity distribution.

In December 2015, the Brazilian Ministry

of Mines and Energy renewed its

agreement with Cemig, granting a

- 30-year contract to distribute electrical

' power to its customers in Minas Gerais
state in Southeastern Brazil. The contract
required Cemig to meet new service
limits for two key quality indicators -

the Equivalent Interruption Duration per
Consumer (EDC) and the Equivalent
Interruption Frequency per Consumer
(EFC) - which the company is required
to progressively decrease each year.

' key challenge that Cemig faced in
provmg the EDC was the performance

)
)

,“Finﬂncialstatements

of cellular connectivity in the remote
areas of Minas Gerais state. In the event
of an electrical system fault in Cemig’s
network, ‘recloser’ switches interrupt
the power, restoring it again once the
previously detected issue is no longer
present. Due to their remote locations,
in order to do this, 'reclosers’ must have
a reliable connectivity to allow Cemig'’s
Centre of Operations to send and
receive commands.

To resolve this challenge, Inmarsat
partner, OnixSat, and Inmarsat
developed a terminal that uses satellite
connectivity to remotely control
‘reclosers’. The solution combines a
serial/Ethernet converter and Hughes
BGAN 9502 terminal to connect
‘reclosers’ to Inmarsat's global, ultra-
reliable L-band satellite network. The
coverage of the network has enabled

Cemig's field equipment to send and
receive data regardless of its location,
and the 99.9% uptime ensures that they
wilt always remain connected, even in
the most adverse weather conditions.

The collaboration between OnixSat
and Inmarsat has produced impressive
results for Cemig. Before deploying
the solution, Cemig had an effective
availability of remotely controlling
‘reclosers’ of less than 90%. Following
deployment, this indicator now shows
an average of 98% effectiveness at
the points where these small-sized
satellite terminals have been installed.
The solution was originally deployed to
150 of Cemig's 'reclosers’, and following
the impressive results, Cemig will

be installing a further 760 terminals
across its distribution network

and substations.
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RISKMANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is fundamental to ourability to meet
both our short-term and longer-term strategic objectives.

Risk framework
Risk comes hand-in-hand with business opportunity. Risk is
not something that should be driven out of the business but

rather something to be identified, intelligently assessed and

managed. The aim is not to eliminate all risks, but to foster

a culture supportive of effective risk management by
encouraging appropriate risk-taking to achieve our objectives.
The Group’s approach to risk is brought together in an
overarching risk management policy. This policy, together
with the risk management process for risk assessment and
mitigation, have been implemented to focus risk management
on strategic and business objectives, mitigation of the largest
risks, and to comply with and support the ISO 27001 standard
and accreditation. The policy sets out our risk appetite as well
as roles and responsibilities.

As required by the policy, management applies the risk

process to identify, assess/analyse, develop mitigation
_plan, implement risk management actions, re-evatuate
_and control and report significant risks within the business,
and to report to the Board on how those risks are being
managed. Risks are initially identified, assessed and
described together with mitigation actions for each

Risk framework
Governance

N
Re-evaluate
& control

imptement -\
risk
management
actions

mitigation
plan
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business area in individual risk reports, these are
reviewed and discussed with the relevant Executive
Management team member followed by a continuous
improvement plan. On a quarterly basis, the risks and
mitigation plan progress are formally reviewed by a Central
Risk Committee represented by senior management from
across the business. These risks are assessed and
consolidated in a systematic way to identify the Group's
principal risks and the result is a Group risk report. This
quarterly Group risk report is further discussed and reviewed
by the Board, which has oversight for the risk management
framework. Whilst the focus is on the principal risks, the
Central Risk Committee and business areas also identify and
mitigate secondary risks at their meetings.

The management of risk is embedded in our everyday
business activities and culture, with all our employees

and contractors having an important role to play. The diligence
applied by our workforce ta consider risk is reflected

in business cases which are submitted for approval

by management and the Board. Ongoing projects have

risks reported on a regular basis.

"Risk is not something
that should be driven
out ofthe business but
rather somethingto be
identified, intelligently
assessed and managed."
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group faces a number of risks and uncertainties that
may adversely affect our business, operations, liquidity,
financial position or future performance, not all of which
are wholly within our control. Although many of the risks
and uncertainties influencing our performance are
macroeconomic and likely to affect the performance of
businesses generally, others are particular to our operations
in mobile satellite services. A summary of our principal risks
are shown on the following pages. The impact of Brexit is
not significant in terms of overall risk on the Company.
We maintained our Brexit steering group over the course of
the year in preparation for 31 December 2020 exit and this
group continues to meet to ensure there remains a focus on
ongoing Brexit decisions taken by the UK Government.

It is worth commenting on two risks which became events
during 2020. The first is the impact of Covid-19 which was
captured as an element of one of our principal risks; the
second was a separate principal risk about a sharp reduction
in airline traffic which occurred due to the pandemic.

Covid-19

Covid-19 presented a significant risk to the financial and
operational performance of Inmarsat. The Board and Executive
Management team responded robustly and quickly to the
challenges created by the spread of the virus. A Covid-19

Risk Management Group was in place over the course

of the year, and remains so, to provide an agile response

Risks and uncertainties
may adversely affect:

[& Business

P g,
~©- Operations

5'0

Liquidity

Financial
position

Future
performance

to the risks arising due to Covid-19 globally. We established

a specific Covid-19 risk team which regularly met three times
per week to consider all impacts across the business such

as the wellbeing of our employees and ability to work at home
safely and the ability to maintain vessel terminal installations.
This risk team reported to a specially created sub group of

the Executive Management team to implement these actions
for the business. These activities allowed us to maintain
business continuity and provide sufficient financial liquidity to
the organisation. Whilst the economic outlook remains
uncertain, drawing on the information known to the business
today, Management has evaluated the potential impact of a
range of possible scenarios on future revenues, EBITDA and
liquidity. Inmarsat has a robust business model and capital
structure.with strong positions in a diverse range of
geographies and markets, supplying generally mission critical
services to a wide range of customers. These characteristics
meant that the Group produced solid results for the 2020 year
bearing in mind the difficult global operating environment.
The actions taken position the Group well for future growth.

Sharp reduction in air traffic

The risk of a sudden drop in aviation traffic became an

event and crystallised due to the impact of Covid-19 and

the sudden change in air travel. The response to the impact
of Covid-19 has been managed through actions taken by

the aviation business unit and as part of the Covid Defence
Plan. There remains a risk covering 'sudden loss of air traffic’
which is an existing but reassessed risk based on the
current climate for air travel.

"Although many of the risks

and uncertainties influencing
our performance are
macroeconomic and likely

to affect the performance

of businesses generally, others
are particularto our operations
in mobile satellite services."
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Risk management
(continued)

Strategic priorities

Risk trend (2020 vs 2019)

1 2 3 4 5 T N ~

Capture the maximum Reposition L-band Establish our digital Create a high Transform Increase Decrease Unchanged
number of broadband for new growth platform and business performance our operating

platforms organisation environment

Risk Background and impact Mitigation Trend
1. Not enough — This could mean we fail to keep up with — We liaise closely with third parties across our A

networlk capacity
Link to strategy:

the developing business needs of our new
and existing customers.

ccosystem to review requirements and then plan
our delivery against these.

12 — We may not be able to meet capacity - Business units provide pipeline assessments to

Reason for change
in risk trend: Aviation
was the major driver
of capacity in the
satellite roadmap.
That plan changed
due to Covid-19

so the immediate
pressure on GX
capacity has

been reduced.

needs for various reasons such as
regulatory requirements, network

+or satellite issues, or technological
difficulties which could impact our ability

— We may fail to optimally assess our
market, technological changes, customer
requirements and competitors' strategy,
so we will not have enough capacity to

allow future capacity assessments to be performed.
The capacity requirements are compared to the
current infrastructure and any predicted unmet
demand is used to specify future infrastructure needs.
to generate revenues. — The launch of GX5, a new Ka-band broadband
satellite is providing additional capacity over Europe
and the Middle East. Next generation Ka-band
capacity is underway, with GX7, 8, 9 and two Arctic
payloads (GX10A/B) ordered.

2. Competition
- technology
disruption, new
entrants and
different
business plans
Link to strategy:
123

meet the demands. — The use of a Radio Resource Management Module in

— We may fail to keep up with the
developing business needs of our
existing and new customers.

— We may fail to optimally assess our
market, technological changes, customer — We have well-established relationships with

requirements and competitors’ strategy,
so we have not enough capacity to meet

the demands.

— We may develop next generation

broadband services that will not meet

these market opportunities,

or these developments could have delays
or cost overruns impacting on our market
position, revenue or return on investment.

— Competitors and new entrants may
launch disruptive technology which
impacts our business model.

conjunction with the Global Resource Manager will
support implementation of highly complex radio
resource management algorithms that work in real-
time to improve frequency reuse and efficiency in
our L-band networks.

— We develop a broad portfolio of products and
services to address customer requirements and
opportunities in several markets. This makes us
more resilient to adverse developments,

partners and signed significant strategic alliance
agreements. We work closely with our partners
to ensure our services, technology and capacity
can meet the demand from our existing and new
customers. We invest more in new satellites to
meet customer capacity demands. We adapt
our product and services portfolio to address
technological developments. We seek to identify
new customers and to migrate existing customers
who would benefit from our new services.

— We review the market for potential M&A
opportunities and strategic options with
key partners.

— We undertake regular customer satisfaction
reviews to gauge feedback and assess how we can
fespond to comments received.
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Risk Background and Impact Mitigation Trend
3. Protectionism — Growing protectionism including policy . .— We continuously review and adapt our strategy ~
affects our changes, sanctions-and trade wars could - in reaction to developing political or economic
business impact our business. These impacts ~ situations. We assess and manage new risks from
opefatidns could adversely affect our supply chain political decisions including protectionism that
Link to strategy: and our ability to perform installations potentially could impact our business.
12345 as well as result in pressure to not sellto  — Inmarsat Government operates with a proxy board
' a particular country. If we are.prevented - to allow it to manage its business in accordance

~ from operating on a global basis, our with U.S. requirements and compete effectively

revenue may be affected. for US. Government business. _

- We work with local companies to understand-
how they can be ambassadors to support
Inmarsat services in their country in the most
effective way possible.

— We look at opportunities for where we can support
a'made local ‘product development opportunity
which supports our business commitment to local

‘ market requirements.
4.Lossof an We rely on-our distribution channel for — We build strong relationships with all our partners 1
external the major part of our revenue; they may not and provide them with excellent services to sellin
customer or sell our services effectively or competitively ~ their markets. We encourage sharing of information
supplier and may prefer selling our competitors’ and developing ideas through direct meetings with
-Link to strategy: services due to better terms and conditions.  our partners and through our partner conferences.
123 ' Our financial exposure may increase if — We monitor market and partner developments

Reaconfor changein
risk trend: There has
been an impact on
some of our
customers and
suppliers due to

the effects of Covid-19.

our partners fail to make payments for
our services. )

— We rely on a limited number of third party

suppliers and partners in the production
of our satellites, launch provider systems,
terminals and products and we may have
limited control over availability, quality
and delivery of these goods. '

A critical supplier and/or customer may
fail financially, go bankrupt or one of their
systems may fail, which may be increased
more due to the impact of Covid-19.

&and adjust our strategy to mitigate negative
developments as well as to explore new
opportunities to increase our customer base.

We have simplified our standard contracts and
pricing in order to make it easier to do business with
us. We promote fair. play in our distribution channel
and will not promote customer churn.

Our Group Procurement team have implemented a
Supplier Relationship Management and Contract
Performance approach to get closer to cur :
suppliers and hold them to account on their actions

- and deliverables. We have an effective credit

management process in place, assessing the credit
risk of new and existing customers.
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Trend

— We ensure the Company is financially robust ~

Risk Background and Impact Mitigation

7. Geo-political, — Where there are large downturns in

environmental
risk, political
uncertainty
including Brexit
impact

Link to strategy:
12345

8. Event leads to
sharp reduction
of air traffic.
(This risk is
looking at any
new risks of a
sharp reduction
in air traffic, not
commenting on
the existing
-impact caused
by Covid-19
which turned
this risk into

an event)

Link to strategy:
1

the world economy affecting world trade,
this can impact our business and
execution of our strategy. This risk may
be seen if there is slowdown in one of
the major economies of the world,
anather pandemic, terrorist attack or
natural disaster which would mean for
our revenues to slowdown or severe
delays in implementation of our strategy.
We could fail to comply with
applicable international legislation
and reporting requirements.

Failed Brexit trade negotiations

could have a negative impact on
business in the EU and government
sponsored programmes.

The world has had a few events such as
9/1, SARS, Covid-19 and the Icelandic ash
cloud. More events like this in the future
could reduce air traffic volumes sharply,
which could in turn impact our businoss.
Our customers may ask us to cancel or
halt ongoing contracts and it could be
difficult to sign new contracts.

and resilient in reacting to economic downturns.
Having a diversified operational portfolio supports
our resiliency.

We continuously monitor, review and adapt our
strategy in reaction to developing political or
economic situations. We assess and manage new
risks such as changes in government, epidemics,
natural disasters that could impact our people
and business. :
Inmarsat’s Brexit committee analyses the impact
of the UK Brexit including possible failed Brexit
trade negotiations and deploys strategies and
mitigation plans to minimise possible impact.
We gain support from Carbon Intelligence, a third
party company, to address Climate Change risk.
We build strong retationships with in-country
partners to gain an understanding of working
relationships to manage business uncertainty
and to develop and grow revenue opportunities.
The Proxy Company for Inmarsat Government
allows the company to manage its business

in accordance with U.S. requirements enabling

it to compete for U.S. government business.

The company's response to Covid-19 has
demonstrated a high level of resilience

and adaptability.

We build a broad business portfolio and ensure the ~
company is financially robust and resilient to any
sudden sharp downturn in any one of our markets.

The pricing / commercial model for a majority of our
Aviation business is subscription based and therefore
does not vary with usage providing our customers

with confidence in our pricing model.
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Risk management
(continued)

Risk Background and Impact Mitigation Trend
9. Spectrum, — We rely on radio spectrum, which has — We consider new satellite bands for our operations T -
orbital slots ~ ‘historically been allocated without " - and focus actively on winning/increasing Ka
and market . charge, to provide our services. We may .. market share so it becomes the service of choice
access risk " not be able to coordinate usage in the and it remains a priority for future use.
Link to strategy: future and/or may be charged for the — We proactively make ITU filings for orbital slots
12 sbectrum which could affect our ability through several national administrations in order
Reasun fur chanye Lu provide services. We lflay not be able lu tiedte opportunilies to meet our short- and
in risk trend; There to obtain adequate orbital slots or we long-term spectrum and orbital slot requirements.
?::Uze::r:’:r::;?:: may miss deadlines to bring orbital . — We negotiate with other companies on orbital
our L-bdnd spectrum slotsintouse. - , slots and the ability to achieve better spectrum.
and uperating uurCAN = Given the nature of the satellite business .. usage and allocation. We worls closely with in-
services. “itis important to have access to allareas  country partners to obtain market access and
' of the globe and provide coverage world- secure licenses for our distribution channel as far
wide. This requireé licensing from multiple as possible making any licensing requirements
national autho’rities. We may:not be able straightforward where appropriate. We also
~ to gainthese licenses for various reasons, engage with and support regulators to ensure they

which restricts our services being offered.  understand our business model and rationale for
o obtaining and renewing our licenses.

— Our Radio Resource Management Module will work
in conjunction with the Global Resource Manager,
implementing highly complex radio resource
management algorithms that work in real-time
to improve frequency reuse and efficiency in our
L-band networks. )

— Where we can, we use existing sites to be efficient
with infrastructure and resource requirements.

10. Currency Risk’ — Downturns in the economy of a country — We carefully manage and monitor our cashflows, ~

Link to strategy: and/or world ecanomy, armed conflicts budget and plans and are prepared to make

35 and trade restrictions could impact adjustments in case of large currency exchange
currency exchange rates and our business rates. We are prepared to hedge large contracts
and strategy. We have costs in various - and cash flows.
currencies including GBP, so a significant — We contract with our customers and vendors
change in GBP value could impact " inUSD wherever possible.

our business. _ . — The Group's Treasury Policy is reviewed and
: agreed with the Board periodically.
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Risk Background and Impact ) Mitigation Trend
1. Satellite . — We facerisks when we launch our — The risk is reduced by the continued successful ~.
launch failures satellites. There are only a few satellite " cooperation.between our space engineering team,
and cost launch companies and if they encounter ~ " satellite manufacturers and launch companies.
Linkto s'trategy:» " problems, our taunch risk may increase.. "~ We deploy an experienced team to collaborate
12 We may find that the cost and cover and prepare for satellite launches.

for insuring our satellites is impacted We buy insurance to compensate for the financial

by global events. loss in the event of a satellite launch failure.

' We reduce the impact of a satellite launch failure

, by developing a robust Crisis Management plan.

12. Loss of _ — We may-fail'to hire:skilled people-or We implement our People strategy where we identify 7 .
people and ‘adequately improve skills to maintain key employees, skills and skills gaps to manage’ '
key skills and grow our business, deliver our human resources effectively and enable delivery
Link to strategy: strategy and complete programmes and of the Company's strategy. We invest in training
12345 projects. We may lose highly technical and development for our employees and develop

Reason for change
in risk trend: There
has been animpact
on employees due to
implementing working
from homo, the Covid
Defence Plan and

- Organisational. -
Development Review.

and specialist employees who have very
‘'specific skill sets that are vital to the
business. We may lose knowledge with
employees and consultants who leave the
company: Brexit nogotiations outcomes -
could impact EU citizens working

in London and UK citizens in Europe.

~ We may lose employee engagement

and motivation.

Our employees may suffer injury from
terrorist attacks or'natural disasters

in our locations.

The impact of Covid-19 and the
organisational development programme.
outcomes may impact employee morale
and retention.

and implement recruitment strategies to ensure

we have people with the skills the Company needs.
Our employee value proposition focuses on career
development; training and reward to ensure we have
an cngaged and motivated workforce.

Inmarsat’s Brexit committee deploys strategies

and mitigations to minimise the possiblé impact on
those people impacted by citizenship requirements..
We provide flexibilitythrough the transition to
remote working for the majority of staff, core systems
have proved resilient for staff to be able to work

from home well.

We continue to develop and enhance Crisis
Management, Business Continuity Plans and
Emergency response plans.

We perform regular engagement surveys to provide
open communication to our employees.

— There.is a programme of transparent communication

to keep employees updated and engaged.
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Risk management
(continued)

Risk Background and Impact Mitigation Trend
13. Financing — We may fail to finance the business through — The organisation continuously reviews and adapts New
& liquidity operating cash flows, bank facilities and - its business focus in reaction to developing :
Link to strategy:..”- capital market instruments affected by political or economic situations with discussions

12345 failing to materially deliver our business being held in the regular Board, Executive

plans'and strategy, the closure of the
capital markets, downturns in the economy
: of a country or of the world, inability to raise —
o ' .additional funding or funding becomingl
" prohibitively expensive due to already high
leverage in the business.

.-— We may be. unable to access sufficient
finance and liquidity which could result
in:restructuring and/or refmancmg of
the organisation. N B

Management team and other senior -

leaders meetings. ' '

The annual strategic plannlng process includes
development of budget and long-range plans

for the business and ensures headroom vs the
debt covenants and RCF is maintained throughout
the 5year planning penod Performance against
the bidget, financial covenants and RCF headroom
is evaluated each month. -

The Treasury team.and CFO maintain an ongoing
dialogue with our relationship banks and quarterly’
calls with the investment community to

ensure that mternal and external expectations
are aligned. :
Effective credit management processes are

in place to assess the credit nsk of new and
existing customers. :

The organisation responded quickly and robustly
to the Covid-19 pandemic and put in place
comprehensive plans to ensure sufficient liquidity'
and headroom remained. Performance against the

- Covid Defence Plan was reviewed each month and

dlscussed with the CFO and shareholder members
in monthly review meetings. We prepared our 2021
budget and LRBP based on-known Covid-19 impacts
and third party forward plannmg information.
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Net risk matrix
Principalrisks 2020 and change over 2019

Risks are assessed with overall net impact M “}r" -
and probability. Net means the risk as it ‘ i
is today, with existing mitigation.

Risk summary _ - . ' _‘  o']\ :

1 Not enough network capacity

R L

2 Competition - technology disruption, o -
new entrants and different : ' : -
business plans °~

3 Protectionism affects our
business operations

Loss of or faited customer or supplier

Major operational failure

% Net probability

Security risk

N O oA

Geo-political risk, political
uncertainty including
Brexit impact

8 Event leads to sharp reduction
of air traffic

9 Spectrum, orbital slots and
market access risk

10 Currency risk

11 Satellite launch failure

12 Loss of people and key skills $ Net impact

Risk trend
T 4 - |

tncrease Decrease unchanged Separates principal (larger) risks from other risks

13 Financing & liquidity

As well as the principal risks that are described previously,
we also consider other risks that are either secondary

to the Principal risks described above or risks of a long-term
nature. These risks include but are not limited to:

— Ethical and compliance risks.

— Failed delivery of internal programmes or projects.

— Large restrictions on terminal use because of physical,
psychological or social reasons.

— Environmental damage.

— Risks from climate change.

— Cost saving measures by our customers could lead to
reduction in sales pipeline.

— Patent infringement.
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REPORTING IN ACCORDANCEWITH

~ DURCORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY -

-~ Th

is index shows where our stakeholders can evaluate how we have applied our

" - -Corporate Governance Policy and where key content can be found in this report.

Purpose and Board leadership
The Board determines the long-term strategy of the Group.

. Our business model and our strategic framework embeds

our vision, purpose, values and priorities to ensure

- stakeholder interests are met.

Opportunities and risks

The Board seeks out opportunity while managing risk.

The Central Risk Committee and the Executive Management
team ensure risk are identified and managed appropriately.

Page no. Page no.
Business model 8 Risk management 30
Our strategy 10 Principal-risks 3
Engaging with our stakeholders: s172 statement 12
Key performance Indicators 18 Stakeholder relationships and engagement

Board composition
The Board comprises the CEO, the CFO and an Executive
Director who is also the Company Secretary. All members of

. - theBoard are also part of the Executive Management team.

The composition of the Board is determined by our Corporate

~_Governance Policy.

Page no.
Board attendance 48
Board biographies 49

Director responsibilities
The Board receives regular reports on business, financial

- performance, employee and partner engagement as well
- as key business risks.

Page no.
How the Board operates 44
Role of the Board 44
Key roles and responsibilities 48

Our strategic priorities and values are how we deliver our
vision. The table set out in our section 172 statement of page
12t0 15 sets out some of the engagement that takes place
with key stakeholders.

Page no.
Business model 8
Our strategy 10
Engaging with our stakeholders: s172 statement 12
Stakeholder statement 50

The Board considers that the Company has complied fully
with its Corporate Governance Policy throughout the year.
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GOVERNANCEAND LEADERSHIP

Corporate governance statement.

The Board of Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited is pleased to
present its Corporate Governance Statement for the period to
31December 2020. This statement includes a review of
how corporate governance acts as the foundation for our
corporate activity and is embedded in our business and the
decisions we make. The Board is committed to the creation
of long-term sustainable value for the benefit of our

- shareholders and wider stakeholders.

The Company is committed to the highest standards of
governance and during the year adopted its own Corporate
Governance Policy. Qur Corporate Governance Policy is a
combination of both the Wates Principles for Large Private
Companies and our own existing governance frameworks
which provides detailed governance principles reserved for

the Board and its subsidiary boards. These principles are strictly

reserved to ensure the Directors and subsidiary directors can
demonstrate sound and competent execution of their
statutory duties (including oversight of the management

of relationships and engagement with stakeholders on their
behalf) in accordance with applicable legislation.

How the Board operates
To ensure effective governance, the Board has structured its
governance framework as noted on page 47.

The Company has composed a Board with a balance of skills,
backgrounds, experience and knowledge required to
campliment the promotion of the long-term success of the
Company and to identify the impacts of the Board's decisions
on their stakeholders, and where relevant, the likely
consequences of those decisions in the long-term. Individual
Directors have sufficient capacity to make a valuable
contribution that is aligned to the Company’s activities
(details of the skills and experience are set out on page 49 of
this Directors' Report).
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The Directors are mindful of corporate governance and seek
to demonstrate understanding of their accountability and
statutory responsibilities. The current Board understands

its primary duties under the Companies Act 2006 and
broader regulatory responsibilities, e.g., General Data
Protection Regulations, Anti-Maney Laundering, Corporate
Criminal Offence. Group-wide governance policies are

in place to support these primary duties and broader
regulatory requirements.

Role of the Board

The Board is ultimately responsible for organising and
directing the affairs of the Company in a manner most likely
to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its
investors whilst complying with legal and regulatory
frameworks.

Our Board is ultimately accountable for:

— The long-term success of the Company, having regard
for the interests of all stakeholders.

— Ensuring the effectiveness and reporting on our system
of governance, including retaining oversight of its
delegated responsibilities.

— The performance and proper conduct of the business
and ensuring a positive culture is supported.

Responsibility for developing and implementing strategy
within the Group’s operations and for day-to-day management
of the business is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) who, as the head of the Executive Management team,
cascades this responsibility through the Group. The CEO

is empowered by the Board to handle all business activities
up to a designated level of authorisation and to report to the
Board for guidance, support and approval on other matters
which require Board input. The members of the Executive
Management team are listed on page 48 and their biographies
can be found on our website at www.inmarsat.com/en/about/
who-we-are/leadership-team-and-board.

The Board has responsibility for managing risk and does not
delegate overall responsibility for the approval of the risk
management policy to management. There has been
additional work undertaken in 2020 on risk processes and a
review of the principal risks was undertaken with and by the
Executive Management team to be implemented in 2021.
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Governance and leadership
(continued)

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Policy, principal
decisions are delegated to the Executive Management team.
In making its decisions, the Executive Management team is
required to consider the outcome of any stakeholder impact
assessment that has been undertaken to support it making
any principal decision (details of the principal decisions made
by the Board during the reporting period are set out on page

_ 51)-The Executive Management team reports back to the
Board as part of the wider risk management and internal
controls of the Group, allowing the Board to demonstrate its
oversight of the delegated responsibilities.

A formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision
or consideration by the Board as a whole has been agreed by
the Directors and is included in the Corporate Governance
Policy. This schedule covers areas such as:

— The Group's business strategy and long-term plans.
~ Major capital projects.

— Significant capital structure changes.

— Investments.

— Acquisitions and divestments.

In 2020 we focused our attention on the following key areas:
Strategy review and development:

— Reviewed strategic objectives and updates on the
operational performance for the Group's key business areas.

" .= Received reports on technology and innovation and related

) industry developments.
— Received detailed competitive assessments of traditional
and disruptor technology companies.
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Ensuring appropriate financial and operational management:

— Received and approved the 2020 annual budget, long range
business plan for the period 2020-2024 and then approved
the Covid Defence Plan covering 2020.

— Received and discussed regular reports on the Group's
financial performance.

— Discussed and approved the annual budget for 2021
and long range business plan for the period 2021to 2025.

Implementing governance and ethics and monitoring risk:

— Assessed the risks faced by the Group and received updates
on internal controls.

— Reviewed regular reports on compliance matters (such as
any anti-bribery and corruption) from the Company Secretary.

— Discussed the additional focus on s172 reporting and other
outputs from the revised Corporate Governance Policy.

Workplace reviews:

— Received regular and detailed updates from the CEO
and Chief People Officer on the Organisational Development
Review (ODR) including reorganisation and restructuring
activity taking place, and information on how our people
would be engaged in the programme.

— Received a detailed update regarding new People policies
being introduced in the Company including new ways
of working and wellbeing initiatives.
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The Board structure

Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited Board

3 Directors:
The CEO, the CFO
and an Executive Director.

Key objectives:

- Responsible for the overatl conduct
of the business; setting strategy
and a positive culture.

CEO:
Rajeev Suri

Key objectives:
- Management of the overall business.

- Imptementation of strategy and policy.

Executive
Management Team

Chairman:
Rajeev Suri

Key objectives:

- To focus on strategy, financial
performance, culture, succession
planning, business growth,
organisational development
and adherence to Group-wide policies.
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Governance and leadership
(continued)

Change in CEO

On 26 February 2021, Rupert Pearce stepped down from his role

as CEO and resigned as Director of Inmarsat Group Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries and was replaced by Rajeev Suri
effective 1March 2021.

© Executive Management team
The Chief Executive Officer chairs the Executive Management
team which meets on a monthly basis. During 2020 due to

Covid-19, these meetings were shorter in time due to different time

zones of the management team and therefore additionat weekly
and fortnightly meetings were set up to ensure the management
team remained connected and operating effectively. As part of its
remit, this team focuses on the Group's strategy, financial reviews
and long range business planning, the competitive landscape,
strategic updates from all areas of the business, risk reviews,
culture, learning and development and organisational
development. The Executive Management team includes:

Rupert Pearce, CEO until 26 February 2021

Rajeev Suri, CEO effective 1March 2021

Tony Bates, CFO

Phil Balaam, President, Aviation Business Unit

Mike Carter, President, Enterprise Business Unit
Natasha Dillon, Chief Commercial and People Officer
Peter Hadinger, Chief Technology Officer

- Alison Horrocks, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and
Company Secretary

Todd McDonell, President, Global Government Business Unit
Susan Miller, CEO Inmarsat Government Inc.

Jason Smith, Chief Operations Officer

Ronald Spithout, President, Maritime Business Unit

More information on the Executive Management team can be
found on the Company website at www.inmarsat.com/about/
who-we-are/leadership-team-and-board.

Governance and conduct of Board meetings

Our Board meets as often as necessary to effectively conduct
its business. During 2020, the Board met six times.
Unscheduled supplementary meetings also took place as
and when necessary.

Board meeting attendance
The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings held
in 2020 is shown in the table below.

Financial statements

Key roles and responsibilities

The Chief Executive Officer
Rajeev Suri

He is responsible for:

— The development and implementation of the
business strategy.

— The day-to-day management of Inmarsat’s operations
and its financial results.

— Recommending the strategic objectives for the Inmarsat
Group, for debate, challenge and approval by the Board.

— Ensuring we meet the milestones for our key programmes
with a priority to focus on our customers, target revenue
growth and deliver enhanced returns to shareholders.

— Chairing the Executive Management team.

— Mr Suriis the Board sponsor for environmental and social
governance, community investment, and other corporate
social responsibility matters, as well as having overall
responsibility for Health and Safety.

The Chief Financial Officer
Tony Bates

He is responsible for:

— The leadership and management of the Company
according to the strategic direction set by the Board.

— Leading the global finance function and oversees
the relationship with the investment community.

— Ensures effective reporting procedures and controls
are in place.

Number of scheduled Board meetings held

and meeting attendance in.2020. Percentage.
Meetings attendance
Rupert Pearce 4/4 100%
Tony Bates 4/4 100%
Alison Horrocks 4/4 100%

The Directors noted above are those who served
on the Board during 2020.
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The Company Secretary
Alison Horrocks

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Board

and in doing so she:

~ Sures'that all Directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The right balance of skills.

Directors' report

CEO
Rajeev Suri

Background and relevant experience

Rajeev was appointed as Inmarsat’s Chief Executive Officer
in March 2021. He joined Inmarsat from Nokia, where he was
most recently President and Chief Executive Officer. From
2009 to 2014 Rajeev was Chief Executive Officer of Nokia
Solutions and Networks. During his tenure as CEOQ, he
transformed Nokia into a top two telecommunications
infrastructure company, led the consolidation of the sector
from ten to three major players, positioned Nokia as a leader
in a world connected by 5G and shaped by increasing
digitalisation and automation. Under his leadership, Nokia
acquired the netwaorks businesses of Siemens, Motorola,
Alcatel-Lucent, including the famed Bell Labs, successfully
expanded into enterprise vertical markets, created the
world's leading standalone telecom software business,
significantly grew the annual recurring revenue patent
licensing business and engineered the return of the Nokia
brand to mobile phones. Rajeev has lived and worked in the
Middle East, Asia, Africa and Europe. He was a Commissioner
of the United Nations Broadband Commission, Co-Chair of
the digitalisation task force for the B20 and member of
various digital and healthcare committees at the World
Economic Forum. Rajeev was a member of the Chinese
Premier's Global CEO Council from 2014 to 2020, a recipient
of China’s Marco Polo award; the highest honour awarded

to an international business person from the Chinese
government. Rajeev is an engineering graduate in
Electronics and Communications and has been awarded

an Honorary Doctorate by Manipal University.

CFO
Tony Bates

Background and relevant experience

Tony previously held the roles of Group CFO of Yell Group Plc
(hibu Plc), Group CFO and then COO of Colt Group S.A. and Group
Finance Director at EMI plc. Tony holds a First Class Honours
degree in Management Sciences from the University of
Manchester. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Director and Company Secretary
Alison Horrocks

Background and relevant experience

Alison is Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and is responsible
for Group wide risk management, compliance and corporate
governance. She acts as Company Secretary to the Board
and as Company Secretary to the Board of Connect Bidco
Limited (the Company's parent company) and its
Committees. She is a member of the Executive Management
team and Chairman of the Trustee Company

for the Inmarsat UK pension plans. Alison manages the legal,
regulatory, corporate marketing and communication teams,
as well as our regional teams covering India, China and
Russia. Previously Alison was Group Company Secretary of
International Public Relations plc, a worldwide public
relations company, for 11 years prior to joining Inmarsat.
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ENGAGING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS: STAKEHOLDER STATEMENT

The Directors understand their responsibility to promote the success of the
business in accordance with section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (section 172).

Effective engagement with stakeholders at Board level

and throughout the business is essential to enable us to meet
our strategic purpose and our business objectives. The Board
is aware that actions and decisions taken by the Company
can impact our stakeholders and the communities in which
we operate.

The Company Secretary provides support and guidance at
Board meetings to ensure sufficient consideration is given
in Board discussions to the impact of Board decisions on
stakeholder groups and these are documented where
appropriate. The relevance of each stakeholder group may

change depending on the issue under discussion, so the
Board seeks to understand the needs and priorities of
the relevant stakeholders throughout the decision process.

The Board has undertaken a review of its key stakeholders.

On pages 12 to 15 of our Strategic Report, we set out our
principal stakeholders and how we engage with them. The
Board engages directly with our investors and employees
and through the CEO who is a Board Director, with customers,
suppliers or local communities. The detailed engagement

is carried out by our CEOQ, the Executive Management team,
as well as our commercial and functional business teams.

2020 ESG REPORT

Our 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report is avaitable on our inmarsat.com website and
contains additional information on our non financial risk
management. Taking account of our responsibilities
socially and environmentally is important in the way we
operate and interact with all our stakeholders. This way
of working creates value for all our stakeholders.

A-A_cm\_mma(moiioi 2020
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Principal decisions

We consider our 'principal decisions’ as decisions and
discussions, which are material or strategic to the Group and
those that are significant to any of our stakeholder groups.

The following are examples of how the Board considered
the interests of its key stakeholders when making decisions:

Case study

Debt financing accession

In connection with the acquisition of the Company in
December 2019 by Connect Bidco Limited, Connect Bidco
had negotiated the provision of certain financing facilities.
The Board made a decision to accede to the terms of the
debt financing documents. In doing so, the Board balanced
the repayment obligations, interest rates and fees against
the provision of financing and liquidity to ensure the
business was able to materially deliver its plans and strategy
for the benefit of our customers and partners. The Board
believed the accession to the finance documents supported
the strategic ambitions of the business by maintaining
financial strength to meet the needs of the future.

Case study

Culture

The Board has ultimate oversight of the development

of the people and culture programme to contribute to

a sustainable business and ensure this is delegated to

the CEO and his management team to deliver throughout
the Company. During 2020 the focus due to the impact of
Covid-19 has been on the physical, mental and financial
wellbeing of employees to boost resilience, prevent burnout
and maintain 'business as usual' as far as possible, albeit in
a new homeworking environment. The Board is supportive
of new flexible working patterns, the implementation of
options designed to tackle meeting and email overload
and the use of social and collaborative platforms designed
to create space for employees to think and work differently.
The Board is supportive of opportunities for employees to
give back to the community and support STEM initiatives.
We also created virtual work experience opportunities for
our employees' chitdren. By fostering an enviranment where
employees are supported, this altows them to have

a balance in their work/personal lives. This has meant our
engaged workforce has continued to move the business
forward and operate efficiently which has benefitted all

our stakeholder groups.

"The Board is supportive of new
flexible working patterns, the
iImplementation of options designed
to tackle meeting and email
overload and the use of social and
collaborative platforms designedto
create space foremployeestothink
and work differently.”
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Forthe year ended 31December 2020.

The Directors submit their report and the audited financial statements
foriInmarsat Group Holdings Ltd (the ‘Company’ or together with its
subsidiaries, the '‘Group’) forthe year ended 31 December 2020.

2020 performance and response to Covid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic materially disrupted the Group's
performance in 2020, with revenues more than $100m lower
than in 2019 (excluding Ligado and Rignet), reflecting stress in
Aviation but good performance in the rest of the business.
Robust, fast action coupled with lower hardware revenues
resulted in substantially lower costs and capex for 2020, with
the business generating $113.3m of net cashflows despite
Covid-19 and without the overall strategic direction of the
Group being compromised. We expect that the Group's strong
market positions, diverse customer base, focus on mission
critical services and tight management will continue to support
the Group through this difficult period, enabling the business to
thrive as the global economy recovers.

During 2020, an amendment to the Cooperation Agreement
was signed with Ligado under which Ligado paid $700m to
Inmarsat in October 2020. The Group has recognised $33.3m
of revenue from Ligado and will not begin revenue recognition
of the $700m receipt until the earlier of January 2023 or the
receipt of further payments from Ligado.

In response to Covid-19, material actions were taken during
2020, and further actions will be taken as necessary in order
to maintain business continuity and provide sufficient liquidity
to the organisation. Whilst the impact of Covid-19 on the
Group remains a near term uncertainty, Management and the
Board remain confident in the strategy and the long term
future of the Group.
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Responsibility statement
The Responsibility Statement made by the Board regarding
the preparation of the financial statements is set out on page 59.

Business review, strategic report and future developments
A description of the Company'’s business model, strategy,
and factors likely to affect the Group’s future developments
are incorporated into this Report by reference. They are set
out in the Strategic Report on pages 8 to 39.

Post-balance sheet events
Details of the post-balance sheet events are given in note 35
of the financial statements.

Change in accounting policies

During 2020, the Group adopted IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
for its hedge accounting activities. This is accounted for
prospectively and its impact is detailed within note 31.

No other changes to the Group’s accounting policies has
occurring during the current period.

Results and dividends

A 2020 financial review is provided in the Strategic Report,
along with the results for the year being shown in the
Consolidated Income Statement on Page 64.

No dividends were declared during the year.

Directors

A full list of the individuals who were Directors of the Company
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
on Page 49.
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Indemnities and insurance

Directors' and Officers’ insurance cover has been established
for all Directors and Officers to provide cover against their
reasonable actions on behalf of the Company. In accordance

. with our Articles of Association and to the extent permitted

by the laws of England and Wales, Directors, the Company
Secretary and certain employees who serve as directors

of subsidiaries at the Group's request have been granted
indemnities from the Company in respect of liabilities incurred
as a result of their office. Neither our indemnity nor the
insurance provides cover in the event that a Director is proven
to have acted dishonestly or fraudulently. No amount has
been paid under any of these indemnities during the year.

Conflicts of interest

The Company has in place procedures for managing conflicts
of interest. During the year there were no proposed
transactions that gave rise to a conflict.

Branches
The Group has activities operated through many jurisdictions.

Going concern

Despite the uncertain economic outlook related to Covid-19,
the Directors continue to believe that the Group has a
robust business model and good medium to long-term
growth prospects.

The Group responded robustly and quickly to the challenges
created by the spread of the virus and the impact in 2020 was
mainly concentrated in Aviation, as the pandemic significantly
reduced global air traffic and installation activity. Other
business units were less affected, reflecting the benefit of our
diversified business model and B2B and B2G mission critical
supplier status. Material actions have been and will be taken as
appropriate to maintain business continuity and provide
sufficient liquidity to the organisation.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has $2116.7m of liquid
resources (Cash: $932m, undrawn RCF: $700m and an undrawn
intercompany facility $484.5m) and an expectation that the
Group will generate positive free cash flow and reduce leverage
over the medium to long term.

Whilst the economic outlook remains very uncertain due to the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group shall continue to operate as a going
concern for the foreseeable future. Consequently, the Company
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
2020 consolidated financial statements.

ESG assessment

Inmarsat has always understood the importance of wider
corporate responsibility and ensuring we act in an ethical
manner, taking account of our responsibilities - socially and
environmentally. We have refreshed our view of our non-
financial risks through conducting an ESG assessment.

We also continue to disclose our Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities in accordance with the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI). We have produced a standalone GRI
Report which includes the results of our 2020 ESG assessment
and how we have continued to create value and monitor
progress against each of our material topics. Our GRI Report
can be found on our Inmarsat.com website.

"Despile Lhe uncertain economic

outlook related to Covid-19,

the Directors continue to believe
that the Group has a robust
business model and good medium
to long-term growth prospects.”
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Report of the Directors
(continued)

Our people

2020 has been a challenging year for all organisations and
Inmarsat is no exception. Our people agenda has been
dominated by the Covid-19 global pandemic and responding
to it. Culture and values are truly tested in times of crisis and
Inmarsat's culture and values have led our response to the
pandemic. Alongside setting out a clear framework and
approach that prioritised keeping our people safe and
protecting our key services for our customers, we have also
taken advantage of the pandemic to continue to progress
our high performance culture agenda which forms a key
element of our company strateqgy.

Covid-19 response

Our first priority for 2020 was to protect our people and
support them to keep safe and provide strong leadership
through the crisis. A central Covid-19 risk management team
has been guiding our response and supporting our people
to adapt to the crisis and challenges it raised. This included
the swift move to a fully remote working model for all but
our critical key workers, to supporting our employees as
they navigated and adapted to additional home schooling
and caring responsibilities that global lockdowns have
driven. We have adapted our workspaces across our offices
to incorporate appropriate government guidance and
practices to keep our employees safe and offered tools,
best practice, management support and advice to those
working remotely.

Employee wellbeing followed the initial response as a key
priority for the remainder of 2020, and we have focused on
delivering a comprehensive package of support and
information to colleagues throughout the year across the
three pillars of our wellbeing strategy - mental, physical and
financial health. Activity has included continued access to
our global employee assistance programme, creation of
bespoke online learning and virtual wellbeing activities,
additional financial support for home office equipment,

a wellbeing hub and a regular newsletter.
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In many locations, such as the UK and U.S., we operate flexible
benefits plans which allow employees to select the benefits
which meet their personal or family circumstances. We have
a comprehensive programme to support employee wellbeing
(physical, mental, and financial). Our global employee
assistance programme operates 24/7 to provide employees with
critical support around mental and emotional wellbeing. We
also encourage employee financial wellbeing through access to
financial education and advice.

Communications have also been fundamental to our
response, keeping our people informed and engaged. These
updates reinforce government guidance on keeping safe
and well, to accessing wellbeing support, to understanding
the impact on our business. Listening has been critical,

and throughout the year we have worked with our global
employee representative bodies to seek feedback on

our activities and adjust and amend support as required.

Adapting our people agenda to our new environment

Alongside dealing with the crisis response we have also

had to adapt execution and detivery of our regular people
activities. We have reviewed our core Learning and Development
offering, much of which was delivered face to face, and swiftly
moved to adapt to a virtual offering. Our Corporate induction,
including High Performance Culture familiarisation which is
central in educating our new employees on our culture and
values, have become a global virtual offering and we have
received positive feedback from those who have joined during
office lockdowns on how this still supports them feeling
connected to colleagues and the business. Similarly our bespoke
Senior Leadership Team (SLT) Development programme has been
adapted to be delivered as a virtual monthly SLT Thought
Leadership series.

As a market leading technology company, we take our role
in nurturing STEM in the next generation very seriously,

and have a comprehensive early years outreach programme.
This too, has been refreshed for our current environment
and going forwards our educational engagement will

be delivered virtually, enabling us to expand reach

and participation globally.

"Our first priority for 2020 has

beento protect our people and
keep them safe and lead them
throughthe crisis. Acentral
Covid-19 risk management team
has been quiding our response and
supporting our people to adapt to
the crisis and challenges it raised.”
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Unique opportunity to accelerate culture

Whilst there have been challenges, 2020 has also
brought opportunities for us to accelerate our employee
value proposition.

Diversity & Inclusion (D&I)

Inmarsat embraces diversity and prides itself on its Diversity
and Inclusion strategy, creating opportunities for all and
making Inmarsat a place where everyone can bring their
whole self to work. This year has seen us accelerate our
D&I work with the creation of a BAME Employee network,
sponsored by our CEQ, that will help us drive initiatives to
increase representation. This new network complements
our Women's, LGBT+ and Veteran's networks that already
exist across the organisation. Additional information on
D&l is available in our 2020 ESG report.

Flexible working

2020 has also accelerated our move to further employees’
work life balance and support a more flexible working
environment. Creating an environment where our people

can thrive and baltance their work and lives, has always been
important to us - this year's swift move to full remote working
has brought invatuable experience and learnings to help
shape our flexible working policy. We have developed a more
structured ‘ways of working' proposal, which we will launch
early in 2021.

Gender Pay Gap
Inmarsat's Gender Pay Gap report is available on our Inmarsat.
com website and also in our 2020 ESG Report.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
wellbeing, health and safety for its employees, customers,
visitors, contractors and anyone affected by its business
activities. During 2020, we continued to work closely with
our subsidiary companies to harmonise health and safety
best practice. Rajeev Suri, our CEO, is the Director designated
for health and safety matters at Board level. We have
employees whose objectives are to ensure health and safety
is managed across the Company.

We promote wellbeing through a wide variety of
programmes and we know that good mental and physical
health contributes to better decision making, greater
productivity and higher levels of employee satisfaction.
There has been significant focus on health and safety
across the Group during the Covid-19 period including
advice and support to staff on completing their own basic
display screen equipment assessments at home.

Our goal is to encourage strong leadership in championing
the importance of a common-sense approach to health and
safety in the workplace. We recognise the need to provide
a safe working environment for our employees, contractors
and any visitors, especially so when there is a return to the
office after Covid-19.

Environmental performance and strategy

We recognise the impact that our products and services may
have on climate change and are working to review how we can
reduce our environmental impacts and our carbon footprint.
As an example across the broader satellite industry, satellite
launch companies are reviewing how they become more
accountable for carbon generation through innovative new
satellite launch techniques. We will work together with our
industry partners, including our launch providers to see how
we can improve techniques for our future launches and
reduce the footprint of our products.

Our environmental impacts include the use of natural
resources, the consumption of energy and water, the
production of a variety of waste, as well as staff and visitor
travel. We have provided further details of our objectives

for how we manage our environmental activities in our 2020
ESG Report which can be found on our website. The following
information summarises our emissions performance over

the year. This year we have expanded our reporting boundary
to cover the relevant Scope 3 categories as per the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol. During 2021, we aim to calculate and submit our
science-based target covering our Scope 1, 2 and 3 aligned to
a1.5" temperature scenario.

Our goals

©)
&

Improving
health & safety

Promote
wellbeing

Encourage strong
leadership
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Report of the Directors
(continued)

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

This section has been prepared in accordance with our
regulatory obligation to report GHG emissions pursuant
to The Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations
2018 which implement the UK Government's policy

on Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting.

The table below shows our greenhouse gas emissions
for the years ended 31 Becember 2018 to 2020. Our
emissions have been independently verified to the

IS0 14064-3 standard to ensure continuous improvement
of our GHG reporting. This verification statement can be
found on our website and within our 2020 ESG Report.

Methodology

We quantify and report our organisational GHG emissions
according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol. Consumption
data has been collated by our sustainability consultant,
Carbon Intelligence, and has been converted into CO2
equivalents using the UK Government 2020 Conversion
Factors-for Company Reporting and the International
Energy Agency international electricity conversion factors
in order to calculate emissions from corresponding
activity data.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the GHG
Protocol's Scope 2 Guidance; we have therefore reported
both a location-based and market-based Scope 2
emissions figure. The Scope 2 market-based figure reflects
emissions from electricity purchasing decisions that
Inmarsat has made. When quantifying emissions using
the market-based approach we have used a supplier
specific emissions factor where possible. If these factors
were unavailable, a residual mix emissions factor was then
used, and as a finat alternative the location-based grid
emissions factor was used.

Performance Summary

1%

Decrease

Scope 1and 2 emissions
since 2018
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14%

Decrease

Emissions intensity
since 2019

The table opposite shows our total emissions and our
emissions as a metric for the year ended 31 December 2020
using the two different Scope 2 accounting methodologies.

Performance

We operate in 38 locations with a combined workforce of
approximately 1,900 staff. In 2019 we updated our carbon
targets to ensure they are aligned with the latest climate
science and in line with the UK's commitment under the UN
Paris Agreement, thereby contributing to the global effort
to prevent the worst consequences of climate change.

As part of our journey towards setting our science-based
target, in 2019, we set and internally approved a Scope 1and 2
reduction target of 29% in Scope 1and 2 emissions by 2025
relative to our 2018 baseline.

Further to this we are working to set a science-based target
covering our Scope 3 emissions in 2021 and to submit these
for validation by the Science-based Target Initiative. As a key
step towards setting a Scope 3 target, last year we undertook
a Scope 3 scoping and footprint exercise to understand our
emissions hotspots within our value chain. We are pleased to
be able to share the results of this work and for the first time
report on our full Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in line with the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

In line with our current targets, we have decreased our Scope 1
and 2 emissions by 31% since 2018 (using the market-based
Scope 2 accountancy method). Our emissions intensity has
decreased by 14% from 51 (2019) to 4.4 (2020) tC02e/FTE
(using the market-based Scope 2 accounting approach).

We have naturally seen a decline in our energy consumption
due to our office shutdowns during the Covid-19 pandemic.
Similarly, we had a 25% decrease in our Scape 3 emissions
from 2019. This was largely due to the effects of the pandemic
on our business and on business travel. We also saw a reduction in
our employee commuting given the majority of our workers were
working from home for the majority of 2020. We have calculated

40%

of electricity

From renewable
sources
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the emissions related to homeworking which is included within ~ estimated as immaterial and are thus excluded from our

the employee commuting category as best practice. Despite GHG disclosure. Emissions for all significant sites have been

the Covid-19 impact on our business, we still saw a high tevel included in our calculations. GHG sources that constitute

of product sales. The emissions related to our products such our operational boundary for the 2020 reporting period are:

as logistics, product energy use and disposal of products has

therefore remained relatively consistent with prior years. — Scope 1: Natural gas combustion within boilers, gas oil

combustion within generators, road fuel combustion within

Reporting boundaries and limitations owned and leased vehicles, and fugitive refrigerants from

As part of the Scope 3 scoping exercise, we visited our air-conditioning equipment.

organisational boundary and assessed its completeness — Scope 2: Purchased electricity consumption for our own use.

and accuracy. We consolidate our organisational boundary — Scope 3: Purchased goods & services, capital goods,

according to the operational control approach and have fuel and energy related activities (FERA), upstream

adopted a materiality threshold of 5% for GHG reporting transportation & distribution, waste, business travel,

purposes. As a result, we have chosen to include our Land employee commuting, upstream leased assets

Earth Stations within our Scope 1and 2 boundary. Our Land (related to launch vehicles), use of sold goods and

Earth Stations, whilst many are operated by a third party, meet end of life emissions. A further description of each of these

the criteria under the GHG Protocol of operational control categories can be found in our 2020 ESG Report available

and therefore we have chosen to include them within our on our inmarsat.com website.

2020 reporting for completeness and transparency. Our — In some cases, where data is missing, values have been

methodology of emissions from locations with fewer than estimated using either extrapolation of available data

15 staff on-site remains the same as these are still reasonably or data from the previous year as a proxy.

Greenhouse gas emissions (tCO,e) 2020 2019 2018

Scope 1’ Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities (Scope 1) 868 1528 862

Scope 2 (location-based)'  Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for our own use 1,381 12,759 14,053

Scope 2 (market-based)’ Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchasedfor our own use 7452 7953 1,213
Total Scope 1and 2 emissions (location-based) 12,249 14,288 14,915
Total Scope 1and 2 emissions (market-based) 8,320 9481 12,075

Emissions intensity tCO2e per full-time equivalent (‘'FTE’) employee (location-based) 61 6.9 76

Emissions intensity tCO2e per full-time equivalent (‘'FTE') employee (market-based) 4.4 51 61

Scope 3 Purchased goods and services 210,774 265,220 331,410
Capital Goods ’ 5,694 13,561 12133
Fuel-and-energy-related activities? 2,623 2996 2,246
Upstream Transportation and Distribution 1,670 2,038 2,358
Business travel 1,790 10,660 15,344
Waste 16 78 13
Water 27 21 19
Employee Commuting (incl. homeworking) 997 1536 1533
Upstream Leased Asset - 930 -
Use of sold goods 191 17 18
End of Life treatment of products 3 5 6
Total Scope 3 emissions 223,784 297161 364,617
Gross Scope 1, 2 and 3 (location-based) 236,033 31,449 379532
Gross Scope 1, 2 and 3 (market-based) 232704 306,642 376,692

1 2019 and 2018 emissions have been restated to include additional sites included in 2020 to allow for accurate comparison.
Emissions from the consumption of electricity outside the UK and Scope 2 emissions calculated using the market-based approach
using supplier specific emission factors are calculated and reported in tCO,. The emissions intensity calculation is based on a figure
of 1,881 employees (including homewaorkers) in 2020, 1,849 employees in 2019, 1,842 employees in 2018 and 1,737 employees in 2017.

To meet our requirements under the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting obligations, our emissions, included in the above totals,
that relate to the UK equal 583tCO,e Scope 1and 1,619tCO,e Scope 2. ’
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Reportoftheljwectors

(continued)

Financial statements

Energy consumption (MWh) 2020 2019 2018

UK Rest of world Total UK  Rest of world Total UK Rest of world Total
Electricity 6,945 26,500 33,445 7632 27426 35,058 7773 28,217 35,990
Fuels 3168 939 4107 3,235 3,046 6,282 3102 3439 6,542

1 2019 and 2018 emissions have been restated to include additional sites included in 2020 to allow for accurate comparison.

Energy efficiency

Due to changed business priorities throughout the reporting
period as a result of Covid-19, we have not been able to
expand the number of low emissions sources of electricity
across the Group. We have however maintained the same
renewables contracts as the last reporting period. Overall,
40% of the electricity we use is from renewable sources.

In London, we completed a significant refurbishment project
at the end of 2019 and energy savings have been made during
the reporting period. This has been significant as London is
our principal site. We have also reviewed and implemented
energy saving initiatives in London, Sydney, Reston and Dubai
such as replacing site and office lighting with LEDs. in our
Auckland office, we replaced our 12-year old uninterruptible
power supply (UPS) system. This has achieved a significant
enerqgy saving of approximately 96kW per day. Further, given
the move to working from home during the pandemic, our
operations team has reviewed building management systems
and implemented shutdowns on non-essential systems such

as air-conditioning systems and enabling lighting automation.

Further information on our energy efficiency initiatives
are detailed in our 2020 ESG Report available on our
inmarsat.com website.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Details of principal risks and uncertainties are provided
on pages 30 to 39.
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Financial risk management

Details of the financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group, including hedging policies and exposure
of the entity to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow risk are given in notes 3 and 31to the consolidated
financial statements.

Research and development

The Group continues to invest in new services and technology
necessary to support its activities through research and
development programmes. :

Political donations

During the period, no political donations were made.

It remains the policy of the Company not to make political
donations or incur political expenditure.

Disclosure of information to auditor

As far as each of the Directors are aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware and the Directors have taken all the steps that ought
to have been taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Deloitte LLP, having expressed their willingness to act,
were appointed auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Alison Horrocks FCIS

Company Secretary
14 May 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with international accounting
standards in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the 1ASB. The
Directors have also chosen to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company
law the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that period.

in preparing the parent company financial statements,

the Directors are required to:

— Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently.

— Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent.

— State whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framewaork has been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements.

— Prepare the financial statements.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International

Accounting Standard 1requires that Directors:

— Properly select and apply accounting policies.

— Present information, including accounting policies,
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information.

— Provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements of IFRS are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

— Make an assessment of the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

— The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole.

— The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

— The Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company's performance, business modet and strategy.

By order of the Board

Tony Bates
Director
14 May 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020.

2019

2020 (restated)’
Note $m $m
Revenue 5 12721 1,396
Employee benefit costs 7 (279.6) (325.2)
Network and satellite operations costs (156.2) (167.2)
Impairment of financial assets 18 (16.8) (7.6)
Other operating costs ’ (161.6) (271.0)
Own work capitalised 36.2 42.0
Total net operating costs (578.0) (729.0)
EBITDA 6941 6671
Depreciation and amortisation (442.6) (485.0)
Loss on disposal of assets (27 (1.8)
Impairment of assets (10.5) (12.4)
Share of profit of associates 16 4.2 4.0
Operating profit 6 2431 1719
Financing income 3.8 9.6
Financing costs (103.4) (128.5)
Change in fair value of derivative? 0.2 (255.2)
Net financing costs 9 (99.4) (3741)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1437 (202.2)
Taxation charge 10 (54.5) (22.2)
Profit/(loss) for the period 89.2 (224.4)
Attributable to:
Equity holders 88.4 (2251)
Non-controlling interest? 0.8 0.7
1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 The change in fair value of derivative relates to the mark-to-market valuation of the conversion liability and the loss on redemption
of Convertible Bond originally due 2023. The convertible bond was fully settled in 2020.
3 Nen-controlling interest relates to the Group’s 51% charcholding in Inmarsat Selutionc ehf.
Forthe year ended 31 December 2020.
2019
2020 (restated)’
Note $m $m
Profit/(loss) for the period 89.2 (224.4)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the Income Statement:
Foreign exchange translation differences (0.2 (0.2)
Gains on cash flow hedges on foreign exchange forward contracts 26 0.8 0.4
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the Income Statement:
Re-measurement of pension assets and liabilities 28 (29.8) (4.6)
Tax credited directly to other comprehensive income 10 5.5 0.8
Other comprehensive loss for the period, net of tax (23.7) (3.6)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax 65.5 (228.0)
Attributable to:
Equity holders 647 (228.2)
Non-controlling interest 0.8 0.2

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in nate 36.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2020. Asat As at Asat
31December 31December 31December
2020 2019 (restated)' 2019
Note $m $m $m
Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 31951 3,294.2 3,2872
Intangible assets 14 844.8 858.6 858.6
Investments 16 231 211 211
Right of use assets . 15 M7 51.8 51.8
Finance lease receivable 0.6 - -
Other receivables 8 71 344 344
Deferred tax asset 23 26.2 30.5 46.7

41386  4,290.6 4,299.8

Current assets ’
Cash and cash equivalents 17 244.0 1311 1311

Short-term deposits . 7 688.0 - -
Restricted cash 17 70 09 09
Trade and other receivables 18 256.8 294.8 314.6
Finance lease receivable 0.2 - -
Inventories 19 369 39.2 39.2
Current tax assets 23 3.5 45 45
1,236.4 470.5 490.3
Total assets . 5,375.0 47611 4,7901
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 99 9979 9979
Trade and other payables 21 1186.8 5438 531.6
Provisions 22 15.6 4.2 4.2
Current tax liabilities 23 186.3 194.5 1945
Derivative financial instruments : 31 — 09 09
Lease obligations 15 1.2 1.0 1.0

1,409.8 1,752.3 1,7401

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings ' 20 25056 16433 1,6433
Other payables 2 178 15.8 15.8
Provisions 22 59 6.5 6.5
Deferred tax liabilities ’ 23 275.6 240.2 240.0
Derivative financial instruments 31 - - -
Lease obligations 15 43.4 514 51.4
2,848.3 1,957.2 19570
Total liabilities ~ 4,2581 37095 3,6971
Net assets 116.9 1,051.6 1,093.0
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares : 25 0.3 0.3 0.3
Share premium 7721 7721 7721
Hedge and other reserves (1.3) (2.3) (2.3
Retained earnings 344.8 280.5 3219
Equity attributable to shareholders 1Ms9 1,050.6 1,092.0
Non-controlling interest ) 1.0 1.0 1.0
Total equity 11169 1,056 1,093.0

e e —— . — e —— . s = ——r— - e = . e— e - ——— ————-

1 The comp;ative information has been restated. ;\-s—ufnmary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group on pages 64 to 67 were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 May 2021
and were signed on its behalf by

=%

Tony Bates
Director
14 May 2021 Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 65
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 31 December 2020.

Share Share option Hedge Retained
Share capital  premium reserve reserve' Other?  earnings* NCP? Totat
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Balance at 1 January 2019 03 7678 MNM38 (4.0) (29) 4610 0.8 1,336.8
Prior period restatement® - - - — —  (20.7) - -
Balance at 1 January 2019 03 7678 MN38 (4.0) (29) 440.3 08 1,3161
Share-based payments - - 258 — - (1.2) - 246
Transfer of SBP reserve to retained earnings - — (139.6) - - 1396 - -
Dividend declared - - - - — (55.6) (0.5 (561)
Issue of share capital - 43 - - — - - 43
Capital contribution - - — - 2.0 - — 20
IFRIC 23 Adjustment - - - - - {137) - (137
Losses on cash flow hedges capitalised to tangible assets - - - 24 - - - 24
Comprehensive Income:
(Loss)/Profit for the period - - - - - (2251 0.7 (224.9)
OCI - before tax - - - 0.4 (0.2 (4.6) - 4.9
OCI - tax - - - - - 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 31 December 2019 03 7721 - (1.2) (1) 280.5 1.0 1,051.6
Balance at 1 January 2020 03 7721 - (1.2) (1)  280.5 1.0 1,051.6
Share-based payments - - 0.2 - — — - 0.2
Transfer of SBP reserve to retained earnings - - 0.2) - - 0.2 - -
Dividend declared - - - - - - (08 (0.8
Loss on cash flow hedges capitalised to tangible assets - - - 0.4 - - - 0.4
Comprehensive Income:
Profit for the year - - - - - 88.4 0.8 89.2
OCI - before tax - - — 0.8 (0.2) (29.8) - (292
OCI - tax - - - - - 55 - 55
Balance at 31 December 2020 0.3 7722 - - (1.3) 3448 10 11169

1 The Group adopted IFRS 9 for hedge accounting during 2020, refer to note 26.

2 The‘other’ reserve relates to ordinary shares held by the employee share trust debit of $2.4m (2019: debit of $2.4m), the currency reserve
debit of $nil (2019: debit of $1.3m), the revaluation reserve debit of $0.9m (2019: credit of $0.6m) and capital contribution reserve credit of
$2.0m (2019: credit $2.0m). The capital contribution made in 2019 relates to a cash compensation payment made to employees for the early

termination of SAYE schemes upon acquisition.

w
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Non-controlling interest ('NCI’) refers to the Group’s 51% shareholding in Inmarsat Solutions ehf.
4 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2020.

2020

2019
(restated)’

Note $m $m
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 14046 7347
Interest received 22 8.4
Tax paid (14.6) (3.0)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,392.2 7401
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (190.4) (318.6)
Additions to intangible assets (61.6) (72.6)
Own work capitalised (359) (427)
Net Investment in short-term deposits (688.0) 145.7
Net cash used in investing activities (975.9) (287.6)
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid relating to minority interests (0.6) (56.7)
Repayment of borrowings (1,279.7) (930.9)
Drawdown of borrowings 278.0 -
Interest paid (159.9) (123.8)
Proceeds from issue of related party financing 872.2 6531
Proceeds from capital contribution - 14
Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease obligations (10.6) 109y
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - 43
Other financing activities (2.4) (2.9)
Net cash used in financing activities (303.0) (465.0)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13.3 (12.5)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the period 1311 143.2
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 133 (12.5)
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents (0.9) 0.4
At end of the period (net of bank overdrafts) 2440 1311
Comprising:
Cash at bank and in hand 2440 1311
Cash and cash equivalents 2440 1311
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 2440 1311

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements

1. General information

Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited, previously known as
Inmarsat plc (the ‘Company’ or, together with its subsidiaries,
the ‘Group’) is a private company limited by shares
incorporated in the United Kingdom and domiciled in England
and Wales. The address of its registered office is 99 City Road,
London EC1Y 1AX, United Kingdom.

The ultimate controlling party and parent of the Company is
Connect Topco Limited which is an entity based in Guernsey.
The smallest and largest group into which the results of the
Company are consolidated is headed by Connect Topco
Limited. The address of its registered office is Redwood House,
St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, GY1 1WA, Guernsey.

Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited, acting as a parent
undertaking, has provided guarantee to the following
subsidiaries under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006:

Inmarsat Solutions Limited (company number: 06135635).

— Inmarsat Leasing (Two) Limited (company number: 04103914).

— Inmarsat Finance Ill Limited (company number: 06138307).

— Inmarsat Services Limited (company number: 04379050).

— Inmarsat Solutions Global Limited (company number:
04041428).

— Inmarsat Global Xpress Limited (company number:
07341228).

— Inmarsat Holdings Limited (company number: 04917504).

— Inmarsat Investments Limited (company number:
04886096).

— Europasat Limited (company number: 06001119).

— Inmarsat Group Limited (company number: 04886115).

— Inmarsat Maritime Ventures Limited (company

number: 12584716).

2. Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been applied consistently to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006 and
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by

the IASB. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value,

as described later in these accounting policies.
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Restatement

During 2020, the Group concluded that four items require
adjustment. These items relate to the prior period. Appropriate
disclosures have been inctuded in line with IFRS and further
details are provided in note 36.

Going concern

Despite the uncertain economic outlook related to Covid-19,
the Directors continue to believe that the Group has a robust
business model and good medium to long-term growth prospects.

The Group has responded robustly and quickly to the
challenges created by the spread of the virus and the impact
in 2020 was mainly concentrated in Aviation, as the pandemic
significantly reduced global air traffic and installation activity.
Other business units were less affected, reflecting their strong
market positions and B2B and B2G mission critical supplier
status. Material actions have been and will be taken as
appropriate to maintain business continuity and provide
sufficient liquidity to the organisation. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has $1,632m of liquid resources (Cash:
$932m, undrawn RCF; $700m) and an expectation that the
Group will generate positive free cash flow and reduce
leverage over the medium to long term.

In order to confirm that the business should adopt the

going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements for 2020, the Board and Management have
considered a number of possible scenarios and their impact
on future revenues, EBITDA and liquidity. These scenarios
consider a slowdown in revenue across the business,
particutarly IFC Aviation revenue, the latest market
information for each business unit and the impact of actions
that have been and can be taken to improve financial
performance. The evaluation uses the most recently approved
budget and long-range business plan and considers future
distributions to shareholders as discussed in note 35 of the
annual report, the maturity profile of the existing debt
facilities and the $700 mitlion undrawn revolving credit facility
as discussed in note 20 of the annual report. Under all
scenarios there continues to be sufficient headroom to the
Financial Performance Covenant under the debt agreements.

Whilst the economic outlook remains very uncertain due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, following this analysis, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Group shall continue
to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future.
Consequently, Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2020
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion of the Group's business activities,
together with factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Strategic and
Directors Reports.
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Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US
Dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company

and most of the Group's subsidiaries. The preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Although these estimates are based
on management'’s best estimate of the amount, event or
actions, the actual results ultimately may differ from these
estimates. Further discussion on these estimates and
assumptions are disclosed in note 4.

Accounting policy changes .

Accounting standards/interpretations adopted by the Group
During 2020, the Group adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
for hedge accounting which has been previously maintained
under the existing accounting guidance in 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Ihstruments: Recognition and Measurement'. This is applied
prospectively and have not had a quantitative impact on the
financial statements with accounting treatment remaining
unchanged. Additional disclosure is detailed within note 31
and the hedge accounting policy section.

New and amended accounting standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective and have not been adopted
by the Group.

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’

IFRS 17 will be effective for periods beginning on or after
1January 2021 and supersedes IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts’,
subject to endorsement by the EU. This will not have a
material impact on the Group.

Amendments to accounting standards that are effective

for the current period

The following standards have all been endorsed by the EU and
are effective for the current period. The Group has considered
all the below amendments and has determined that these

do not have a material impact.

— Amendments to IAS 1and IAS 8: Definition of Material.

— Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards.

— Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combination.

— Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate

. Benchmark Reform.

— Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries, and
incorporate the share of the results of associates using the
equity method of accounting.

The results of subsidiary undertakings established or acquired
during the period are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of establishment or acquisition of
control. The results of subsidiary undertakings disposed of
during the period are included until the date of disposal.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies
used into line with those used by the Group. All transactions,
balances, income and expenses with and between subsidiary
undertakings have been eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries, which consist of the amounts of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the
non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination, are not material to the Group's
financial statements.

Business combinations

When the Group acquires a business, it identifies the assets
and liabilities of the acquiree at the date of acquisition and
measures them at fair value. Only separately identifiable
intangible assets are recognised. Any assets or disposal
groups held for sale at the acquisition date are measured
at fair value less costs to sell. Consideration is the fair value
at the acquisition date of the assets transferred and liabilities
incurred in acquiring the business and includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. Changes in fair value
of contingent consideration after the acquisition date are
recognised in the income statement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred and included in

operating costs.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost as the difference
between the fair value of the consideration for the acquisition
and fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, including
any identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill. If the
assessment of goodwill results in an excess of the fair value
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain is recognised in the income
statement. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units ('CGUs’) that are expected

to benefit from the business combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company and most of the
Group's subsidiaries, as well as the presentation currency

of the Group, is US Dollar. This is as the majority of operational
transactions and financing are denominated in US Dollars.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
scttlement of transactions and the translation of monotary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
period end exchange rates are recognised in the income
statement line which most appropriately reflects the nature
of the item or transactions.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities of foreign operations
dte Lianslated into the Group's presentalion currency at the
prevailing spot rate at year end. The results of foreign
operations are translated into US Dollars at the average
rates of exchange for the year. Foreign currency translation
differences resulting from consolidating foreign operations
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Revenue

The Group applies the 5 step-model as required by IFRS 15
in recognising its revenues. A contract’s transaction price
is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and
recognised as revenue when, or as, the performance
obligation is satisfied. Revenue is only recognised when
it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or
services to be transferred to the customer.

Mobile satellite communications service revenues result
from ulilisation charges that are recognised as 1evenue uvver
the minimum contract period. The selection of the method
to measure progress towards completion requires
judgement and is based on the nature of the products or
services to be provided. Becausce of control transferring over
time, revenue is recognised based on the extent of progress
towards completion of the performance obligation. Deferred
income attributable to mobile satellite communications
services or subscription fees represents the unearned
balances remaining from amounts received from customers
pursuant to prepaid contracts.

The Group enters into minimum spend contracts with
customers, known as ‘take-or-pay’ contracts, whereby
customers agree to purchase a minimum value of mobile
satellite communications services over a fixed period. Any
unusced portion of the prepaid contracts or the take-or-pay
contracts (‘breakage’) that is deemed highly probable to
occur by the expiry date is estimated at contract inception
and recognised over the contract period in line with the
pattern of actual usage of units by the customer.
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Revenue from the sale of prepaid credit is deferred until

such time as the customer uses the airtime and subsequently
recognised over time. Breakage from prepaid credit deferrals
which is considered highly probable is estimated and
recognised from contract inception. Mobile satellite
communications service revenues from capacity sold are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
contract concerned, which is typically between one and

12 months, unless another systematic basis is deemed

more appropriate.

Revenue from spectrum coordination agreements, is recognised
at a point in time based on standalone selling prices.

Revenue tom service contracts is 1ecognised as the service
is provided over time based on the contract period.

Revenue of terminals and other communication equipment
sold are recognised at the point in time when control is
transferred to the customer. Installation revenues relating
to this are also recognised at a point in time. Revenue from
installation of terminals and other communication
equipment owned by Inmarsat and used in the delivery

of the service to the customer is however recognised over
the contract term.

The Group offers certain products and services as part of
multiple deliverable arrangements. Consistent with all other
contracts, the Group will assess whether the performance
obligations are distinct by considering whether 1) the
customer can benefit from good or service on its own;
ortogether with other readily available resources 2) the good
ur service is distinet in Lhe context of the contract. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation based on its stand-alone selling price relative to
the total of all performance aobligations’ stand-alone selling
prices under the contract.

The nature of the contracts within the Group may give rise to
variable consideration. This is estimated as the most likely
amount based largely on an assessment of the anticipated
performance and all information (historical, current and
forecasted) that is reasonably available and is included in
the transaction price to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue will not occur. Where a contract contains a
significant financing component, the Group adjusts the
transaction price to a present value where the effect of
discounting is decemed to be material. The Group has
adopted the practical expedient whereby it is not required
to adjust the transaction price for the effects of a significant
financing component if, at contract inception, the period
between customer payment and the transfer of goods or
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services is expected to be one year or less. For contracts
with an overall duration greater than one year, the practical
expedient also applies if the period between performance
and payment for that performance is one year or less.

A contract asset or a contract liability will arise when the
performance of either party exceeds the performance of

the other. Contract assets are rights to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the entity has transferred
to a customer when that right is conditional on something
other than the passage of time. Contract liabilities are
obligations to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the entity has received consideration, or for which

an amount of consideration is due to the customer.

These are referred to as deferred income within the Group.

Contract costs to obtain a contract and fulfil a contract are
capitalised and amortised on a systematic basis, consistent
with the pattern of transfer of the goods or services to which
the capitalised cost relates. As a practical expedient, a cost
to obtain contract with a customer will be immediately
expensed if it has an amortisation period of one year or less.

Financing income and financing cost

Financing income comprises interest receivable on funds
invested in short-term deposits and interest on the net
defined benefit and post-employment asset/liability.

Financing costs comprise interest payable and early
settlement premiums on borrowings including the Senior
Notes and Convertible Bonds, accretion of the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds, amortisation of deferred
financing costs and interest on lease liabilities. Finance
charges are recognised in the income statement at the
effective interest rate.

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, including prepaid and accrued
income, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The Group stratifies trade debtors based on internal
credit ratings. The Group calculates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets based on lifetime
expected credit losses under the IFRS 9 simplified approach.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, measured at fair value,
comprises cash balances, deposits held on call with banks,
money market funds and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank overdrafts are shown as current liabilities within
borrowings on the balance sheet.

Short term deposits

Short term deposits, measured at fair value, comprises
deposits held with banks, money market funds and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of four to twelve months.

Financial liabilities and equity

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residuat
interest in the net assets of the Group. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. '

Borrowings

Borrowings, comprising interest-bearing bank loans and
overdrafts, are initially recognised at fair value which equates
to the proceeds received, net of direct transaction and
arrangement costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Finance charges related to borrowings,
including amortisation of direct transaction costs, are
charged to the income statement over the term of the
borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are generally classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has the unconditional right to defer settlement of

the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date,
in which case borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities.

Senior notes and term loan

The Group has issued Senior Notes and two related party loans
with its parent that are included within borrowings, and are
initially recognised at fair value which equates to the
proceeds received, net of direct transaction costs and any
premium or discount. These instruments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Finance charges, including
amortisation of direct transaction costs and any premium or
discount, are recognised in the income statement over the
term of the borrowing at the effective interest rate method.

Net borrowings

Net borrowings consists of total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents and short-term deposits. Borrowings exclude
accrued interest and any derivative financial liabilities.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or
speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
the contract is entered into and subsequently measured at
fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement is recognised
in the income statement, except where the derivative is used
to hedge against risks such as fluctuations in interest rates
or foreign exchange rates. The accounting policy for hedging
follows below.

Hedge Accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments in respect of foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges
of net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign
exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge

and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationship meets
all the hedge effectiveness criteria.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option
contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time value of
the option. The changes in the fair value of the aligned time
value of the option are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve.

If the hedged item is transaction-related, the time value is
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects
profit or loss. If the hedged item is time period related, then
the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss on a rational basis - the Group
applies straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified
amounts are recognised in profit or loss in the same line

as the hedged item.

In the prior year the Group early adopted the Phase 1
amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments
to IFRS 9/1AS 39 and IFRS 7. These amendments modify
specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges during the
period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging
instruments are amended as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform.
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement within financing costs.

Where there is a material contract with a foreign currency
exposure, a specific hedge to match the specific risk will be
evaluated. At present the Group only hedges certain foreign
currency milestone payments to Airbus and Thales for the
construction of the |-6 and GX-5 satellites.

Amounts recognised as other comprehensive income are
transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial
income or financial expense is recognised, or when a forecast
sale occurs. When the hedged item is the future purchase

of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amount
recognised as other comprehensive income is transferred

to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset

or liability.

IFRS 9 requires the Group to value and account for foreign
currency basis. Changes in the fair value of currency basis
are recognised as a separate component of equity in other
comprehensive income.

Employeé benefits

Wages, salaries, social security contributions, accumulating
annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
performed by the employees of the Group.

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement date
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it has demonstrably committed

to either terminate the employment of current employees or
to provide termination benefits, as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Cash based LTIP is an executive remuneration scheme for
members of senior management, which runs over three years.
The scheme awards are accrued in the financial statements
for the duration of the award. The accrual is based on the
values assessed for the applicable schemes, taking into
account the duration of the individual scheme, and by
comparing the Company's performance against the criteria
used to award payments. These are recognised as the present
value of the benefit obligation. Where Company'’s
performance does not meet the criteria for the LTIP to be
awarded, no accruals are recognised.
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Taxation

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement as it excludes items of income or expense that

are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current

tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
between assets and liabilities' tax bases and their carrying
amounts (the balance sheet method). Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary deductible differences or tax loss carry
forwards can be utilised. '

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on all taxable temporary
differences except on those:

— Arising from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit.

— Associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
but only to the extent that the Group controls the timing of
the reversal of the differences and it is probable that the
reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is

a tegally enforceable right to set them off, when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
if the Group intends to settle its current tax assets

and liabilities on a net basis.

Uncertain tax positions

The Group’s policy is to comply with all enacted laws in the
relevant jurisdictions in which the Group prepares its tax
returns. However, tax legislation, especially as it applies to
corporate taxes, is not always prescriptive and more than one
interpretation of the law may be possible. In addition, tax
returns in many jurisdictions are filed in arrears a year or more
afterthe end of the acéouniing period to which they relate.
The tax authorities often have a significant period in which

to enguire into these returns after their submission. As a
result, differences in view, or errors in returns, may not come
to light until some time after the initial estimate of tax due

is determined. This necessarily leads to a position of uncertain
tax positions.

Where the Group is aware of significant areas where the law
is unclear and where this has been relied upon in a filing
position of a tax return, or, in an area where different
outcomes and interpretations are possible and may lead

to a different result, the Group provides for the uncertain tax
position. A provision is made when, based on the available
evidence, the Group considers that it is probable that further
amounts will be payable, or a recoverable tax position will
be reduced, and the adjustment can be reliably estimated.
The Group calculates the uncertain tax position using

a single best estimate of the most likely outcome on a
case-by-case basis.

Property, plant and equipment

General |

Property, plant and equipment assets are initially recognised
at cost and subsequently treated under the cost model:

at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Space segment assets

Space segment assets comprise satellite construction,
launch and other associated costs, including ground
infrastructure. Expenditure charged to space segment
projects includes invoiced progress payments, amounts
accrued appropriate to the stage of completion of contract
milestones, external consultancy costs and direct internal
costs. Internal costs, comprising primarily staff costs, are only
capitaliséd when they are directly attributable to the
construction of an asset. Progress payments are determined
on milestones achieved to date together with agreed cost
escalation indices. Deferred satellite payments represent the
net present value of future payments dependent on the future
performance of each satellite and are recognised in space
segment assets when the satellite becomes operational.
Depreciation on space segment assets is recognised over the
life of the satellites from the date they become operational
and are placed into service. The associated liability is stated
at its net present value and included within borrowings.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Assets in the course of construction

These assets are carried at cost with no depreciation charged
whilst in the course of construction. The assets will be
transferred to space segment assets and depreciated over the
life of the satellites or services once they become operationat
and placed into service.

Capitalised borrowing costs

The Group incurs borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Such borrowing costs are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. Capitalisation commences
when the Group begins to incur the borrowing costs and
related expenditures for the asset, and when it undertakes
the activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the historical cost less
residual values, if any, of fixed assets, except land, on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
assets concerned. The Group selects its depreciation rates
and residual values carefully and reviews them annually to
take into account any changes in circumstances or
expectations. When determining useful lives, the principal
factors considered are the expected rate of technological
developments, expected market requirements for the
equipment and the intensity at which the assets are expected
to be used. Any change in useful lives are accounted for
prospectively. The Group also reviews the residual values and
depreciation methods on an annual basis.

Derecognition

An item of property plant or equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefit is expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset, calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,

is recognised in the income statement.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. A grant that relates to an
expense item is recagnised as income on a systematic basis
over the period(s) that the related costs are expensed. A grant
that relates to an asset is deducted from the cost of the
relevant asset, thereby reducing the depreciation charge

over the useful life of the asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise goodwill, trademarks, software,
terminal development and network access costs, spectrum
rights, orbital slots, unallocated launch slots and licences,
customer relationships and intellectual property.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. Intangible assets acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at their fair values as
determined at acquisition date. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Research and development costs
Research costs related to internally generated intangibles
are expensed in the period that the expenditure is incurred.

Development costs are expensed when the costs are incurred
unless it meets criteria for capitalisation under I1AS 38.
Development costs are only capitalised if the technical
feasibility, availability of appropriate technical, financial

and other resources and commercial viability of developing
the asset for subsequent use or sale have been demonstrated
and the costs incurred can be measured reliably. Capitalised
development costs are amortised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of expected future benefit.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised on

a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed on an
annual basis. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life,
such as goodwill, are not amortised but reviewed annually
for impairment.

Impairment reviews
Goodwill is not amortised, but is tested annually
for impairment.
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Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the full carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Indicators of impairment may include changes
in technology and business performance. An asset is tested
for impairment on an individual basis as far as possible to
determine its recoverable amount. Where this is not possible,
assets are grouped and tested for impairment in a cash
generating unit. A cash generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets.

An asset will be impaired if the carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less
costs to sell the asset and the value in use. The impairment
loss will be recognised in the income statement.

In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Subsequent to an impairment loss, if indications exist that an
asset’s recoverable amount might have increased, the
recoverable amount will be reassessed and any impairment
reversal recognised in the income statement. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount will not exceed the depreciated historical cost (what
the carrying amount would have been had there been no
initial impairment loss).

Impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed.

Leases

Contracts which convey the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration are accounted for as leases by the Group. At the
commencement date, the Group, as lessee, recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date, discounted using the rate implicit in the
lease, unless such a rate is not readily determinable, in which
case the incremental borrowing rate is used. The right-of use
asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received and any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
Lease term is determined as the non-cancellable period of

a lease adjusted for any reasonably certain extension or
termination option.

After commencement date, the right-of use asset is
depreciated on a straight-line basis to the end of the lease
term. The lease liability is accounted for by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, and
increasing the carrying amount to reflect the interest on the
lease liability.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

As lessor for operating leases, the Group recognises lease
payments as income. The underlying asset is depreciated on
a straight-line basis over its expected useful life. As lessor for
finance leases, the Group recognises lease receivables at the
amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as ‘held
for sale’ when their carrying values will be recovered through
a sales transaction rather than through continued use. This
classification is subject to meeting the following criteria:

— Management is committed to a plan to sell and the asset
is being actively marketed for sale at a sales price
reasonable in relation to its fair value.

— The asset is available for immediate sale.

— The sale is highly probable to be concluded within
12 months of classification as held for sale.

— Itis unlikely that the plan to sell will be significantly
changéd or withdrawn.

Disposal groups are groups of assets and associated liabilities
to be disposed of together in a single transaction. At the
reporting date they are separately disclosed as current assets
and liahilities on the balance sheet.

When non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale, depreciation and amartisation will cease and the
assets are remeasured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Any resulting impairment loss
is recognised in the income statement, except for assets
treated under the revaluation model, where the adjustment
would first decrease the revaluation reserve before any
excess will be recognised as an impairment loss in the income
statement. Any remainder in the revaluvation reserve will be
released to the income statement on the date of sale.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined by
the weighted average cost method) and net realisable value.
Allowances for obsolescence are recognised in other
operating costs when there is objective evidence that
inventory is obsolete.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to a provision is recognised in the
income statement, except where the obligation is to
dismantle or restore an item of property, plant or equipment,
in which case the amount is capitalised to the cost of the
asset. The capitalised amount is subsequently depreciated
to the income statement over the remaining useful life of
the underlying asset.

Provisions are discounted to a present value at initial
recognition where the effect of discounting is deemed to be
material. Discounted provisions will unwind over time using
the amortised cost method with finance cost recognised in
the income statement. Provision estimates are revised each
repnrting date and adjustments recognised in line with the
provision's initial recognition (either in the income statement
or recognised against the cost of the asset).

Asset retirement obligations

The fair value of legal obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the financial statements in the period in which
the liability is incurred. Upon initial recognition of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation, a corresponding asset
retirement cost is added to the carrying amount of the related
asset, which is subsequently amortised to income over the
remaining useful life of the asset. Following the initial
recognition of an asset retirement obligation, the carrying
amount of the liability is increased for the passage of time by
applying an interest method of allocation to the liability with a

corresponding accretion cost reflected in operating expenses.

Revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are recognised each
period as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
retirement obligation.
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Alternative performance measures

In addition to IFRS measures the Group uses a number of
Alternative Performance Measures ('APMs’) in order to provide
readers with a better understanding of the underlying
performance of the business, and to improve comparability

of our results for the period. More detail on IFRS and APMs can
be found on pages 120 - 121.

3. Financial risk management

Brexit and caronavirus

The United Kingdom withdrew from the EU on 31 January 2020.
There was then a transition period until 31 December 2020.
The transition period formed part of the terms of the
Withdrawal Agreement. During this time UK was no longer a
member state, but was still subject to EU rules and
regulations. The impact of Brexit is not significant in terms

of overall risk on the Company. The Company maintained a
steering group over the course of the year in preparation for
31st December 2020 exit and this group continues to meet

to ensure there remains a focus on ongoing Brexit decisions
taken by the UK Government. The majority of revenue, capital
expenditure and long-term borrowings are denominated in US
Dollars reducing our exposure to a weakening Sterling.
Additional costs incurred from professional fees for legal
advice and work permits for employees were limited.

Covid-19 presented a significant risk to the financial and
aperatinnal performance of the Groop. Tha Group responded
robustly and quickly to the challenges created by the spread
of the virus. Material actions were taken, and additional
actions will be taken, in order, as far as possible, to maintain
business continuity and provide sufficient liquidity to the
organisation. Whilst the economic outlook remains very
uncertain, drawing on the information known to the business
today, the Group has evaluated the potential impact of a range
of possib'le scenarios on future revenues, EBITDA and liquidity.
The Group has a robust business model and capital structure
with strong positions in a diverse range of geographies and
markets, supplying generally mission critical services to a
wide range of customers.

For information pertaining to the potential operational and
financial impacts to the Group of Brexit and Coronavirus,
refer to the Strategic Report for the Group's principal risks.

Financial risk factors

The Group's operations and significant debt financing expose
it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of
changes in debt market prices, foreign currency exchange
rates, credit risks, liquidity risks and interest rates. The Group
has in place a risk management programme that seeks to
limit adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group by using forward exchange contracts to limit exposure
to foreign currency risk and to limit the impact of fluctuating
interest rates by minimising the amount of floating rate
long-term borrowings.



Strategic report Directors’ report Financial statements

The Board of Directors has delegated to the treasury
department the responsibility for setting and implementing
the financial risk management policies applied by the Group.
The treasury department has an operating manual that sets
out specific guidelines for managing foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk (see note 31). The Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Group is the US Dollar. All of the
Group’s long-term borrowings are denominated in US Dollars,
the majority of its revenue is earned in US Dollars and the
majority of capital expenditure is denominated in US Dollars,
which are therefore not subject to risks associated with
fluctuating foreign currency rates of exchange.

However, the Group operates internationally, resulting in
approximately 3% (2019: 4%) and 33% (2019: 6%) of total
revenue and total expenditure, respectively, being
denominated in currencies other than the US Dollar.
Approximately 28% (2019: 25%) of the Group's operating
costs are denominated in Pounds Sterling. The Group's
exposure therefore needs to be carefully managed to avoid
variability in future cash flows and earnings caused by volatile
foreign exchange rates.

As at 31 December 2020 it is estimated that a hypothetical
10% increase in the US Dollar/Sterling year-end exchange rate
(US$1.37/€1.00 to US$1.51/€1.00) would have decreased the
2020 profit before tax by approximately $4.7m (2019: $4.5m).
Management believes that a 10% sensitivity rate provides a
reasonable basis upon which to assess expected changes in
foreign exchange rates. '

(i) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to significant equity securities price
risk or commodity price risk.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets such as cash and cash
equivalents, short-term deposits, and non-current other
receivables however interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk; The Group has two
variable interest loan agreements with its parent, both of
which have an interest rate of Libor + 4.7%. Both loan
agreements were signed on 5 December 2019, have total
available amount of $3.0bn and are due to mature on 5
December 2026.

As at 31 December 2020 it is estimated that a hypothetical 1%
increase in the interest rate would have increased 2020
interest expenses by approximately $25.2m (2017: $0.8m).
Management believes that a 1% sensitivity rate provides

a reasonable basis upon which to assess expected changes
in variable interest rates.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to

the Group. A debt will be deemed uncollectable and therefore
written off based an one or more of the

following criteria:

— Insolvency (formal or just ceased trading).
— Debtor cannot be located.
— Debt uneconomical to pursue.

For any write-offs, a standard procedure is followed with
authorisations obtained in-line with the Group'’s framework.

Financialinstruments that potentially subject the Group to

a concentration of credit risk consist of cash and cash
cquivalents, short-term deposits, trade receivables, other
receivables, accrued income and derivative financial
instruments. The credit risk on liquid funds (cash and cash
equivalents and short-term deposits) and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the counterparties are highly-
rated financial institutions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December is:

2019

2020 (restated)'

Note $m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 17 2440 1311
Short-term deposits 17 6880 -
Trade receivables, other
receivables and accrued income 18 2392 2752
Total credit risk exposure 1171.2 406.3

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the
restatements made is provided in note 36.
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The Group's average age of trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 was approximately 62 days
(2019 restated: 61 days).

At 31 December 2020, $2299m (2019 restated: $221.4m)

of trade receivables were not yet due for payment. No interest
is charged on trade receivables until the receivables

become overdue for payment. Thereafter, interest may be
charged at varying rates depending on the terms of the
individual agreements.

The Group has credit evaluation, approval and monitoring
processes intended to mitigate potential credit risks, and
utilises both internal and third-party collection processes

for overdue accounts. The Group maintains provisions for
potential credit losses that are assessed on an ongoing basis.
The provision for uncollectible trade receivables has
decreased to $16.7m (excluding Ligado Netwaork) as at
31December 2020 (2019: $28.8m).

For 2020, no customer comprised greater than 10% of the -
Group's total revenues (2019: no customer).

As a result of the pension scheme buy-in (note 28) the Group
are exposed to credit risk associated with the insurer which
is assessed to be low.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk with respect to its
contractual obligations and financial liabilities. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and short-term deposits and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by continﬁously maonitoring
forecast and actuval cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The available liquidity of the Group as at 31 December is:

2020 2019

Note $m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 17 2440 1311
Short-term deposits 177 6880 -
Available but undrawn borrowing
facilities’ 20 11845 1,356.7

Total available liquidity 2165 14878

1 Thisrelates to a $700m Senior Revolving Credit Facility and the
undrawn intercompany facility of $484.5m between the Group
and the parent group, Connect Bidco Limited (see note 20).
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The Directors currently believe the Group's liquidity position,
supported by the financing facilities of the parent company
and ultimate group, is more than sufficient to meet its needs
for the foreseeable future.

4 Critical accounting estimates

and key judgements

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have
a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabitities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Taxation

The calculation of the Group's uncertain tax provisions
involves estimation in respect of certain items whose tax
treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution

has been reached with the relevant tax autharity, or, as
appropriate, through a formal legal process. Issues can, and
often do, take a number of years to resolve. The amounts
recognised or disclosed are derived from the Group's best
estimation. However, the inherent uncertainty regarding the
outcome of these means eventual realisation could differ from
the accounting estimates and therefore impact the Group's
results and cash flows.

In the event that all such enquiries were settled entirely

in favour of the authorities, the Group would incur a cash
tax outflow of $128m, excluding interest, during 2021. The
quantum and timing of this cost remains uncertain but it is
substantially provided for and the enquiries remain ongoing
at this time.
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(continued)

At 31 December 2020, deferred income of $906.5m (2019:
$206.5m) was recorded on the balance sheet. $206.5m
represents services not yet performed relating to issues
including interference resolution for which payment has
already been received from Ligado. $700m represents the
upfront payment received pursuant to Amendment 5 & 6.

At 31 December 2020, a receivable of $179m (2019: $35.0m)
has been recorded on the balance sheet relating to the
deferrals and interest receivable of $2.0m (2019: $3.9m).

A 51% impairment has been recognised in 2020 in order to
comply with IFRS 9 and align with our conclusion that
uncertainty remains around the collection of future monies.

If Ligado failed to make remaining payments as they fall due,
this default would release Inmarsat from its remaining
obligations, which would trigger the recognition in the income
statement of the remaining deferred income resulting in a net
gain to the Group.

(d) Capitalisation of space segment assets and associated
borrowing costs

The net book value of space segment assets is currently
$1.9191m (2019: $1,966.4m). There have been $0.2m additions
in the year (2019: $nil). The key judgements involved in the
capitalisation of space segment assets and associated
borrowings costs are:

— Whether the capitalisation criteria of the undertying
IAS have been met.
— Whether an asset is ready for use and as a result
further capitalisation.
— Of costs should cease and depreciation should commence.
—~ Whether an asset is deemed to be substantially complete
and as a result capitalisation of borrowing costs should cease.

(f) Proxy board arrangement
The Group has made key judgements in determining the
appropriateness of consolidating Inmarsat Government Inc.

The U.S. Government element of Inmarsat's Government
business unit is managed through the U.S. trading entity,
Inmarsat Government Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. The business is managed through a Proxy agreement
as required by the U.S. National Industriat Security Program
(‘NISP". A Proxy agreement is an instrument intended to
mitigate the risk of foreign ownership, control or influence
when a foreign person owns, acquires or merges with a U.S.
entity that has a facility security clearance under the NISP.
The Proxy agreement conveys the foreign owner’s voting
rights to the Proxy Holders, comprised of the Proxy board.
There are three Proxy holders who are U.S. citizens cleared
and approved by the U.S. Defence Security Service (‘'DSS').
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The Proxy holders have a fiduciary duty, and agree, to perform
their role in the best interests of the Group (including the
legitimate economic interest), and in a manner consistent
with the national security interests of the U.S.

The DSS requires Inmarsat Government Inc. to enter into a
Proxy agreement because it is indirectly owned by the Group
and it has contracts with the Department of Defence which
contain certain classified information. The Proxy agreement
enables Inmarsat Government Inc. to participate in such
contracts with the U.S. Government despite being owned
by a non-U.S. corporation.

Under the Proxy agreement, the Proxy holders have the power
to exercise all privileges of share ownership of Inmarsat
Government Inc. In addition, as a result of the Proxy agreement,
certain limitations are placed on the information which may
be shared, and the interaction which may occur, between
Inmarsat Government Inc. and other Group companies.

The Group maintains its involvement in Inmarsat Government
Inc''s activities through normal business activity and liaison
with the Chair of the Proxy Board. Inmarsat Government
Inc's commercial and governance activity is included in
the business update provided in regular Executive reports
to the Board. This activity is always subject to the confines
of the Proxy regime to ensure that it meets the requirement
that Inmarsat Government Inc. must conduct its business
affairs without direct external control or influence, and the
requirements necessary to protect the U.S. national
security interest.

In accordance with IFRS 10 'Consolidated financial
statements’, an assessment is required to determine the
degree of control or influence the Group exercises and

the form of any control to ensure that the financial statement
treatment is appropriate. On the basis of the Group's ability
to affect the financial and operating policies of the entity,
we have concluded that the Group meets the requirements
of IFRS 10 in respect of control over the entity and, therefore,
consolidates the entity in the Group's consolidated accounts.
There have been no changes in circumstances which impact
any of the key judgements made by the Group.
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5. Segmental information

Financial statements

The Group has identified the provision of global mobile satellite communications services to customers around the world as
the only operating segment. The Board of Directors review the Group's financial reporting and approves those proposals for

the allocation of the Group’s resources and have therefore been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The main
sources of financial information used by the Board of Directors in assessing the Group’s performance and allocating resources are:

- Revenue by four channels to market namely:

— Maritime, focusing on worldwide commercial maritime services.

— Government, which consists of US Government, focusing on US civil and military government services and Global
Government, focusing on worldwide civil and military government services.

— Aviation, focusing on commercial, business and general aviation services.

— Enterprise, focusing on worldwide energy, industry, media, carriers, and M2M services.

— These four channels to market are supported by ‘Central Services’ which includes satellite operations and backbone
infrastructure and any income that is not directly attributable to a business unit such as Ligado.

— Costs, EBITDA and operating profit at a Group level.
— Cash capital expenditure at a Group level.

Central

Maritime Government Aviation Enterprise services Total
Segment results 2020 Note $m $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue 490.6 442.8 178.2 135 13.7 1.,238.8
Ligado revenue - - - - 333 333
Total revenue 490.6 4428 178.2 13.5 470 1,272
Net operating costs (578.0)
EBITDA 6941
Depreciation and amortisation 6 (442.6)
Other (8.4)
Operating profit 2431
Cash capital expenditure 2879
Financing costs capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets 609
Cash flow timing? (12.2)
Total capital expenditure 336.6

1 Other relates to loss on disposal of assets of $2.1m, impairment losses of $10.5m, and the share of profit from associates of $4.2m.
2 Cash flow timing represents the difference between accrued capex and the actual cash flows.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Central

Maritime Government Aviation Enterprise services Total
Segment results 2019 (restated)’ Note $m $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue 507.8 418.6 2939 124 632 13959
Ligado revenue - - - - 0.2 0.2
Total revenue 5078 418.6 2939 124 63.4 1,3961
Net operating costs (729.0)
EBITDA 6671
Depreciation and amortisation 6 ' (485.0)
Other' (10.2)
Operating profit 1719
Cash capital expenditure 433.3
Financing costs capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets 59.8
Cash flow timing? ‘ 0.8
Total capital expenditure 4939

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Other relates to loss on disposal of assets of $1.8m, impairment losses of $12.4m, and the share of profit from associates of $4.0m.
3 Cash flow timing represents the difference between accrued capex and the actual cash flows.

At 31 At 31
December December
2020 2019
$m $m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 485 1091
Over time 1,223.6 1,287.0

1,2721 1,3961
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Segmental analysis by geography

The Group's operations are located in the geographical regions listed below. Revenues are allocated to countries based on

the billing address of the customer. For wholesale customers, this is the distribution partner who receives the invoice for the
service, and for retail customers this is the billing address of the customer for whom the service is provided. Assets and capital
expenditure are allocated based on the physical location of the assets.

2019

2020 (restated)

Non-current Non-current

Revenue segment assets Revenue segment assets

$m $m $m $m

United Kingdom 565 20089 744 1159.6
Rest of Europe 366.4 271.6 4121 11495
North America 528.8 487 563.4 709
Asia and Pacific ] 236.3 85.5 2571 1414
Rest of the world 841 14 891 31
Unallocated? - 17225 - 1,7661

1,272 4138.6 - 13961 4,290.6

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Unallocated items relate to sateltites which are in orbit.

Remaining performance obligations
The table below shows the remaining revenue to be derived from unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) performance obligations
under non-cancellable contracts with customers at the end of the year.

At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019

$m $m

Within one year 380.8 505.0
Between two to four years ‘ 355.8 3456
Five years and greater 268.0 2425

1,004.6 1,0931

All other contracts are for periods of one year or less or are billed based on time incurred. As permitted under IFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements

(continued)

6. Operating profit

Costs are presented by the nature of the expense to the Group. Network and satellite operation costs comprise costs to third
parties for network service contracts and services. A breakdown of employee benefit costs is given in note 7.

Operating profit is stated after charging the following items:

2020 2019
Note $m $m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 333.2 375.8
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 978 981
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 1.6 M1
Acquisition related costs 20 758
Loss on disposal of assets 21 18
Impairment’ 10.5 124
Terminal and equipment costs 56.8 1024
IT support 37.3 281
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 616 107.2
Write downs of inventories recognised as an expense 19 84 32
Research costs expensed 69 79
1 Relates to the impairment of $2.7m of intangible assets and $8.4m of tangible assets, offset by a reversal of $0.6m.
Remuneration payable to the Group's auditor Deloitte LLP and its associates in the year is analysed below:
2020 2019
$m $m
Audit fees:
Annual audit of the Company 0.2 0.2
Annual audit of subsidiary companies 1.0 09
Total audit fees 1.2 11
Audit-related assurance services' - 01
Total audit and audit-related fees 12 1.2
Other services 01 01
Total non-audit fees 01 01
Total auditor’'s remuneration 1.3 1.3

1 Fees paid for audit-related assurance services refer to the half year and quarterly reviews of the Group’s interim financial statements.

84 | Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020



Strategic report Directors' report Financial statements

7. Employee benefit costs

2020

2019"

Note $m $m
. Wages and salaries 2470 2574
Social security costs 20.2 254
Share-based payments (including employers' national insurance contribution) - 295
Defined contribution pension plan costs n9 1.4
Defined benefit pension plan costs’ 28 04 13
Post-employment benefits costs? 28 01 0.2
Total employee benefit costs 279.6 325.2
1 Defined benefit pension plan costs and post-employment benefits costs includes current service cost (see note 28).
Employee numbers
The average monthly number of employees (including the Executive Dlrectors) employed during the year:
By activity: 2020 2019
Operations 915 918
Sales and marketing 361 331
Development and engineering 240 249
Administration 396 408
1912 1906
By segment:
Maritime 129 na
Government 192 187
Enterprise 71 77
Aviation 206 210
Central services 1,314 1,319
1912 1,906
The employee headcount numbers presented above refer to permanent full time and part time employees and exclude
contractors and temporary staff. Employee benefit costs of $9.2m (2019: $20 2m) relating to contractors and temporary staff
have been included in the cost table above.
8. Key management compensation
The Group's Executive and Non-Executive Directors are the key management personnel of the business. Details of the total
amounts earned during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
$m $m
Short-term benefits 24 54
Share-based payments' - 5.0
24 10.4

1 Includes IFRS 2 charge and employers’ national insurance or other social security contributions.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

In the current year, no Director has been a member of the Group's defined contribution pension plan. The highest paid director

received short-term benefits of $1.4m (2019: $2.2m) and share-based payments of $nil (2019: $4.4m).

9. Net financing costs

2019

2020 (restated)’

$m $m

Bank interest receivable and other interest . (2.8) (8.2)
Pension and post-retirement liability finance income (1.0) (1.4)
Financing income (3.8) (9.6)
Interest on Senior Notes and credit facilities 1n.2 1221
Interest on Convertible Bonds - 305
. Amortisation of debt issue costs ' 17 219
Amortisation of discount on Senior Notes due 2022 . 1.5 19
Amortisation of discount on deferred satellite liabilities - (0.9
Interest on lease obligations 23 2.6
Other interest 3.0 0.8
Related party interest 144.6 5.0
Financing costs 164.3 184.4
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets? : (60.9) (55.9)
Financing costs excluding derivative adjustments 103.4 128.5
Change in fair value of derivative liability component of the 2023 Convertible Bonds (0.2 255.2
Net financing costs 99.4 3741

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

2 Borrowing costs capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets during the year are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate to expenditures

on such assets. The average interest capitalisation rate for the year was 7.0% (2019: 7.2%).

10. Taxation
The tax charge for the year recognised in the income statement:

2019

Current tax: 20;2 (resmesdr:
Current year ) 375 57.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years (28.2) (28.7)
Total current tax 9.3 289
Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (10.6) 439)
Adjustments due to reduction in corporation tax rates 29.2 YAl
Adjustments in respect of prior years ) 26.6 301
Total deferred tax 45.2 6.7)
Total taxation charge 54.5 22.2

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
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The preceding and following table explains the differences between the expected tax expense, being the Group’s profit multiplied by
the UK tax rate, and the Group's total tax expense. The UK rate is used on the basis that this is our principal operating jurisdiction.
The effective tax rate is 379% (2019 restated: 11.0%) and is also reconciled below:

2019

2020 (restated)’
$m $m
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1437 (202.2)
Income tax at 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) : 27.3 (38.4)
Differences in overseas tax rates 08 84
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (1.6) 1.5
Adjustments due to increase in the corporation tax rate 29.2 44
Impact of UK patent box regime (6.3) (4.6)
Impact of fixed asset impairments 21 -
Tax losses for which no DTA is recognised ‘ - 375
Impact of reassessment of deferred tax - (1.5)
Impact of prior year losses not previously recognised (0.8) (1.8)
Impact of current temporary difference not recognised 11 (0.3)
Other non-deductible expenses/non-taxable income 27 170
Total taxation charge 54.5 222
1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements m'ade is provided in note 36.
Tax credited directly to equity:
2020 2019
$m $m
Deferred tax credit on share-based payments - 35
Deferred tax charge on pensions . - (1)
Total tax credited directly to equity - 24
Tax credited directly to other comprehensive income:
. 2020 2019
$m $m
Deferred tax credit on re-measurement of defined benefit asset and post-employment benefits 55 09
Total tax credited directly to other comprehensive income ‘ 55 09
1. Net foreign exchange loss
2020 2019
Note $m $m
Defined benefit plan and post-employment benefits 28 (0.7) (0.7)
Other operating costs ‘ 0.8 31
Total foreign exchange loss 01 2.4

12. Dividends

During 2020 the Board did not declare an interim dividend. During 2020 no dividend was paid to Company shareholders.
During 2019 and following the announcement of the proposed acquisition of Inmarsat on 25 March 2019, the Board did not
declare an interim dividend. During 2019, the 2018 final dividend of $55.6m (12 cents per ordinary share) was paid to the
Company's shareholders.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Service

equipment, Assets in

Freehold land fixtures and Space  the course of
and buildings fittings segment  construction Total
$m $m $m $m $m

Cost:

1January 2019 . 206 3217 41543 914.8 54114
prior year restatement?® - - - 70 70
1January 2019 (restated)?® 20.6 3217 4154.3 921.8 54184
Additions 0.6 109 - 353.3 364.8
Disposals (0.4) 40.2) (32.4) 0.3) (73.3)

Transfers from assets in the course of construction and

reclassifications’ - 74.8 1327 (235.0) (275)

Re-alignment of asset categories? (4.9) 79.5 (87.0) 124 —
31December 2019 (restated)?® 15.9 4467 4167.6 1,052.2 56824
Additions - 18.0 0.2 2307 2489
Disposals - (32.3) (92.2) (0 (124.6)
Impairments - - (74) - (74)
Transfers ) - (2.6) - 0.2 (2.4)
Transfe'rs. from assets in the course of construction and _ 392 2178 (2570) _
reclassifications’

31December 2020 15.9 4690 4,286.0 1,026.0 57969
Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2019 - M4 (123.3) (1922.8) (1.2) (2,0587)
Charge for the year (0.2) (73.9) (301.7) - (375.8)
Impairment ] - 4.7 - (7.6) (12.3)
Disposals 0.4 349 23.3 - 58.6
31 December 2019 (restated)? (11.2) (167.0) (2,201.2) (8.8) (2,388.2)
Charge for the year (0.2) (75.4) (257.6) - (333:2)
Disposals ) - 264 Q2.2 - 118.6
Impairment - (0.7) (0.3 - (1.0)
Transfers - 20 - - 20
31December 2020 (1.4) (214.7) (2,366.9) (8.8) (2,601.8)
Net book amount at 31 December 2019 (restated)? 47 2797 1966.4 1,043.4 3.294.2
Net book amount at 31 December 2020 45 254.3 1,919 1,017.2 31951

1 Reclassifications relate to movements between tangible and intangible asset categories throughout the year to align accounting policies
across the Group.

2 As part of the review of intangible assets undertaken during the 2019 acquisition, asset categories were reviewed and assets have been
re-aligned to better reflect the nature of the underlying assets.

3. The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is charged using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Space segment assets:

— Satellites 13-15 years

— Other space segment, including ground infrastructure 5-12 years
— Fixtures and fittings, and services-related equipment 3-15years
- Buildings 50 years
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Freehold land is not depreciated. At 31 December 2020, the Group was carrying certain freehold land and buildings with a net
book value of $12.7m (2019: $9.6m). Had they been revalued on a market basis, their carrying amount at 31 December 2020
would have been $12.7m (2019: $13.0m). Market valuation is based on the Directors’ best estimates.

In 2020, the Group received government grants in relation to the purchase and construction of certain assets. The grants have
been deducted from the cost of the relevant asset to arrive at the carrying amount. Government grants received in 2020 were
$111m (2019: $6.5m).

14. Intangible assets

Terminal
development
Intellectual and network  Customer

Goodwill Trademarks Software property access costs relationships Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Cost:
1 January 2019 781.3 256 2990 0.6 2621 3961 734 11,8381
Additions - - 965 - 148 - 178 1291
Disposals - - (5.5) - (0.2) - - (5.7
inth .

::agf;iniz:;?fr:::tsi:‘tss‘. in the course of construction _ _ 13.2 - 4.6) - 189 275
Re-alignment of asset categories? (0.7) (5.5) 91.3 - (613 (5.3) (18.5) -
31 December 2019 780.6 201 4945 06 2108 3908 9.6 1989.0
Additions - - 55.3 11 19.0 - 12.3 877
Disposals - - (Mo (1) (0.2) - 0.7y (13.0)
Impairments - - (1.3) - (1.2 - - (2.5)
Transfers - - (31 - 0N - 5.6 24
31 December 2020 780.6 201 5344 0.6 2283 3908 108.8 20636
Accumulated amortisation:
1 January 2019 (359.2)  (151) (190.4) (0.6) (131.2) (3154) (25.8) (1,0377)
Charge for the year - (1.0) (36.3) - (289 (259 6.8) (9817)
Impairment - - (01 — - - - (o})]
Disposals — - 54 - 01 - - 55
31 December 2019 (359.2) (161)  (221.4) (0.6) (160.0) (3405 (32.6) (1130.49)
Charge for the year - (1.0) (510 - (194) (16.8) (9.5 (978)
Disposals - - 109 - - - 0.7 1.6
Impairments - - (0.4) - 0.2 - - (0.2)
Transfers - - - - - - (2.0) (2.0
31 December 2020 (359.2) (177) (262.0) (0.6) (179.2) (3573) (43.4) (1,218.8)
Net book amount A
at 31 December 2019 414 4.0 2731 - 50.8 50.3 59.0 858.6
Net book amount
at 31 December 2020 4214 3.0 2724 — 491 335 654 8448

1 Reclassifications relate to movements between tangible and intangible asset categories throughout the year to align accounting policies
—~ -_ _ - acrossthe Group. - ) i —_ _
2 As part of the review of intangible assets undertaken during the 2019 acquisition, asset catégories were reviewed and assets have been
re-aligned to better reflect the nature of the underlying assets.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid on
an acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired

at the date of acquisition.

Trademarks are being amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, which are between seven and
twenty years.

Software includes the Group's billing system and other
internally developed operational systems and purchased
software, which are being amortised on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of three to eight years.

The Group capitalises costs associated with the development
and enhancement of user terminals and associated network
access costs as intangible assets and amortises these over
the estimated sales life of the related services, which range
fromthree to ten years.

Customer relationships acquired in connection with
acquisitions are being amortised over the expected period
of benefit of between twelve and fourteen years, using the
straight-line method.

Other consists of orbital slots, licences, spectrum rights and
unallocated launch slots. Orbital slots and licences relate to

15. Leases
Right of use assets

the Group's satellite programmes, and each individual asset is
reviewed to determine whether it has a finite or indefinite
useful life. Orbital slots are amortised over the useful life of
the satellite occupying them. Unallocated launch slots are not
amortised until allocated to a satellite asset where they are
re-classed to Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciated
in-line with Group policy discussed in note 2.

As at December 2020, the Group has no indefinite useful life
intangible assets, other than Goodwill.

Government grants received in 2020 were $3.3m (2019:
$0.3m). The grants have been deducted from the cost of
the relevant asset to arrive at the carrying amount.

Annual impairment review: Goodwill

Impairment reviews of goodwill are performed at the level
of the Group's cash-generating units ('CGUs’). The Group as a
whole has been determined to be the most appropriate CGU
as goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value in use calculations. The key assumptions
used by management in these calculations are the cash flow
projections, long-term growth rate and discount rate.
Further information on the annual impairment review can

be found in note 4.

The right-of-use assets for the Group's property and vehicle leases are presented in the table below.

Property Vehicles Total
$m $m $m

Net carrying amount:
1January 2019 620 04 624
Additions and cthanges in terms 0.8 0.2 1.0
Impairment ' (0.5) - (0.5)
Depreciation charge for the year (10.7) (0.4) (M)
31 December 2019 51.6 0.2 51.8
Additions 0.4 0.4 0.8
Changes interms 0.5 0.2 0.7
Depreciation charge for the year (1.3) (0.3) (11.6)
31December 2020 4.2 0.5 a7
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Two property leases and four vehicle leases expired in the
current financial year (2019: four and fifteen respectively).
The Group does not hold options to purchase any leased

assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease term.

The Group expenses short-term leases and low-value assets
as incurred which is in accordance with the recognition
exemption in IFRS 16. Expenses for short-term leases and
low-value assets were less than $01m in 2020 (2019: less than
$01m). As at 31 December 2020, the Group is committed to
$0:1m (2019: $01m) of short-term leases and low-value assets.

The Group received $0.3m (2019: $0.2m) in relation to income
from the subleasing of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are calculated at the present value of the

-lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date.

The Group's lease liabilities as of 31 December 2020 comprise
the transition of existing contracts, as well as contracts
entered into during the financial year 2020.

The average lease term of the Group's property and vehicle
leases is 3.5 and 2.6 years respectively (2019: 3.7 and 1.3 years
respectively). The maturity profile of the Group's leases is
shown in the table below:

At 31 December 2020 Pmpe;r: vehic;er: TO;::
Within one year M1 01 1.2
Between two to five years 377 0.6 38.3
Greater than five years 51 - 51

539 0.7 54.6
At 31 December 2019 pmpe;n{ Vemc;er: To;:
Within one year 10.8 0.2 1.0
Between two to five years 452 01 453
Greater than five years 61 - 61

621 0.3 62.4

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the weighted average discount rate applied was 3.9% (2019: 3.4%). Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent

rental payments.

The total cash flow relating to all lease obligations in 2020 was $10.6m (2019: $10.1m) with lease obligations denominated
in various currencies. Total lease interest paid was $2.3m (2019: $2.6m).

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. The Group's obligations are secured

by the lessors' title to the leased assets for such leases.
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

16. Investments

At

At

31December  31December

2020 2019

$m $m

Interest in associates 22.0 20.0
Other investments 11 1
Total investments . 231 213

Interest in associates represents the Group's investments which have been treated as associates and have all been accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Individually, all of the investments in associates are deemed to be immaterial and

as a result the associates’ assets, liabilities, revenues and profits have not been presented.

Other investments represent the Group's investment in Actility S.A. which was made on 5 April 2017 and is accounted for as fair

value through profit and loss.

Cash dividends received from the associates far the year ended 31 December 2020 total $2.2m (2019: $1.7m). The Group's
aggregate share of its associates’ profits for the year is $4.2m (2019: $4.0m) and has been recognised in the income statement.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments

with original maturities of three months or less.

At

At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

$m $m

Cash at bank and in hand 2440 1311
Cash and cash equivalents 244.0 1311

At 31 December 2020, the Group has $688.0m of cash held in short-term deposits with an original maturity of between four to
twelve months (2019: $nil), along with $7.0m held as restricted cash (2019: $0.9m). Restricted cash is held in escrow and relates

to the Speedcast asset acquisition, as disclosed in note 35.
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18. Trade and-other receivables

Financial statements

At

At

31December 31December
2020 2019
$m $m
Current:

Trade receivables and contract assets 215.0 233.8
Other receivables 123 254
Accrued income 8.3 1.2
Prepayments 21.2 244
Total trade and other receivables 256.8 294.8

Non-current:
Defined benefit pension asset 35 29.6
Other receivables 3.6 4.8
Total other receivables 71 34.4

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in naote 36.

The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 for the impairment of receivables and contract assets. A provisioning
matrix based on internal debtor credit ratings has been used in order to calculate the lifetime loss allowances for each grouping.

Debtors have been grouped based on ageing and each debtor's internal credit rating. This rating is a measure from Ato E

(with E being the highest risk of default) and considers the debtors financial strength, history and magnitude of past defaults,
personal credit history with the Group and the associated level of sovereign and market risk. The information used in assigning
ratings is both historical and forward looking as regular contact with debtors is maintained to understand if there is any
additional risk forecast. Specific allowances are made to reflect any additional risk identified.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

The table below presents the lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables within each debtor category.
No loss allowance has been recognised for other receivables and accrued income.

Internal Internal Internal Internal 2020

rating A rating B rating C rating D/E Total

$m $m $m $m $m

Carrying value of trade receivables (gross) 6.5 156.5 66.5 490 278.5

Lifetime ECL - 21 5.2 1.6 89

Specific allowances ' - - 78 19.8 276

Group loss allowance — 21 13.0 214 365
1 Thisis presented gross of credit note allowances of $27.0m.

Internat tnternal Internal Internal 2019 Total

rating A rating B rating C rating D/E (restated)’

$m $m $m $m $m

Carrying value of trade receivables (gross)? © 387 159.5 1m.8 20 3120

Lifetime ECL 0.2 30 6.8 1.7 n7z

Specific allowances — - 171 19.8 369

Group loss allowance 0.2 3.0 239 215 48.6

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Thisis presented gross of credit note allowances of $29.6m.

The Group's trade and other receivables are stated after impairments. Movements in the group loss allowance during the year

were as follows:

2019

2020 {restated)’

$m $m

At 1 Janvary 48.6 439
Charged in the year . 24.3 15.7
Ligado charge for the year - 43
Utilised in the year (28.9) 29
Released in the year _ (7.5) (12.4)
At 31 December? 36.5 48.6

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

2 The maturity of the Group’s provision for uncollectable trade receivables for the year ended 31 December 2020 is $2.2m current, $0.9m between
one and 30 days overdue, $4.0m between 31and 120 days overdue and $29.4m over 120 days overdue (2019: $4m current, $2.7m between one

and 30 days overdue, $12.6m between 31and 120 days overdue and $29.3m over 120 days overdue).

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables to apprc\inmate to their fair value.
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Financial statements

At
31 December

At
31December

2020 2019

$m $m

Finished goods 359 384
Work in progress 1.0 0.8
Total inventories 369 392

The Group's inventaries are stated after allowances for obsolescence. Movements in the allowance during the year were as follows:

At
31December
2020

At
31December
2019

$m $m
At 1January 175 15.7
Charged to the allowance in respect of the current year 71 5.0
Released in the year (8.4) (3.2
At 31 December 16.2 175
20. Net borrowings
At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Deferred Deferred
Amount  finance costs Net balance Amount  finance costs Net balance
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Current:
Senior Notes due 2022 - - - 10000 (1.8) 998.2
- Net issuance discount - - - (1.9) - (1.5)
Convertible Bonds due 2023 - - - 1.2 - 1.2
Related party loan 99 - 99 — - -
Total current borrowings 99 - 99 999.7 (1.8) 9979
Non-current:

" Related party loan 2,505.6 — 25056 16433 - 16433
Total non-current borrowings 2,505.6 - 2.505.6 1,643.3 - 1,643.3
Total borrowings 2,515.5 ' - 25155 26430 (1.8) 2,641.2
Cash and cash equivalents (244.0) - (244.0) (1317) — (1311)
Short term deposits (688.0) - (688.0) - - -
Net borrowings 1,5683.5 - 1,583.5 2,519 (1.8) 2,5101
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Senior Notes due 2022

On 4 June 2014, the Group issued $1. Obn of 4.875% Senior Notes due 15 May 2022. The aggregate gross proceeds were $992.1m,
net of $79m issuance discount. The notes were fully redeemed on 12 February 2020. On the acquisition date of 4 December
2019, all outstanding debt within the Group became repayable. A $12.2m early redemption charge on Senior Notes due 2022
was paid on 12 February 2020 when this debt was settled. This early redemption charge was not accrued as at 31 December
2019 and should have been due to the acquisition occurring on 4 December 2019. As a result, the 2019 comparative value for
interest payable has been restated and the impact has been disclosed in note 36.

Convertible bonds

On 9 September 2016, the Group issued $650m of 3.875% Convertible Bonds due 9 September 2023. The bonds were
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company and had a 3.875% pa coupon payable semi-annually and a yield to maturity of
3.681%. As a result of the acquisition in the prior year, 99.8% of the convertible bonds issued were cancelled with the remaining
bonds repaid and cancelled in 2020.

Senior revolving credit facility

On 12 December 2019, the Group signed a new five-year $700m revolving credlt facility (‘'Senior Revolving Credit Facility’).
Advances in US dollar under the facility bear interest at a rate equal to the applicable USD LIBOR, plus a margin of between 3.0%
and 3.5% determined by reference to the ratio of Senior Secured First Lien Net Leverage. At 31 December 2020, there were no
drawings under the Senior Revolving Credit Facility.

Related party loan

The Group has two loan agreements with its parent, both of which have aninterest rate of Libor +4.7%. Both loan agreements
were signed on 5 December 2019, have total available amount of $3.0bn and are due to mature on 5 December 2026. As at 31
December 2020 the Group had drawn down $2.5bn. In line with the LIBOR interest rate benchmark reform, the Group is working
with its counterparties to determine appropriate alternative benchmarks.

Effective interest rate
The Directors consider the carrying value of borrowings, other than the Senior Notes to approximate to their fair value (see note
31). The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

Effective interest rate % 2020 2019
Bank overdrafts A 4.5% 6.6%
Senior Notes due 2022 5.2% 5.2%
Related party loan 5.8% 6.5%
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Reconciliation of movements in liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

At Drawdowns Arrangement At

31 December and . Interest cost  Movementin Othercash  31December

2019 repayments Cash flows Transfers' expense  amortisation Fair Value movements 2020

$m $m $m $m $m . $m $m $m $m

Short-term borrowings 9967  (1,000) (14.3) 99 51 33 - 9.2 99

Convertible Bond? 1.8 (1.6) - - (0.2 - - - -

Related party loan 1,643.3 872.2 (129.5) (99) . 1446 - - (157 2,505.6
Total liabilities from

financing activities 2,641.8 (129.4) (143.8) - 149.5 33 - (5.9) 2,515.5

At Orawdowns Arrangement At

31December and Interest cost  Movementin Other cash 31December

2018 repayments Cash flows Transfers® expense  amortisation Fair Value movements 2019

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Short-term borrowings 123.2 (122.2) 4.3) 9967 57 - - (2.4) 996.7

Long-term borrowings 17729 (786.5) (M3.5) (996.7) 104.2 14.8 - 48 -

Convertible Bond? 718.2 - (25.2) (9901 30.5 55 255.2 77 1.8

Related party loan - 653.2 - 9901 5.0 - - (5.0) 16433
Total liabilities from

financing activities 2,614.3 (255.5) (143.0) - 145.4 203 255.2 51 2,641.8

1 Transfers comprise debt maturing from long-term to short-term borrowings and the redeemed element of the convertible bond paid by
arelated party.
2 Includes derivative liability component.

21. Trade and other payables
At At

310ecember 31 December
2020 2019 (restated)

$m $m
Current:
Trade payables 978 1170
Other taxation and social security payables 53 215
Other payables 43 59
Accruals . 78.3 99.3
Deferred income? 1,0011 3001
Total trade and other payables 1186.8 5438
Non-current:
Other payables 2.3 18
Defined benefit pension and post-employment liability 15.5 14.0
Total other payables . 17.8 15.8

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 The deferred income balance includes $906.5m (2019: $206.5m) relating to payments received from Ligado Networks (refer note 4).
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The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other payables to approximate to their fair value.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents obligations to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received
consideration and is therefore considered a contract liability. The group has recognised the following movements in deferred

income throughout the year:

2020

2019

$m $m

At January 3001 3043

Contract liability raised in the year 11219 275.0

Contract liability utilised in the year (420.9) (279.2)

At 31 December 2020 1,0011 3001

22. Provisions .
Movements in the Group's provisions were as follows:
Current Non-current

provisions provisions Total

$m $m $m

At 1 January 2019 14.3 111 254

Charged in respect of current year 09 1.0 19

Utilised in current year (Mm.0) (5.6) (16.6)

At 31 December 2019 4.2 65 107

Charged in respect of current year 14.2 0.4 14.6

Utilised in current year (2.8) (1.0) (3.8)

At 31 December 2020 15.6 59 215

The Group's current provisions includes a $3.0m (2019: $11m) contract obligation and an $111m (2019: $2.2m) restructuring

provision. Non-current provision includes $2.4m (2019: $2.4m) one-off Aviation contractual charges, $1.0m (2019: $1.1m)
deferred salary provision, and $0.8m (2019: $nil) HMRC launch costs provision. Non-current provisions are expected to be

utilised within 2-5 years.
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23. Current and deferred taxation 4
The current tax asset of $3.5m and current tax liability of $186.3m (2019: $4.5m and $194.5m, respectively), represent the tax
receivable and payable in respect of current and prior periods less amounts paid.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by |1AS 12)
for the year are shown below:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019 (restated)

Assets tiabilities Net Assets Liabitities Net

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 271.0 271.0 - 226.7 2267
Borrowing costs capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets - 648 648 . - 50.8 50.8
Other? (49.6) - (49.6) (221) - (221)
Pension and post-employment benefits (1 - ) - 29 29
Share options - - — (0.4) - (0.4
Tax losses (35.7) - (35.7) (48.2) - (48.2)
Net deferred tax liabilities (86.4) 3358 249.4 (70.7) 280.4 209.7

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Otherrelates to pensions and corporate interest restrictions.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The value of deferred income tax assets and liabilities included in the net deferred income tax balance is shown below:

At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019 (restated)

$m $m
Deferred tax assets (26.2) (30.5)
Deferred tax liabilities 275.6 240.2
Net deferred tax liabilities 2494 209.7

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
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Movement in temporary differences during the period:

Recognised
in other At
At 1Janvary Recognised comprehensive  31December
2020 inincome income 2020
$m $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 226.5 445 - 2710
Borrowing costs capitalised in the cost of qualifying assets 50.8 14.0 - 64.8
Other (223 (27.5) - (49.6)
Pension and post-employment benefits 29 15 (5.5) (xn
Share-based payments (0.4) 04 - -
Tax losses (48.0) 12.3 - (35.7)
Total 209.7 452 (5.5) 2494
1 Otherrelates to pensions and corporate interest restrictions.
Recognised
At At Recognised Recognised inother At31December
1Janvary Prior year 1Janvary IFRIC 23 inincome in equity comprehensive 2019
2019  restatement' 2019 (restated)’ Adjustment income (restated)*
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment and 1877 152 2029 73 16.3 - - 2265
intangible assets
Borrowing c.os.ts capitalised in the 242 _ 44.2 _ 66 _ _ 50.8
cost of qualifying assets
Other? (9.0) - (9.0) - (130 - - (220)
Penspn and post-employment 36 _ 36 . 0.2 _ (09) 29
benefits
Share-based payments (3.8) - (3.8) - 23 11 - (0.4)
Tax losses (25.8) (3.0 (28.8) 0.2 (19.0) - - 48.0)
Total 196.9 12.2 2091 71 6.7) 11 (0.9) 2097

1 The comparative information has beenrestated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

2 Otherrelates to pensions and corporate interest restrictions.

Total unprovided deferred tax assets:

At
3t December

At
31December

2020 2019

$m $m

Unused income tax losses (G (0.8)
Unused capital losses (379) (34.6)
Total (38.0) (35.4)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent there is probable utilisation of the underlying temporary difference using
existing tax laws and forecasts of future taxable profits based on Board-approved business plan forecasts.

Total unprovided deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of $38.0m (2019: $35.4m). Of this amount, $0.1m (2019:
$0.8m) relates to income tax losses and $37.9m (2019: $34.6m) relates to capital losses.

Overseas dividends received are largely exempt from UK tax but may be subject to foreign withholding taxes. The unrecognised -
gross temporary difference in respect of the unremitted earnings of those overseas subsidiaries affected by such taxes is $nil

(2019: $nil), resulting in a deferred tax liability of $nil (2019: $nil).

The unrecognised gross temporary difference in respect of the investments in associates is $2.2m (2019: $1.9m), resulting in

an unrecognised deferred tax liability of $0.7m (2019: $0.6m).
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On 3 March 2020 the UK Government announced their intention to increase the headline rate of tax from 19% to 25% from April
2023. UK deferred tax has been recognised in the accounts at a rate of 19% on the basis that this is the substantively enacted
rate at 31 December 2020. If the full deferred tax balance was to be revalued to 25% at the year-end it is expected to increase
the net deferred tax liability by $199.6m.

24. Reconciliation of cash generated from operations
Reconciliation of profit for the period to cash generated from operations:

2019

2020 (restated)’
$m $m
Profit/(loss) for the period 89.2 (224.4)
Adjustments for:
Taxation charge 545 22.2
Financing costs 103.4 1285
Financing income ' (3.8 (9.6)
Change in fair value of derivative (0.2 255.2
Operating profit 2431 1719
Depreciation and amortisation 442.6 485.0
Impairment loss 105 124
Loss on disposal of assets 21 18
Share of profit of associates ' @.2) (4.0)
EBITDA . 6941 6671
-Dividends received from associates 2.2 17
Non-cash employee benefit costs 0.2 258
Non-cash foreign exchange movements 0.6 21
Changes in net working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash? ' (63) 1.6
Decrease in trade and other receivables ) 772 458
Decrease in inventories 23 .4
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 623.3 (2.0)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 10.8 (14.8)
Cash generated from operations ) 1,404.6 7347

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 At 31 December 2020, the Group had $7.0m (2019: $0.9m) of restricted cash on the balance sheet. This relates to the Speedcast asset purchase,
as disclosed in note 35.

25. Share capital

At At
31December  31December
2020 2019
$m $m
Authorised:

166,610,560 ordinary shares of €0.0005 each (2019: 1,166,610,560) 0.7 0.7
07 0.7

Allotted, issued and fully paid: '
470,084,105 ordinary shares of £0.0005 each (2019: 469,771,885) ’ 0.3 0.3
: 0.3 0.3

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total of 312,220 (2019: 7154,456) ordinary shares of €0.0005 each were allotted
and issued by the Company under its employee share schemes. No shares were repurchased during 2020 or 2019.
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26. Reserves

During 2020 the Group adopted IFRS 9 for hedge accounting, which is accounted for prospectively. This did not have a material
impact on the recognition and measurement of hedge accounted for items. However, IFRS 9 does require the separate valuation
for foreign currency basis, where the changes in the'fair value of currency basis are recognised as a separate component of
equity, being the cost of hedging reserve, in other comprehensive income.

There are no gains and losses reclassified from equity included within the income statement for the period ended 31 December
2020 (2019: $nil).

Gains and losses relating to the effective portion of cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve. When a hedged item is recognised in the income statement the cumulative
deferred gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive income and the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified to the
income statement. When a hedged item is recognised as a non-financial asset or liability in the balance sheet the accumulated
gain or loss is removed from the cash flow hedge reserve and included directly in the initial cost of the asset or liability.

The cost of hedging reserve includes the effects of the following:

— Changes in fair value of the time value of option when only the intrinsic value of the option is designated as
the hedging instrument.

== Changes in fair value of the forward element of a forward contract.

— Changes in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread of a financial instrument when the foreign currency basis spread
of a financial instrument is excluded from the designation of that financial instrument as the hedging instrument (consistent
with the Group's accounting policy to recognise non-designated component of foreign currency derivative in equity).

Cash flow and Cost of Hedging reserve:

Foreign currency Total hedge
forwards reserves
$m $m
Balance at 31 December 2019 . (1.2) (1.2)
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 - —
Balance at 1 January 2020 (1.2) (1.2)
Add: change in fair value of hedging instrument recognised in OCI 0.8 0.8
Less: gain of foreign currency basis on cash flow edges capitalised to tangible assets 0.4 0.4
Balance at 31 December 2020 - -
Cash flow hedge reserve under the.previously applicable IAS 39:
2019
$m
Balance at 1 January . (4.0
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges:
Forward exchange contracts 04
Gains on cash flow hedges capitalised to tangible assets: '
Forward exchange contracts ' 24
Balance at 31 December (1.2)
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27. Employee share options and awards

During 2019, and on acquisition of the Group, the majority of existing share plans vested and an accelerated IFRS 2 charge
of $12.4m was recognised to reflect the fair value of the remaining life of each scheme. The share plans operated at the time
of the acquisition were as follows:

1. An Executive Share Plan, being a Bonus Share Award which were fully vested in 2019, along with Performance
Share Awards which were also accelerated and vested in 2019 to varying tevels.

2. A UK Sharesave Scheme and International Sharesave Scheme. Under the Sharesave plan rules, participant's had an option
to exercise their share options on Court Sanction or in one of the 6 months after the acquisition date. If they had not
exercised during this period then the options were lapsed. All options have now vested.

3. An Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Options were automatically vested pro rata to the participant's savings on acquisition.

During 2020, a new all-employee participation share plan was implemented. Employees globally receive participation units on
a given date in each year they are employed. On an ‘exit event of the existing investors’ each participation unit is converted into
a one off cash bonus, based on the increase in value delivered to the Company's investors. The Group has also implemented a
cash LTIP to replace the previous, now vested, schemes. This is detailed below.

Cash Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The cash LTIP is a senior management (excluding Executive management) remuneration scheme which runs over three years.
A new LTIP is granted each year with a performance period from 1 January to 31 December. The performance conditions
attached to the scheme are based on revenue growth over the three-year period and the aggregate Free cash flow over

a three-year period with both having a 50% weighting. The maximum pay out under the scheme is 150% of salary.

The 2020 cash LTIP charge for the year is $1.9m, bringing the accumulated cash LTIP provision to $1.9m.

Weighting Threshold Target Maximum
$m $m $m
Objective ‘
Revenue 50%  1456.0 1,574.0 1,692.0
Free cash flow 50% 7230 773.0 823.0
100%
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The principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the Group's pension and post-employment benefits liabilities under IAS 19 are:

At
31 December

At
31 December

2020 2019
Weighted average actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 1.5% 2.7%
Future salary increases 7.0% 2.3%
Medical price inflation ‘ 29% 3.0%
Future pension increases 29% 2.8%
Mortality assumptions have been updated to reflect experience and cxpected changes in life expectancy: The average life
expectancy assumptions for the Company’s pension and post-employment benefits liabilities are as follows:
Life Life
expectancy expectancy
2020 2019
Male current age 65 88.3 88.3
Female current age 65 894 895

Mortality assumptions used are consistent with those recommended by the individual scheme actuaries and reflect the latest
avaitable tables, adjusted for the expericnce of the Group where appropriate. For the Inmarsat Global defined benefit pension
scheme and the Inmarsat Global post-retirement healthcare benefits for 2020, mortality has been assumed to follow the S2PA

tables with -1year age rating for males and CMI 2017 improvement with a long-term trend of 1.75% pa.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit abligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase, mortality and healthcare cost trend rates. The sensitivity analysis below is for the Group's principal pension and
post-employment benefits schemes, and has been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period assuming that all other assumptions are held constant.

Inmarsat Global defined benefit scheme:

Impact on
benefit obligation
increase/

Impact on
projected
pension cost
increase/

. . (decrease) (decrease)
Change in assumption $m $m
Increase in discount factor of 0.25% . (7.0) (5.7)
Decrease in discount factor of 0.25% 75 61
Increase in inflation of 0.25% 74 6.0
Decrease in inflation of 0.25% 69) (5.6)
Mortality: -1year 49 37
Inmarsat Global post-retirement healthcare benefit scheme:

tmpact on Impact on
benefit obligation service cost
increase/ increase/

. 3 (decrease) {decrease)
Change in assumption $m $m
Increase in discount factor of 0.5% (1.0) (0.8)

e ._.__Increase.in inflation of 0.5%_ . . o e .12 __._ .08
Increase in medical price inflation trend rate of 1% : 25 19
Decrease in medical price inflation trend rate of 1% (2.0 (1.5)

In reality, there is an expectation of inter-relationships between the assumptions, for example, between discount rate
and inflation. The above analysis does not take the effect of these inter-relationships into account.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are:

At
310ecember

At
31December

2020 2019

$m $m

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (pension) (138.0) (M5.5)

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations (pension) - (0.3)

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations (post-employment benefits) (15.3) (12.3)

Fair value of defined benefit assets 141.3 1437

Net defined benefit (liability)/asset recognised in the balance sheet (12.0) 15.6
The above net asset is recognised in the balance sheet as follows:

At At

31December 31December

2020 2019

Note $m $m

Defined benefit pension asset 18 35 296

Defined benefit pension and post-employment liability 21 (15.5) (14.0)

Analysis of the movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations is as follows:

Defined benefit Post—employment

pension plan

benefits

$m $m
At 1January 2019 96.8 99
Current service cost 09 0.2
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 27 0.4
Remeasurement gains:
Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions 15.6 11
Change in experience adjustment ) — 05
Foreign exchange loss 33 04
Benefits paid (3.7 (0.2
Contributions by pension participants : 0.2 -
At 31 December 2019 115.8 12.3
Current service cost - 01
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 21 0.3
Remeasurement gains:
Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions : - -
Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions 18.5 1.2
Change in experience adjustment - 1.3
Foreign exchange loss 47 04
Benefits paid (1.8) (0.3)
Contributions by pension participants — -
Liabilities extinguished on plan settlement ’ (1.3) -
At 31 December 2020 138.0 15.3
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Analysis of the movement in the fair value of the assets of the defined benefit pension plans is as follows:

2020 2019

$m $m

At 1January 1437 126.2

Interest income ) 27 36

Remeasurement gains/(losses):

Experience return on plan asset (excluding interest income) (8.8) 9.4

Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions ' — 3.2

Contributions by employer - 09

Contributions by pension participants - 0.2

Benefits paid (1.7) (3.7)

Expenses paid (included in service cost) (0.4) (0.4)

Foreign exchange gain 5.8 4.3

At 31 December 141.3 1437
Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of the plans are as follows:

2020 2019

Defined benefit Post-employment  Defined benefit Post-employment

pension plan benefits pension ptan benefits

$m $m $m $m

Current service cost 0.4 01 13 0.2

Net interest (income)/expense (0.6) 0.3 (09) 04

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (n 04 (10 04

(1.3) 0.8 (0.7) 1.0

Current service cost is included within employee benefit costs (note 7). The net financing costs together with foreign exchange

gains and losses are included within interest payable (note 9).

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the plans are as follows:

2020 2019

Defined benefit Post-employment  Defined benefit Post-employment

Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains arising from changes in experience adjustment
Return on plan asset (excluding interest income)

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit asset and liability

pension plan benefits pension plan benefits
$m $m $m $m

18.5 1.2 124 11

- 1.3 - 0.5

8.8 - (9.4) -

273 25 3.0 1.6
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Notes tothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

The assets held in respect of the Group's defined benefit schemes were as follows:

At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019

Percentage Percentage

~ Value of total Value of total

$m plan assets $m plan assets

Equities - - 191 13.3%
Cash 1.6 11% 1.2 7.8%
Bonds ' - - 96.8 674%
Assets held by insurance company 122.8 869% - -
Other 169 12.0% 16.6 11.5%
Fair value of scheme assets 141.3 100% 1437 100%

The Plan’s main asset is the buy-in policy with Aviva, the value of which has been set equal to the corresponding value of the
IAS-19 liabilities it covers. The remaining assets retained by the Trustees are used to fund expenses and towards paying any
balancing premium due to Aviva once data cleaning has been finalised.

The remaining assets retained by the Trustees are invested in a pooled cash fund, which provides daily liquidity, and an illiquid
private debt investment that is in the process of being wound-down.

The duration of the defined benefit liabilities within the Inmarsat Global defined benefit plan is approximately 25 years.
The defined benefit obligation as at December 2020 is split as follows:

— Active members N/A
— Deferred members 82%
— Pensioner members 18%

The average age of the deferred and pensioner members at the date of the last statutory funding valuation for the Inmarsat
Global defined benefit plan (at 31 December 2017) was 56 years and 69 years, respectively.

The estimated contributions expected to be paid into the Inmarsat Global defined benefit pension plan during 2021 are $3.4m.
In 2020 actual contributions under this plan were $nil (2019: $nil).

29. Operating leases

During the year the Group received income from various agreements deriving revenue from leased equipment. These amounts
are recorded as revenue on a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms and represent the majority of the Group’s future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases expected to be received.

At At

310ecember  31December

2020 2019

$m $m

Within one year 291 251
Within two to five years : 46.6 483
757 734

e —— e e e i o e e o e
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30. Capital risk management

The following table summarises the capital of the Group:
' At At 31December

31 December 20179
2020 (restated)
$m $m

As per balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents (244.0) (1311)
Short-term deposits greater than three months at inception ‘ (688.0) -
Borrowings? 25155 2,641.2
Net borrowings 1,583.5 2,5101
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 1M5.9 1,050.6
Capital 2,699.4 3,560.7

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 This excludes the conversion liability on the convertible bond of $nil (2019: $0.6m) and lease obligations of $54.6m (2019: $62.4m).

The Group's objective when managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. The Group continually evaluates sources of capital and may repurchase, refinance, exchange or retire current or future
borrowings and/or debt securities from time to time in private or open-market transactions, or by any other means permitted by
the terms and conditions of borrowing facilities and debt securities. Additionally, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regularly monitors movements in cash and borrowings, as well as total available liquidity. The Group’s liquidity is
disclosed in note 3(d).

31. Financial instruments

Treasury management and strategy

The Group's treasury activities are managed by its treasury department, which reports into the Chief Financial Officer. The Group
has in place a risk management programme that seeks to limit adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group by
monitoring foreign exchange exposures and proposing a strategy to manage this exposure to the CFO for approval on an annual
basis, and using interest rate swaps as required to minimise the exposure arising from floating rate debt.

The Board of Directors of the Group has delegated to the treasury department the responsibility for setting and implementing
the financial risk management policies applied by the Group. The treasury department has a policy and procedures manual that
sets out specific guidelines for managing foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.

Key features of treasury management include:

— Ensuring that the Group is in a position to fund its obligations in appropriate currencies as they fall due.

~ Maintaining adequate undrawn borrowing facilities.

— Maximising return on short-term investments based on counterparty limits and credit ratings.

The Group's foreign exchange policy is not to hedge its foreign currency transactions. Where there is a material contract

with a foreign currency exposure, a specific hedge to match the specific risk will be evaluated and must be approved by the
Chief Financial Officer prior to any hedge being undertaken.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Financial instruments by category ‘
The following table sets out the categoarisation of financial assets and liabilities under IFRS 9:

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019 (restated)®

Fair value Derivatives Fair value Derivatives

Amortised through used for Amortised through used for
cost  profit and toss hedging Total cost  profit and loss hedging Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Assets as per balance sheet

Trade receivables and other? 239.2 - - 239.2 275.2 - - 275.2
Cash and cash equivalents - 2440 - 2440 - 1311 — 1311
Short-term deposits - 688.0 - 688.0 - - - —
239.2 9320 - 1171.2 275.2 1311 - 406.3

1 The comparative information has beenrestated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Consists of trade receivables, other receivables and accrued income (see note 18).

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019 (restated)'

Fair value Derivatives Fair value Derivatives

Amortised through used for Amortised through used for
cost profit and loss hedging Total cost  profit and loss hedging Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Borrowings 25155 - — 25155 2,641.2 - - 2,641.2
Trade payables and other? 182.2 - - 182.2 2240 - — 2240
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 0.6 0.3 09
2,6977 - - 26977  2,865.2 0.6 0.3 2,8661

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.
2 Consists of trade payables, other payables, accruals and excluding pension liabilities (see note 21).

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying values as the impact

of discounting is not significant.

At 31 December 2020
Less than Between Between Over
Tyear land 2years  2and Syears Syears Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Borrowings' 1459 1451 4314 2,6121 33345
Trade payables and other 180.4 01 0.3 14 182.2
3263 145.2 4317 2,6135 3,516.7

1 Includes interest obligations on the related party loan. The interest abligations on the borrowings are at variable rates for the term of the borrowing.

At 31 December 2019 (restated)!

Less than Between Between Over
Tyear land 2years  2and Syears Syears Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Borrowings? maz 106.8 3169 18546  3,393.0
Trade payables and other 2222 0.2 0.3 1.3 224.0
Derivative financial instruments 09 - - - 09
13378 107.0 3172 1,8559 3,6179

1 The comparative information has been restated. A summary of the restatements made is provided in note 36.

2 Includes interest obligations on the Senior Notes due 2022 and related party loan. The interest obligations on the Senior Notes due 2022
is at fixed rates up until the date of redemption in February 2020 and variable rates apply for the term of the related party loan.
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Fair values of derivative financial instruments ‘
The Group's derivative financial instruments consist of forward foreign currency contracts which are primarily designated as
cash flow hedges.

The Group generally does not hedge foreign currency transactions. Where there is a material contract with a foreign currency
exposure, a specific hedge to match the specific risk will be evaluated. At present the Group only hedges certain foreign
currency milestone payments to Airbus for the construction of the I-6 satellites.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value (see further below) on the contract date and are re-measured at
each reporting date. The change in the fair value is accounted for differently depending on whether the instrument qualifies for
hedge accounting (e.g. where a forward foreign currency transaction is designated as a cash flow hedge) or not (e.g. undesignated
cash flow hedges and the conversion liability component of the 2023 convertible bond).

Under hedge accounting, the change in fair value initially goes through other comprehensive income. At the point hedge
accounting is discontinued, i.e. when the hedging instrument expires, is terminated or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting,
the amounts sitting in other comprehensive income at that time remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When
the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the amounts that were reported in equity are immediately reclassified
to profit or loss. Where hedge accounting does not apply, the change in fair value is included in net financing costs in the
income statement.

The fair values at the balance sheet date were:

At At
31December  31December
2020 2019
$m $m

Financial liabilities:
Conversion liability component of 2023 Convertible Bond — 0.6
Forward foreign currency contracts - designated cash flow hedges - 0.3
Total derivative financial liabilities : - 09
Current portion of derivative financial liabilities - 09

Non-current portion of derivative financial liabilities - -

The full value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts are based on the difference between the contract amount at the current
forward rate at each period end and the contract amount at the contract rate, discounted at a variable risk-free rate at the
period end. The fair value of the conversion liability component of the Convertible Bonds due 2023 is relevant for the prior year
only and was determined as the difference between the market value of the Convertible Bond and the fair value of a
comparable, non-convertible bond, known as a debt host contract. All are classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy
according to IFRS 13.

The Group has no financial instruments with fair values that are determined by reference to significant unobservable inputs,

i.e. those that would be classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, nor have there been any transfers of assets or liabilities
between levels of the fair value hierarchy. There are no non-recurring fair value measurements.
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Notestothe consolidated financial statements

(continued)

Forward foreign exchange

The following tables set out the face value and fair value of forward foreigr{ exchange contracts outstanding for the Group

as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

At 31 December 2020

Maturing Maturing between Maturing between

Face value within 1year 1and 2years 2and 5Years Fair value

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts £m £m £m £m $m

GBP contracts- USD:GBP'1:0.68 0.5 0.5 - - -
1 Weighted Average Foreign Exchange Rate.

At 31 December 2019
Maturing Maturing between Maturing between

. . Face valve within 1year 1and 2years 2and SYears Fair value

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts £m £m £m £m $m

GBP contracts- USD:GBP'1:0.68 19 19 - - (0.3)

CAD contracts- USD:CAD'1:1.28 CADO.2 CADO.2 - - -

1 Weighted Average Foreign Exchange Rate.

The Group has entered into contracts to build the I-6 satellite.
The Group has entered into forward foreign exchange
contracts (for terms equivalent to when the milestone
payments fall duc) to hedge the exchange rote risk arising
from these anticipated milestone payments, which are
designated as cash flow hedges.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of losses
under forward foreign exchange contracts deferred in the
cash flow hedging reserve relating to the exposure on these
payments is $nil (2019: $0.3m). The milestone payments will
take place at irregular periods throughout each year until
2021, at which time the related cash flow hedges deferred in
equily will be transfened and included in the initial carrying
value of the hedged non-financial assets.

Hedge ineffectiveness can arise from changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties hedged with and the credit
risk of the Group, along with the possibility of changes to the
critical terms (e.g. forecast payment dates) of the hedged
transactions due, such that they no longer match those of the
hedging instruments. The hedge ineffectiveness for 2020 was
less than $0:1m (2019: less than $01m).

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial assets consist of cash at bank,
short-term investments, trade receivables, other receivables
and accrued income.

Non-derivative financial liabilities consist of borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and accruals.
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Fair value of non-derivative financial assets

and financial liabilities

With the exception of the Senior Notes, the Ex-Im Bank
Facilities and the Convertible Bonds, tho fair valucs of all
non-derivative financial instruments approximate to the
carrying value in the balance sheet. The fair value of Senior
Notes, Ex-Im Bank Facilities and Convertible Bonds are classified
as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy according to IFRS 13.

The following methods and assumptions have been used
to determine fair values:

The fair values of cash at bank, overdrafts and short-termv
depusils approximale Lheir carrying values because of the
short-term maturity of these instruments (see note 17).

— The fair value of trade and other receivables and
payables, accrued income and costs, and deferred
consideration approximate their carrying values (see notes
18 and 21 respectively).

— The Senior Notes due 2022 are reflected in the balance
sheet net of unamortised arrangement costs and net
issuance premium of $nil and $nil, respectively (2019: $1.8m
and $1.5m respectively) (see note 20). This was fully repaid
as at 31 December 2020.

— The debt liability component of the Convertible Bonds is
reflected in the balance sheet on an amortised cost basis,
net of unamortised arrangement costs of $nil
(2019: $nil) (see note 20). This was fully repaid as at
31 December 2020.

— The related party loans are reflected in the balance .

sheet and the fair value is based on the net present value

discounted at libor +4.7%.
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At 310ecember 2020 At 31 December 2019

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value

amount® amount amount amount

$m $m $m $m

Senior Notes due 2022 - - 1,000.0 10154

Convertible Bonds due 2023 debt component - - 1.2 1.2

Related party loan 2,515.5 2,558.8 1,643.3 16558

1 Gross of unamortised arrangement cost.
32. Capital and purchase commitments
Less than Between Greater than

1year 2 and Syears Syears Total

$m $m $m $m

Lease and purchase commitments 247 777 228.5 3309

Capital commitments ‘3135 2397 - 553.2

Total commitments 338.2 3174 228.5 8841

The Group had authorised and contracted but not provided for capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 of $553.2m
(2019: $578.7m). These amounts primarily represent commitments in respect of the Group's I-6 satellite programmes. Lease
and purchase commitments comprises mainly of the commitment for development of Arctic capabilities for GX in partnership

with Space Norway.

33. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to
contingencies pursuant to requirements that it complies with
relevant laws, regulations and standards. Failure to comply
could result in restrictions in operations, damages, fines,
increased tax, increased cost of compliance, interest charges,
reputational damage and other sanctions. These matters are
inherently difficult to quantify.

In cases where the Group has an obligation as a result
of a past event existing at the balance sheet date,

and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
of the obligation can be reliably estimated, a provision
will be recognised based on best estimates and
management judgement.

A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of
the obligation will only be confirmed by future events,

or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with reasonable reliability. At 31 December 2020, the Group
had no material contingent liabilities (2019: $nil).

34. Related party transactions

In the normal course of operations, the Group engages in
transactions with its equity-accounted associates; Navarino
UK and JSAT Mobile Communications Inc, parent companies
(being Connect Finco Ltd, Connect Bidco Ltd, Connect Midco
Ltd, Connect Sub-Topco Ltd, and Connect Topco Ltd), along
with the ultimate shareholders (being the 'Consortium":
Apax, Warburg Pincus, Canada Pension Plan Investment Board,
and Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan Board).

Transactions with equity-accounted associates represent
sales of airtime and equipment and are measured at the
amounts exchanged. Group revenue from Navarino UK and
JSAT Mobile for the 2020 financial period was $41.2m and
$15.7m respectively (2019: $40.4m and $14.1m, respectively).
The amount receivable from Navarino UK and JSAT Mobile

at 31 December 2020 is $9.5m and $1.7m, respectively
(2019: $9.3m and $1.7m, respectively).

Transactions with the parent companies relate to $4.4m
(2019: $nil) intercompany management charges and interest
expenses of $144.6m (2019: $5.0m), included in Net Financing
Costs, on borrowings with the Connect Bidco Ltd totalling
$2,515.5m ($1,643.3m). At 31 December 2020, the amount
payable to parent companies, other than borrowings, is
$20.0m (2019: $5.7m) and $nilis receivable from parent
companies (2019: $nil).
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Transactions with the Consortium for the 2020 financial
period were $nil (2019: $nil).

Amount owing to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors
as at 31 December 2020 is $11m (2019: $2.5m) and relates
to remuneration earned in the normal course of operations
(see note 8).

35. Events after the balance sheet date

Speedcast

The contract to acquire Speedcast's FX and FB customers

was signed on 13 November 2020 and completed on 1 January
2021. After year end, Inmarsat paid $13m for the related
receivables and inventory and waived its unsecured
prepetition claims against Speedcast.

Repricing of the term & related party loans

On 25 January 2021, a $1.75bn Term Loan Facility, held by
Connect Finco Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary of the
Group's ultimate parent, Connect Topco Limited, was repriced
from LIBOR +4.5% to LIBOR +3.5%. Subsequently, $1bn of the
related party loan facility was repriced by a similar factor,
representing an annual interest cost saving of

approximately $9m.

Intercompany loan

Given the material liquidity and covenant headroom at the
end of 2020, $570m of the funds received from Ligado have
been distributed to shareholders on 26 February 2021. To
support this distribution, the Group provided $570m to
Connect Midco Limited (a 100% owned subsidiary of the
Group's ultimate parent company, Connect Topco Limited)
in the form of an intercompany loan.

Launch cost provision

The Group has an uncertain tax provision of $100m in relation to
a long running tax case concerning tax deductions for historical
launch costs. In August 2019 the First Tier Tribunal found in
favour of HMRC. The Group appealed this verdict in February
2021 at the Upper Tribunal, which ruled in favour of HMRC.

The Group is currently assessing whether to apply for leave

to appeal to the Court of Appeal. As at 31 December 2020,

the Group has fully provided for the expected liability, including
the related interest. The payment date is yet to be finalised.

Other than those listed above, there have been no significant

events which would require disclosure in the 31 December
2020 Annual Report.
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36. Restatement

During 2020, the Group concluded that four items

required adjustments. These items relate to the prior period.
A summary of these items, along with the adjustments to
the comparative period, is presented below:

1) On the acquisition date of 4 December 2019, all outstanding
debt within the Group became repayable. A $12.2m early
redemption charge on'Senior Notes due 2022 was paid in
February 2020 when this debt was settled. This early
redemption charge was not accrued as at 31 December 2019.
The tax impact of this erroris a $2.0m credit to deferred

tax expense.

2) A 51% impairment of the Ligado receivable has been
recognised in order to comply with IFRS9 and align with the
Group's conclusion that uncertainty remains around the
collection of future monies. This has been calculated as
$19.8m, where $15.5m relates to the 2018 period and has been
corrected through retained earnings. The remaining $4.3m
has been corrected through bad debt expense in the 2019
comparative period. The tax impact of this erroris a $3.8m
credit to deferred tax expense, where $3.0m relates to 2018
and has been corrected through retained earnings, with the
remaining $0.8m being corrected through tax expense in the
2019 comparative period.

3) Calculation issues within capitalised borrowings, along with
one-off issues in timesheet software, resulted in $3.9m and
$31m respective errors in capitalised interest, capitalised staff
costs, and related property plant & equipment balances.
These relate prior to 2019 and have been adjusted through
2019 opening retained earnings. The tax impact of this error

is a $1.3m charge to deferred tax expense, also through 2019
opening retained earnings.

4) Calculation issues in the deferred tax balance resulted

in certain assets within the tax base being double-counted.
A $7m charge to deferred tax is required in the 2019
comparative period, with $13.9m relating to pre-2019 which
has been adjusted through 2019 opening retained earnings.
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Income statement for year ended 31 December 2019

Reported Adjustment Restated

$m $m $m

Impairment of financial assets (3.3 (4.3 (7.6)
Total net operating costs (724.7) 4.3) (729.0)
EBITDA 6714 4.3) 6671
Operating profit 176.2 4.3) 1719
Financing Costs Mé.3) (12.2) (128.5)
Net financing costs (361.9) (12.2) (3747)
Loss before tax (185.7) (16.5) (202.2)
Tax charge (18.0) 4.2 (22.2)
Loss for the year (203.7) (20.7) (224.4)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019

Reported Adjustment Restated

$m $m $m

Property, plant and equipment 3,2872 70 3,294.2
Deferred tax asset 467 (16.2) 305
Total non-current assets 4,299.8 (9.2) 4,290.6
Trade and other receivables 314.6 (19.8) 294.8
Total current assets 490.3 (19.8) 4705
Total assets 4,7901 (29.0) 4,7611
Trade and other payables 531.6 12.2 543.8
Total current liabilities 1,7401 12.2 17523
Deferred tax liabilities 240.0 0.2 240.2
Total non-current liabilities 19570 0.2 19572
Total liabilities 3,6971 124 3,709.5
Net assets 1,093.0 (41.4) 1,051.6
Retained Earnings 3219 (41.4) 280.5
Total Equity 1,093.0 (41.4) 1,051.6
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37 Group entities

At 31 December 2020, the Company had investments in the following subsidiaries and associates:

Country of incorporation/

registered address key'

Interest in
issued ordinary
share capital at

Principal activity 31 December 2020 Ownership
Inmarsat Holdings Limited Holding company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
inmarsat Group Limited Holding company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Finance PLC Finance company ‘ England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Investments Limited Holding company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Ventures SE Operating company England and Wales /A) 100% 100%
Inmarsat Global Limited Satellite telecommunications England and Wales/A 100% 100%
ISAT Global Xpress 000 Operating company Russian Federation/X 100% 100%
Inmarsat Brasil Eireli Dormant Brazil/H 100% 100%
Inmarsat Leasing (Two) Limited Satellite leasing ' England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat New Zealand Limited Operating company New Zealand/U 100% 100%
Inmarsat Services Limited Operating company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
PT ISAT Operating company Indonesia/Q 100% 100%
Inmarsat Communications Company LLC Operating company  United Arab Emirates/AC 49% 49%
Inmarsat Group Holdings Inc. Operating company United States/C 100% 100%
ISATUS Inc. Operating company United States/C 100% 100%
Inmarsat Government Inc. Operating company United States/D 100% 100%
Stratos Government Services Inc. Operating company United States/D 100% 100%
Inmarsat Commercial Services Inc. Operating company United States/D 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions (US) Inc. Operating company United States/D 100% 100%
Inmarsat Inc. ‘ Holding company . United States/D 100% 100%
Inmarsat US Investments Limited Dormant England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Europasat Limited Operating company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Employment Company Limited Employment company Jersey/T 100% 100%
Inmarsat Trustee Company Limited Dormant England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Finance Il Limited Operating company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions Limited Holding company . England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions (Canada) Inc. Operating company Canada/B 100% 100%
Inmarsat Holdings (Cyprus) Limited Holding company Cyprus/K 100% 100%
Inmarsat Germany (GmBH) Operating company Germany/L 100% 100%
Inmarsat Global Japan KK Holding company Japan/S 100% 100%
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interestin

Country of incorporation/ issued ordinary

registered address key' share capital at

Principal activity 31December 2020 Ownership
Inmarsat Investments 8V Holding company The Netherlands/V 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions BV. Operating company The Netherlands/V 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions SA (PTY) Limited Operating company South Africa/Z 90% 90%
Inmarsat Spain S.A. Operating company Spain/AA 100% 100%
Inmarsat Hong Kong Limited Operating company Hong Kong/N 100% 100%
Inmarsat (IP) Company Limited Dormant England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Hellas Satellite Services SA Satellite telecommunications Greece/M 100% 100%
Inmarsat Navigation Ventures Limited Operating company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Global Xpress Limited Operating company . England and Wales/A 100% 100%
inmarsat SA Operating company Switzerland/AB 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions Global Limited Operating company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions AS Operating company Norway/W 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions Pte. Limited Operating company Singapore/Y 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions ehf. Operating company Iceland/0 51% 51%
Inmarsat Australia Pty Limited Operating company Australia/F 100% 100%
Inmarsat KK Operating company Japan/S 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Limited Operating company China/J 100% 100%
Inmarsat India Private Limited Operating company India/P 100% 100%
Inmarsat Licences (Canada) Inc. Holding company Canada/B 100% 100%
Flysurfer Colombia S.A.S. Operating company Columbia/I 100% 100%
Flysurfer Peru S.A.C. Operating company Peru/R 100% 100%
Inmarsat New Ventures Limited Holding company England and Wales/A 100% 100%
Flysurfer-Ecuador S.A. Operating company Ecuador/AE 100% 100%
Inmarsat Satellite Services S.R.L. Operating company Romania/AF 100% 100%
Inmarsat BH d.o.0. Operating companyBosnia and Herzegovina/AG 100% 100%
Inmarsat Solutions doo Beograd Operating company . Serbia/AH 100% 100%
Inmarsat DOOEL Skopje Operating company Macedonia/E 100% 100%
Navarino UK Limited Associate England and Wales/AD 49% 49%
JSAT Mobile Communications Inc. Associate Japan/G 26.67% 26.67%
Inmarsat Maritime Ventures Limited Holding company England and Wales/A 100% 100%

1 Forthe list of registered addresses please refer to the next table.
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In accordance with s479A of the Companies Act 2006, the following companies are exempt from the requirements relating
to the audit of individual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020: Inmarsat Trustee Company Limited (03688399),
Inmarsat (IP) Company Limited (03930467) and Inmarsat US Investments Limited (07100989).

Registered address key

Key Registered address

99 City Road, London EC1Y 1AX, United Kingdom

34 Glencoe Drive, Box 5754, Donovan's Bus. Park, Mount Pearl Newfoundland AIN 4S8, Canada

874 Walker Road, Suite C, City of Dover DE 19904, United States

251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington DE 19808, United States

Str. Risto Ravanovski no 13a, Skopje, Republic of Macedonia, Macedonia, the former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia
Level 40, Governor Macquarie Tower, 1 Farrer Place, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia

Nisso Building #22 8F, Azabudail-11-10, Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-0041, Japan

Av Presidente Juscelino Kubitschek 50, Suite 172, Room 7, 17th Floor, Sao Paulo, CEP 04543-000, Brazil
Cra. 7 No. 71-52 Tower B 9th Floor, Bogota, DC, Colombia 110231

11F, Tower B, Central Towers, N0.567, Lan Gao Road, Putuo District, Shanghai, 200333, China

1, Lampousas, Nicosia, 1095, Cyprus

Aarberger Strasse 18, 12205, Berlin, Germany

280 Kifisias Avenue, Halandri, 152 32, Greece ‘

19 Floor, Milennium trade Centre, No. 56 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
Hlidarsmaéra 10, 201 Képavogi, Iceland

P-24, Green Park Extension, New Delhi, 110016, India

Panbil Residence 1st - 2nd Floor, Jl. Ahmad Yani, Muka Kuning - Batam - 29433, Indonesia

Dentons Gallo Barrios Pickmann SCRL, General Cérdova N° 313, Miraflores - Lima 18, Per0

Level 25 Ark Hills Sengokuyama Mori Tower, 1-9-10, Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 106-0032, Japan

44 Esplanade, St. Helier, Jersey JE4 9WG, Jersey

24 Unity Drive North, North Harbour, Auckland, New Zealand

Loire 158-160, 2491 AL, The Hague, Netherlands

NMK - Borgundveien 340, 6009 Alesund, Norway

Bld. 5, 13 Kasatkina Street, 129301, Moscow, Russian Federation

11 Lorong 3 Toa Payoh, #01-31, Jackson Square, 319579, Singapore

Deloitte Place, The Woodlands, 20 Woodlands Drive, Woodmead, Sandton, Johannesburg, Gauteng, 2052, South Africa
Principe de Vergara 73, 28006, Madrid, Spain

Route de Crassier 19, 1262, Eysins, Switzerland

Festival Tower - Unit 2303, PO. Box 27313, Dubai Festival City, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Camburgh House, 27 New Dover Road, Canterbury, Kent CT1 30N, United Kingdom

Republica de El Salvador N35-146 y Suecia, Edif. Prisma Norte, Piso 11,.Quito, C.P. 170505, Ecuador

22 Tudor Vladimirescu Blv., Building Green Gate Office, Bucharest, 5th Floor 573Campus07, Sector, Bucharest, Romania
Street Skenderpasina 1, Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina

GTC Avenue 19, 38-40 Vladimira Popovica Street, New Belgrade, Servia, 11070, Serbia

Redwood House , St Julian's Avenue , St Peter Port, GY11WA, Guernsey

5, rue Goethe, Grand. Duchy of Luxembourg, L-1637, Luxembourg

N-<><é<c—lU)JUOUOZ§'_X“‘-_IG)ﬂmDnCU:D
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2020.

As at Asat
31December 31December
2020 2019
$m $m
Assets

Non-current assets
Investments’ 1,584.2 1584.0
Deferred tax assets 221 04

1,606.3 1,584.4

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 21 10.8
Trade and other receivables? 148.2 1739
Current tax assets - 12.8
Restricted cash - 0.5
150.3 198.0
Total assets 1,756.6 1782.4
Liabilities
Current liabilities A
Trade and other payables?® 3.0 53.6
Borrowings* i 99 12
Derivative financial instruments - 0.6
129 55.4
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings* 1,054.6 995.6
1.054.6 995.6
Total liabilities . 1,0675 1,051.0
Net assets 6891 7314
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 0.3 0.3
Share premium 7721 7721
Other reserves 29 (29)
Retained earnings . (80.9) (387)
Total equity 6891 7314

1 Investments include $1,448.8m investment in Inmarsat Holdings Limited (2019: $1,448.8m) and $135.4m of capital contributions to Group
companies in respect of share-based payments (2019: $135.2m).

2 Trade and other receivables consist $148.0m due from Group companies (2019: $173.9m) and $0.2m other receivables.

3 Trade and other payables consist $0.9m due to shareholders in respect of dividends paid (2019: $1.2m), $0.2m interest owing to Group
companies (2019: $2.5m), and other amounts due to Group companies of $nil (2019: $45.5m).

4 Borrowings comprise $nil convertible bond liability (2019: $1.2m) and $1.06bn loan owing to Inmarsat Group companies (2019: $995.7m).

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 of $42.5m (2019: loss of $295.2m).

The financial statements of the Company, registered number 4886072, on pages 119 to 121 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 14 May 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Tony Bates
Director
14 May 2021

Inmarsat Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report 2020 | 119



Strategic report Directors' report Financial statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020.

Ordinary share Share premium  Share option Other Retained

capital  * account reserve reserve' earnings Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Balance at 1Janvary 2019 0.3 7678 13.8 (29) 173.5 1,052.5
Share-based payments - - 258 - (0.4) 254
Reclassify share option reserve to retained earnings - - (139.6) — 139.6 -
Dividends declared - - - - (55.6) (55.6)
Issue of share capital - . 43 - - - 4.3
Loss for the year - - - - (295.2) (295.2)
Balance at 31 December 2019 0.3 7721 - (29) (381 731.4
Share-based payments - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Reclassify share option reserve to retained earnings - - (0.2) - 0.2 -
Loss for the year - - - - (42.5) (42.5)
Balance at 31 December 2020 03 - 772 - (2.9) (80.4) 6891

1 The'otherreserve’ relates to ordinary shares held by the employee share trust.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

a) Principal accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reporting Requirements' issued
by the Financial Reporting Council ('FRC’). Accordingly, the Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. ’

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in
relation to presentation of a cash flow statement, the reconciliation of net cash from operations, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and
related party transactions, share based payments and financial instruments. Where required, equivalent disclosures have been
given in the Group accounts of Inmarsat plc.

The accounting policies and financial risk management policies and objectives, where relevant to the Company, are consistent
with those of the consolidated Group as set out in notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s balance sheet.
On disposal of investments in subsidiaries the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

b) Critical accounting estimates and key judgements
The critical accounting estimates and key judgements, where relevant to the Company, are consistent with those of the
consolidated Group as set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statement.

¢) Income statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of Companies Act 2006 and has not
presented an income statement. The loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 was $42.5m (2019: loss of $295.2m).
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Auditor's Remuneration
During the year, the Company paid its external auditor $0.1m for statutory audit services (2019: $0.1m).

Employee costs and directors’ remuneration

The average monthly number of people employed during the year was two (2019: two). Total staff costs for 2020 were $3.0m
(2019: $8.6m). Full details of Directors’ remuneration and Directors’ share options and share awards are given in the
Remuneration report. ’

Foreign currency translation
Accounting for foreign currency transactions of the Company is consistent with that of the Group, which is disclosed in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
The share capital of the Company is disclosed in note 25 to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

d) Financial instruments
The IFRS 7, 'Financial Instruments’ disclosures, where relevant to the Company, are consistent with that of the Group as set out
in note 31to the consolidated financial statements.

The differences between the Group and the Company in relation to intercompany batances are $148.0m (2019: $173.9m) due
from Group companies, $11m (2019: $48.0m) due to Group companies, and $1.06bn (2019; $995.7m) loans due to Group
companies, which eliminate on consolidation. The Directors consider the carrying value of the intercompany balances to
approximate to their fair value. '

The Group has assessed the intercompany receivables under the IFRS 9 expected credit loss model and no impairment losses
have been recognised.

The Directors use Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) to better understand the underlying financial performance of the
Group and to provide comparability of information between reporting periods and business units. Given that APMs are not
defined by International Financial Reporting Standards they may not be directly comparable with other companies who use
similar measures. APMs used in these financial statements are:

APM Description and reconciliation

1. EBITDA EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before net financing costs, taxation, depreciation and amortisation,
gains/losses on disposal of assets, impairment losses and share of profit of associates. EBITDA is a
commonly used industry measure which helps investors to understand the contribution made by each of
our business units. It reflects how the effect of growing revenues and cost management deliver value for
our shareholders. This measure has been reconciled to both operating profit and profit after tax on the
face of the income statement.

2. Cash capex Cash capital expenditure is the cash flow relating to tangible and intangible asset additions, it includes
capitalised labour costs and excludes capitalised interest. Cash capex indicates aur continued investment
in the growth and development of our network and infrastructure as well as our investment in the future
technologies of the business. This has been reconciled to total capital expenditure within note 5.
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORTTOTHE MEMBERS
OF INMARSATGROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report onthe audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion
In our opinion:

—~ The financial statements of Inmarsat Group Holdings Limited (the ‘company’) and its subsidiaries (the 'group’) give a true and
fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company'’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the group's profit for
the year then ended;

— The group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

— The company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework"; and

— The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

The consolidated income statement;

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

The consolidated and company balance sheets;

The consolidated and company statements of changes in equity;
The consolidated cash flow statement; and

The related notes 1to 37

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law
and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as issued by
the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsubllltles for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the 'FRC's") Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion

3. Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue as a going

concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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4. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard

5. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so. ' '

6. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.
org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report. ‘

7. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's documentation of their
policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about
their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, and identified the key laws
and regulations that:

— Had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included the
UK Companies Act and relevant tax legislation; and

- Do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group’s ability
to operate or to avoid a material penalty such as data protection requirements, US Government regulations and telecom
regulations.
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We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant internal
specialists such as tax, valuations, pensions and IT regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our specific
procedures performed to address them are described below:

Accounting for complex contracts:

— Assessing the relevant controls aver accounting for the complex contracts;

— Obtaining Amendment 5 & 6 of the Cooperation Agreement with Ligado Networks LLP signed in the year along with
Management's accounting paper. We determined whether the identification of performance obligations under IFRS 15 was
appropriate. This included consideration of the valuation of the standalone selling price of each performance obligation; and

- Assessing whether collectability was prabable in the future, and therefore whether revenue should be recognised under this
contract.

Accounting for capital expenditure on assets under construction:

— Assessing the relevant controls over the capital project process;

Discussing material capital projects within the year with the respective project managers in order to understand the nature
of the costs capitalised, inquiring as to the reasons for any significant deviations from budget;

— Challenging management’s assessment of the impact of Covid-19 on each project by having discussions with relevant
project managers;

Examining the ageing profile of assets under construction at year-end and assessing whether any items had aged that were
not still under construction by agreeing to costs incurred during the year;

Obtaining supporting calculations for borrowing costs, verifying the inputs and checking the mechanical accuracy of the
model through recalculating the cost capitalised; and

For those material assets that entered service in the year, assessing whether depreciation had commenced in accordance
with 1AS 16.

in common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness
of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside
the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

— Reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
— Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;
— Enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of
" non-comptiance with laws and regulations; and
— Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing caorrespondence with HMRC.
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8. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

— The information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and ’

— The strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Mattors on which we are required to repaort by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

— Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

— The parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

— We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Paul Franek
FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
14 May 2021

For and on behalf of
Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom
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